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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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M ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2010
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant hdsnitted electronically and posted on its corpofteb site, if any, eve
Interactive Data File required to be submitted apndted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation §ection 232.405 of this chapt
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Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquélatrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will 1
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Part 11l of this Form 10-K or any amendment to thagm 10-K.O

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant iarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-axelerated filer or a smal
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smalleporting company” in Rule 12B-
of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fileCd Accelerated file™ Non-accelerated file[d Smaller reporting compar]



(Do not check if a smaller reporting compée
Indicate by check mark whether the Registrantsbell company (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 22¥ESOO  NO M
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Common Shares of Beneficial Interest on June 30026 reported on the NYSE Amex, was approximé8ty million. Commo
Shares of Beneficial Interest held by each offaed trust manager and by each person who owns Q%o of the outstandil
Common Shares of Beneficial Interest have beeruderd because such persons may be deemed to efilThis determination
affiliate status is not necessarily a conclusiviedsination for other purposes.
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Forward-Looking Statements

This Form 10-K contains certain forwatdeking statements within the meaning of Sectioh @&7the Securities Act of 1933 &
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@8dch are intended to be covered by the safe hrarbreated thereby. The
statements include the plans and objectives of gement for future operations, including plans ardjeatives relating to futur
growth of our loans receivable and availability folds. Such forwarlooking statements can be identified by the ustmfard-
looking terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expect,“intend,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” or “continue,” or the negativt
thereof or other variations or similar words or @wes. The forwartboking statements included herein are based omeot
expectations that involve numerous risks and ungdies identified in this Form 10-K including, without limitation, the risk
identified under the caption “ltem 1A. Risk Factér&sssumptions relating to the foregoing involve judgts with respect to, amol
other things, future economic, competitive and radonditions and future business decisions, aliloith are difficult or impossibl
to predict accurately and many of which are beyond control. Although we believe that the assunmgianderlying the forward-
looking statements are reasonable, any of the agsans could be inaccurate and, therefore, thera ba no assurance that t
forward-looking statements included in this Form 1@vKl prove to be accurate. In light of the signéitt uncertainties inherent |
the forwardlooking statements included herein, the inclusibauzh information should not be regarded as a espntation by us ¢
any other person that our objectives and plans il achieved. Readers are cautioned not to placki@nmeliance on forward-
looking statements. Forwatddeoking statements speak only as of the date theyrade. We do not undertake to update the
reflect changes that occur after the date theyraegle, except to the extent required by applicabbeisties laws.

” ” ” ow LT

PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS
INTRODUCTION

PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” and togethéth its wholly-owned subsidiaries, the “Companygur” or “we”)
is a real estate investment trust (“REIBFganized in 1993 that primarily originates loaasmall businesses collateralized by {
liens on the real estate of the related businessa REIT, we seek to maximize shareholder valueutit longterm growth ir
dividends paid to our shareholders. We must disteilat least 90% of our REIT taxable income to ehalders to maintain our RE
status. See “Tax Status.” Our common shares atedran the NYSE Amex under the symbol “PCC.”

We generate revenue primarily from the yield arttkofees earned on our investments. Our loansradominantly (94% ¢
December 31, 2010) to borrowers in the hospitdligustry. Our operations are located in Dallas, a6eand historically hav
included originating, servicing and selling comni@rtoans. During the years ended December 31, 20002009, our total revenu
were approximately $15.5 million and $16.3 milliorespectively, and our net income was approximatedy3 million anc
$6.8 million, respectively. See “ltem 8. Financ&htements and Supplementary Data.”

We originate loans through PMC Commercial and itoNy-owned lending subsidiaries: First Western &Blnc. (‘First
Western”), PMC Investment Corporation (“PMCIC") avtestern Financial Capital Corporation (“Westerndgicial”). First Westerr
is licensed as a small business lending compar§L(C3) that originates loans through the Small Besie Administration’s (“SBAY’
7(a) Guaranteed Loan Program (“SBA 7(a)"). PMCId &lviestern Financial are small business investmampanies (“SBICSs”).

First Western is a national “Preferred Lendass’designated by the SBA, and originates, sellssandces small business loa
As a nonbank SBA 7(a) program lender, First Western is ébleriginate loans on which a substantial portbithe loan (generall
75% to 85%) is guaranteed as to payment of prihaipd interest by the SBA. Due to the existencthefSBA guarantee, we are a
to originate loans that meet the criteria of theASHBa) Program and have less stringent underwritititi@ria than our noi$BA 7(a)
program loan originations. See “Lending ActivitiesSBA Programs.”

We are focusing on the origination of SBA 7(a) peog loans which require less capital due to thétald sell the governmer
guaranteed portion of such loans. We utilize thé\ SBa) program to originate small business loanisnarily secured by real esta
and then sell the government guaranteed portiamvestors.
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Our ability to generate interest income, as welbdwr revenue sources, is dependent on econoagjalatory and competiti'
factors that influence interest rates and loaniaigpns, and our ability to secure financing for mmvestment activities. The amo
of revenue earned will vary based on:

*  The volume of loans funde

*  The volume of loans which prepe

»  The timing and availability of leverag

e The amount of nc-performing loans

. Recognition of premium, if any, on secondary mat&ah sales

»  The interest rate and type of loans originated {hdrefixed or variable); an
*  The general level of interest rat

The majority of our loans have variable rates dériest. As a result, during periods of declinintgiiast rates, our inter
income is subject to interest rate risk. See “lEanQuantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Addarket Risk.”

Generally, in order to fund new loans, we need dadw funds or sell loans. Since 2004, our leverhge primarily bee
provided through shotterm credit facilities and the issuance of juniobardinated notes. Prior to that, our primary sewt fund:
was structured loan transactions/securitizationsstructured loan transactions, we contributed dotm special purpose entit
(“SPEs")in exchange for cash and subordinate financiatésts in those entities. At the current time, trezkat for commercial loz
assetbacked securitizations is not available to us. Rugl) the lack of a market for our type of sedmation and the prospect tl
this market may never recover to its prior formmay return with costs or structures that we maybeoable to accept and (2) limi
availability of credit facilities, we continue todus our lending activities on originating loanslenthe SBA 7(a) program.

RECENT ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The comparability of our financial statements wHeaied by two accounting rule changes, both eiffecianuary 1, 2010. T
first accounting change was the consolidation efaisets and liabilities of our dilance sheet securitization entities. Previoust
interests in these entities were reflected asmethinterests in transferred assets. The impamtitdalance sheet was a “gross op”
approximately $20 million in assets and liabilitegs)January 1, 2010.

The second accounting change affected our accgufinsecondary market loan sale transactions g#he of the guarante
portion of our SBA 7(a) loans to investors). Theugunteed portion of these loans may be sold (13 foash premium and a minim
1% required servicing spread, (2) future servigpgead and no cash premium or (3) future servisprgad and a cash premiun
10%. Previously, all of these types of transactioese recorded as salesd., we recorded premium income). Effective Janua
2010, we are required to permanently treat ceghthe proceeds received from legally sold portiohkans (those loans sold sol
for excess spread or those sold for a cash prerandrexcess spread) as secured borrowings forf¢éheflthe loan. For loans sold
a cash premium and excess spread, the cash pramamortized as a reduction to interest expense theelife of the loan. Due
this accounting change, our premium income deccefisen $1,343,000 during 2009 to $709,000 during®@hile our sales of tl
guaranteed portion of SBA 7(a) loans increase®&4pmillion in 2010 from $25.0 million in 2009.dMmiums collected during 20
which have been deferred due to this accountingighand are reflected as a liability on our comlstéd balance sheet w
$1,439,000 at December 31, 2010.

LENDING ACTIVITIES
Overview

We are a national lender that primarily origindtems to small businesses, principally in the lgdiservice hospitality indust
In addition to first liens on the real estate of tkelated business, our loans are typically peisogaaranteed by the principals of
entities obligated on the loans.

We identify loan origination opportunities throughrsonal contacts, internet referrals, attendaht@de shows and meetin
direct mailings, advertisements in trade publicgagiand other marketing methods. We also generatss ldnrough referrals from ri
estate and loan brokers, franchise representatixestjng borrowers, lawyers and accountants. Paysrere sometimes made to non-
affiliated individuals who assist in generating Hoapplications, with such payments generally nateeding 1% of the princig
amount of the originated loan.
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Limited Service Hospitality Industry

Our outstanding loans are generally collateralibgdirst liens on limited service hospitality prafies and are typically fi
owneroperated facilities operating under national frases, including, among others, Comfort Inn, Hamgtan Days Inn, Holida
Inn Express, Ramada and Best Western. We belieateftthnchise operations offer attractive lendingpantunities because st
businesses generally employ proven business ca)degpte national reservation systems and advegtisomsistent product quali
are screened and monitored by franchisors and giinbave a higher rate of success when comparethtr independently opera
hospitality businesses.

Loan Originations and Underwriting

We believe that we successfully compete in ceraitors of the commercial real estate finance mapkenarily the limite
service hospitality sector, due to our diligent emvditing which is benefitted by our understandofgour borrowersbusinesses al
our responsive customer service.

We consider traditional underwriting criteria swah

*  The underlying cash flow of the tenant or ov-occupant

*  The components, value and replacement cost ofdirewer s collateral (primarily real estate
e The industry and competitive environment in whikl borrower operate

e The financial strength of the guarantc

e Analysis of local market condition

e The ease with which the collateral can be liquidz

e The existence of any secondary repayment soL

. Evaluation of the property operator; ¢

»  The existence of a franchise relationsl

Upon receipt of a completed loan application, acedit department conducts: (1) a detailed analyksthe potential loan, whic
typically includes a thirgearty licensed appraisal and a valuation by ouditidepartment of the property that will collatézel the
loan to ensure compliance with loanvalue percentages, (2) a site inspection for rete collateralized loans, (3) a review of
borrower’s business experience, (4) a review of ibeower’s credit history, and (5) an analysistteé borrower’s debt-service-
coverage, debt-to-equity and other applicable satide also utilize local market economic informatto the extent available.

We believe that our typical ndBBA 7(a) Program loan is distinguished from thoksame of our competitors by the follow
characteristics:

. Substantial down payments are requirafe usually require an initial down payment of tests than 20% of the total ¢
of the project being financed. Our experience Hasve that the likelihood of full repayment of a foacreases if tr
owner/operator is required to make an initial amdssantial financial commitment to the project lgefimanced

e “Cash outs” are typically not permittedGenerally, we will not make a loan in an amoueiager than the lesser of 80%
either the replacement cost or current appraiste\af the property which is collateral for the hod&or example, a ho
property may have been originally constructed fotoat of $2.0 million, with the owner/operator iaily borrowingc
$1.6 million of that amount. At the time of the bmwer’s loan refinancing request, the property securhrg lban i
appraised at $4.0 million. Some of our competitarght loan from 70% to 90% or more of the new afga@ value of th
property and permit the owner/operator to receivash distribution from the proceeds. Generally,waeild not perm
this type of*cast-out” distribution.

«  The obligor is personally liable for the loarWe typically require the principals of the boremwto personally guarant
the loan.
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General information on our loans receivable, nets as follows:

At December 31

2010 2009

Weightec Weightec

Average Average

Loans Receivable, n Interest Loans Receivable, n Interest

Amount % Rate Amount % Rate
(Dollars in thousands

Variable-rate— LIBOR $ 125,60t 53.9% 42% $ 132,16. 67.2% 4.C%
Fixec-rate 63,26: 27.1% 9.1% 45,67¢ 23.2% 9.C%
Variable-rate— prime 44,34¢ 19.(% 5.7% 18,80: 9.6% 5.4%
Total $ 233,21¢ 100.(% 5.8% $ 196,64: 100.(% 5.2%

Our variablerate loans generally require monthly payments afggpal and interest, reset on a quarterly basignhortize th
principal over the remaining life of the loan. Fikete loans generally require level monthly paymesftprincipal and intere
calculated to amortize the principal over the revimg life of the loan.

Due to a change in accounting rules, beginning agnl, 2010, (1) we now record 100% of SBA 7(a)nkaold as loal
receivable on our balance sheet versus only thiégopawhich is retained by us and (2) we consolidatee loans receivable of ¢
previously off-balance sheet securitizations whigre primarily fixedrate loans. Since we are primarily originating SBA) loans
our percentage of variable-rate — prime loans edglitinue to increase over time.

Industry Concentration

The distribution of our retained loan portfolio imglustry was as follows at December 31, 2010:

Number % of

of Total

Loans Cost (1) Cost

(Dollars in thousands

Hotels and motel 222 $ 220,19: 93.£%
Convenience stores/service stati 16 9,26¢ 3.%%
Services 23 1,807 0.8%
Restaurant 28 92¢ 0.4%
Retail 8 564 0.2%
Other 20 2,10¢ 0.9%
317 $ 234,86 100.(%

(1) Loan portfolio outstanding before loan loss ressraed deferred commitment fe
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Loan Portfolio Statistics

Information on our loans receivable (“Retained fid”), loans which have been sold (either to the speciglgse entities
secondary market sales of SBA 7(a) program loand)amn which we had retained interests (the “Soldrisd) and our Retaine
Portfolio combined with our Sold Loans (the “Aggatg Portfolio”) was as follows:

At December 31

2010 2009
Aggregat Sold Retainec Aggregat Sold Retainec
Portfolio Loans (1 Portfolio Portfolio Loans Portfolio
(Dollars in thousands

Portfolio outstanding (2 $ 284,45: $ 49,58¢ $ 234,86 $ 273,68 $ 75,44 $ 198,24
Weighted average interest ri 5.7% 5.€% 5.8% 5.7% 6.7% 5.2%
Average yield (3 5.8% 5.4% 5.8% 5.8% 6.8% 5.5%

Weighted average contractual

maturity in year: 15.t 18.2 14.¢ 14.¢ 14.¢ 15.C

Doubtful loans (4 $ 917 $ — $ 917 $ 3,23¢ $ 15¢ $ 3,081
Hospitality industry concentratic 88.¢% 66.(% 93.8% 88.4% 77.(% 92.1%
Texas concentration (! 20.2% 23.2% 19.5% 22.6% 23.% 22.2%

1)
(2)
(3)

Effective January 1, 2010, based on a change in@atiing rules, we now consolidate the SF
Loan portfolio outstanding before loan loss reseraad deferred commitment fe
The calculation of average yield divides our instrencome, prepayment fees and other loan relaged,fadjusted by t

provision for loan losses, by the weighted avermagtstanding portfolio

(4)

Loans classified as Doubtful are generally loandalvhare not complying with their contractual terntee collection of tr

balance of the principal is considered impaired ama which the fair value of the collateral is legsn the remainin
unamortized principal balance. These loans aredglhy placed on noraccrual status and are generally in the foreclo:
process. We do not include the remaining outstandirincipal of serviced loans pertaining to the govment guarantes
portion of loans sold into the secondary marketsithe SBA has guaranteed payment of principahese loans

()

Loans Funded

No other concentrations greater than or equal t8aléxisted at December 31, 2010 or 2C

The following table is a breakdown of loans fundewding the years indicated:

Years Ended December

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands
Commercial mortgage loai $ 4,90¢ $ 2,42t $ 19,73¢ $ 28,41¢ $ 36,85¢
SBA 7(a) Program loar 33,53: 28,01( 10,97: 2,88¢ 8,531
SBA 504 program loans (. — — 3,87 2,452 6,294
Total loans funde: $ 38,44( $ 30,43: $ 34,58 $ 33,75¢ $ 51,68t¢

(1) Represents second mortgages originated throughSBA 504 Program which have been repaid by certifiedelopmel

companies
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SBA Programs
General

We utilize programs established by the SBA to gateeloan origination opportunities and provide uthwa funding source .
follows:

*  We have an SBLC that originates loans through B& %(a) program

We participate as a private lender in the SBA 5@gdgRam which allows us to originate first mortgdgans with lowe
loar-to-value ratios

«  We have two licensed SBICs regulated under the ISBasiness Investment Act of 1958, as amended. SBRICs us
long-term funds provided by the SBA, together wiibir own capital, to provide longrm collateralized loans to eligil
small businesses, as defined under SBA regulat

Our regulated SBA subsidiaries are periodically neixed and audited by the SBA to determine compéamdth SBA
regulations.

SBA7(a) Program

Under the SBA 7(a) program, the SBA typically gudess 75% of qualified loans over $150,000. While eligibility
requirements of the SBA 7(a) program vary by trausgiry of the borrower and other factors, the galngligibility requirements, «
amended during 2010, are that: (1) gross salebeobbrrower cannot exceed size standards set bgBle(i.e., $7.0 million foi
limited service hospitality properties), (2) liquabsets of the borrower and affiliates cannot excgeecified limits, and (3) tl
maximum aggregate SBA loan guarantees to a borreamnot exceed $3.75 million. Maximum maturities 8BA 7(a) prograi
loans are 25 years for real estate and betweem sk 10 years for the purchase of machinery, tumj fixtures and/or equipme
In order to operate as an SBLC, a licensee is requd maintain a minimum net worth (as definedSBA regulations) of the grea
of (1) 10% of its outstanding loans receivable afiter investments or (2) $1.0 million, and is subj@ certain other regulatc
restrictions such as change in control provisi@es “Item 1A. Risk Factors.”

SBA 504 Progran

The SBA 504 Program assists small businesses minitg subordinated, lontprm financing by guaranteeing debent
available through certified development compani@&DCs”) for the purpose of acquiring land, building, maennand equipme
and for modernizing, renovating or restoring erigtfacilities and sites. A typical finance struetdor an SBA 504 Program proj
would include a first mortgage covering 50% of ffreject cost from a private lender, a second mgegabtained from a CLC
covering up to 40% of the project cost and a cbatron of at least 10% of the project cost by thiegipals of the small busines:
being assisted. We typically require at least a 2@tribution of the equity in a project by our tmwers. The SBA does r
guarantee the first mortgage. Although the totasiof projects utilizing the SBA 504 Program anéraited, currently the maximu
amount of subordinated debt in any individual pcoje generally $5.0 million (or $5.5 million foegain projects). Typical proje
costs range in size from $1.0 million to $6.0 roifli Our SBA 504 Program has been inactive sincddginning of 2008 due to ¢
limited liquidity.

SBIC Program

We originate loans to small businesses throughS®BICs. According to SBA regulations, SBICs may mbkegterm loans t
small businesses and invest in the equity secsirdfesuch businesses. Under present SBA regulateiggble small business
include those that have a net worth not exceedir@riiillion and have average annual fully taxableineome not exceeding $t
million for the most recent two fiscal years. Te tbxtent approved, an SBIC can issue debenturesemmincipal and interest
guaranteed to be paid to the debt holder in thetestnon-payment by the SBIC. As a result, theesidbires’costs of funds a
usually lower compared to alternative fixed-ratarses of funds available to us.

STRUCTURED LOAN TRANSACTIONS

While the securitization market is not currentlyiable financing vehicle for us, prior to 2004, ustiured loan transactions w
our primary method of obtaining funds for new laaiginations. In structured loan transactions, watdbuted loans to an SPE
exchange for a subordinated financial intereshat entity and obtained an opinion of counsel thatcontribution of the loans to !
SPE constituted a “true sal@f the loans. The SPE issued notes payable threuphvate placement to third parties and
distributed a portion of the notes payable proceeds. The notes payable are collateralized sbiglthe assets of the SPE. Since
SPEs met the definition of qualified SPEs (“QSPE®#® accounted for the structured loan transactisrsabes of our loans; and ¢
result, neither the loans contributed to the QSBERIme notes payable issued by the QSPE were iadlirdour consolidated financ
statements. The terms of the notes payable issyetlebQSPEs provide that the partners of these @ZHPE& not liable for at
payment on the notes. Accordingly, if the QSPEktéapay the principal or interest due on the noties sole recourse of the holc
of the notes is against the assets of the QSPEsha¥e no obligation to pay the notes, nor do thidre of the notes have ¢
recourse against our assets. We service the laagagnt to the transaction docume
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When structured loan sale transactions were coeghletur ownership interests in the QSPEs were ateduor as retaine
interests in transferred assets (“Retained Intgfeahd recorded at the present value of the estinfatack cash flows to be recei\
from the QSPE. Effective January 1, 2010, due ¢hange in accounting rules, we now consolidateagsets and liabilities of t
QSPEs.

All of our securitization transactions provide dean-up call.” A “clean-up callis an option to repurchase the remail
transferred assets when the amount of the outstgradisets (or corresponding notes payable outsignfdills to a level at which tl
cost of servicing those assets becomes burdensome.

TAX STATUS

PMC Commercial has elected to be taxed as a RE#iEntie Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amentedCode”).As ¢
REIT, PMC Commercial is generally not subject taéml income tax (including any applicable alteiv@iminimum tax) to th
extent that it distributes at least 90% of its RE&Xable income to shareholders. Certain of PMC ®eruial’s subsidiarie:
including First Western and PMCIC, have electetheédreated as taxable REIT subsidiaries; thust #anings are subject to U
Federal income tax. To the extent PMC Commeritdkable REIT subsidiaries retain their earninys @rofits, these earnings ¢
profits will be unavailable for distribution to oghareholders.

PMC Commercial may, however, be subject to ceffaideral excise taxes and state and local taxets amcome and proper
If PMC Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT in ataxable year, it will be subject to Federal incaiaees at regular corporate re
(including any applicable alternative minimum tax)d will not be able to qualify as a REIT for faubsequent taxable years. RE
are subject to a number of organizational and dipera requirements under the Code. See “ltem 1i8k Ractors —REIT Relate:
Risks” for additional tax status information.

EMPLOYEES

We employed 32 individuals including marketing pmsdionals, investment professionals, operationdegsmnals ar
administrative staff as of December 31, 2010. Weehemployment agreements with our executive offic€&ur operations &
conducted from our Dallas, Texas office. We belitheerelationship with our employees is good.

COMPETITION

When originating loans we compete with other sggcieommercial lenders, banks, broker dealers, roRelTs, savings ar
loan associations, insurance companies and otligiesrihat originate loans. Many of these competithave greater financial ¢
managerial resources than us, are able to proeidéces we are not able to providee(, depository services), and may be better
to withstand the impact of economic downturns.

Variable-rate lendingFor our variablerate loan products, we believe we compete effelgtiva the basis of interest rates,
longterm maturities and payment schedules, the quafityur service, our reputation as a lender, tineesdit analysis and grea
responsiveness to renewal and refinancing reqirestsborrowers.

Fixed-rate lendingin the current market, borrowers are looking prehately for fixedrate loans; however, our ability to of
fixed-rate loans is constrained by our cost andlabiity of funds.

SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT REPORTS

We file with or furnish to the Securities and Exega Commission (“SEC"n accordance with the Securities Exchange A
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) our annymdnte on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Fo®rQland our current repo
on Form 8K. These reports are available free of charge onweebsite, www.pmctrust.com/investors, as soon essanabl
practicable after we electronically file the infation with the SEC. We are providing the addressuointernet site solely for t
information of investors. We do not intend the addrto be an active link or to otherwise incorpothe contents of the website i
this report.

The SEC maintains an internet site, www.sec.gat, tbhntains reports, proxy and information statesand other informatic
regarding issuers that file electronically with BEC.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Due to the complexity of the Company, a wide rasfdactors could materially affect our future deM@nents and performanc
In addition to the factors affecting specific buesa operations identified in connection with theadtion of these operations a
the financial results of these operations describlsgwhere in this report, management has idedtifie following important factol
that could cause actual results to differ mategidom those reflected in forwaldeking statements or from our historical resu
These factors, which are not atlelusive, could have a material impact on our &ss#uations, results of operations or financ
condition and could also impair our ability to m&m dividend distributions at current or anticigat levels.

Investment Risks— Lending Activities

Changes in economic conditions could have a contimg adverse effect on our profitability.

Turmoil in the financial markets adversely affeet®nomic activity. This turmoil (including the efteof any perceived or actu
economic recession) subjects our borrowers to &iigustress which could impair their ability toiséf their obligations to us. Durir
periods of economic stress, delinquencies and $assg increase and losses may be substantial.

In addition, an increase in price levels generallyin price levels in a particular sector suchitesenergy sector, could result
a shift in consumer demand away from limited servimspitality properties which collateralize thejonidy of our loans. A
significant increase in gasoline prices within arsiperiod of time could affect the limited servieector of the hospitality industry.
significant portion of the limited service hospittalloans collateralizing our loans are locatedmterstate highways. When gas pri
sharply increase, occupancy rates for propertiestéal on interstate highways may decrease. Thisaaase a reduction in reven
per available room. Any sustained increase in geqgirices could materially and adversely affee fimancial condition of oL
borrowers which could cause us to experience isectdefaults.

Commercial mortgage loans expose us to a high degref risk associated with investing in real estate.

The performance and value of our loans depends op@ny factors beyond our control. Commercial rashte has experienc
cyclical performance and significant fluctuationstle past that impacts the value of our real estallateralized loans. The ultime
performance and value of our loans are subjectisiks rassociated with the ownership and operatiorthef properties whic

collateralize our loans, including the property ewa ability to operate the property with sufficierastsh flow to meet debt servi
requirements. The performance and value of thegtigs collateralizing our loans may be adverségcted by:

. Changes in national economic conditio

. Changes in local real estate market conditionstduwdanges in national or local economic conditionshanges in loc
property market characteristic

e The extent of the impact of the disruptions in ¢hedit markets

. The lack of demand for commercial real estatdateralized loans used in as$eteked securitizations which may
substantially reduced as a result of the disruptiarthe credit market

. Competition from other propertie

. Changes in interest rates and the condition oflgi# and equity capital marke
»  The ongoing need for capital improvemel

. Increases in real estate tax rates and other apgetpenses (including utilities
* Asignificant increase in gasoline prices in a siperiod of time;

*  Adverse changes in governmental rules and fisdaips; acts of God, including earthquakes, hurresaand other natu
disasters; acts of war or terrorism; or a decr@asige availability of or an increase in the cosinsurance

*  Adverse changes in zoning lav
»  The impact of environmental legislation and commp@with environmental laws; ar
. Other factors that are beyond our control or thatrod of the commercial property owne

In the event that any of the properties underhyng loans experience any of the foregoing eventscourrences, the value
and return on, such loans may be negatively impadt@reover, our profitability and the market pricieour common shares may
negatively impacted.
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Payment defaults and other credit risks in our invetment portfolio have increased, and may to contineito increase, which he
caused, and may continue to cause, adverse effegtsour cash flows, net income and ability to makeisitributions.

Recessionary economic conditions and adverse dawelots in the credit markets have led to businessraction, liquidit
issues and other problems for many of the busisessdinance. As a result, payment defaults andratredit risks in our investme
portfolio have substantially increased, and maytiocoe to increase, which has caused, and may a@ntm cause, adverse effect:
our cash flows, net income and ability to makerdiations.

Changes to the facts and circumstances of the Wwerrand/or the physical condition of the collataraterlying the loan, ti
hospitality industry and the economy may requie ¢stablishment of significant additional loan losserves. To the extent one
several of our borrowers experience significantrafeg difficulties and we are forced to liquiddkes collateral underlying the lo:
future losses may be substantial.

Historically, we have not experienced significansdes for real estate secured loans due to ouovbers’ equity in thei
properties, the value of the underlying collatetag cash flows from operations of the businessesather factors such as hav
recourse to the guarantors. However, if the econontyze commercial real estate market does notaugrwe could experience
increase in credit losses. In addition, due torémently ended economic recession and the curoemioenic environment, we belie
that in general, our borrowergquity in their properties has eroded and may &srterode which may result in an increas
foreclosure activity and credit losses.

We have increased, and may continue to increagejfigpand general loan loss reserves due to cugeneral business g
economic conditions and increased credit and liuidsks which have had, and may continue to hareadverse effect on ¢
financial performance. Our loan portfolio has bealversely affected by, and may continue to be adWeraffected by, adver
economic developments affecting the business sedtowhich our borrowers operate, primarily the ited service hospitali
industry, reductions in the value of commerciall estate generally and the reduced availabilityedinancing for commercial re
estate investments as they mature. There can besupance that the loan loss reserves we estabksty particular reporting peri
will be sufficient or will not increase in a subseqt reporting period.

The commercial real estate loans we originate araibject to the risks of default and foreclosure whib could result in losses t
us.

The commercial real estate loans we originate afkateralized by incomeroducing properties (primarily limited serv
hospitality properties) and we are subject to riskdefault and foreclosure. In the event of a difander a mortgage loan, we be
risk of loss of principal to the extent of any @é&fihcy between the value of the collateral anduhpgaid principal balance of t
mortgage loan, which could have a material adveffert on our cash flows from operations. If a barer defaults on one of ¢
commercial real estate loans and the underlyinggntg collateralizing the loan is insufficient tatisfy the outstanding balance
the loan, we may suffer a loss. In addition, dutimg foreclosure process we may incur costs relatéite protection of our collate
including unpaid real estate taxes, legal feesirarsce and operating shortfalls to the extent tbegrty is being operated by a court-
appointed receiver.

Foreclosure and bankruptcy are complex and somstiemgthy processes that are subject to Federalstatd laws ar
regulations. An action to foreclose on a propestgubject to many of the delays and expenses ef tatvsuits if the defendant rai:
defenses or counterclaims. In the event of a delguh mortgagor, these restrictions, among othiegs, may impede our ability
foreclose on or sell the mortgaged property orlttaim proceeds sufficient to repay all amounts tueis on the mortgage loi
Borrowers have the option of seeking Federal bagstkyuprotection which could delay the foreclosuregess. In conjunction wi
the bankruptcy process, the terms of the loan aggats may be modified. Typically, delays in theefdosure process will have
negative impact on our results of operations andifmncial condition due to direct and indirect osncurred and possit
deterioration of the value of the collateral.

Our ability to sell any properties we own as a ltesfi foreclosure will be impacted by changes iromamic and othe
conditions. Our ability to sell these propertiesl dne prices we receive on their sale are affebtethany factors, including but r
limited to, the number of potential buyers, the bemof competing properties on the market and atierket conditions. If we a
required to hold a property for an extended peabtime or choose to operate the property, it cdge a negative impact on
results of operations and/or financial conditiore da direct and indirect costs incurred and possilgterioration of the value of 1
collateral resulting in impairment losses.
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We have specific risks associated with originatingpans under the SBA 7(a) program.

We sell the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) foamto the secondary market. These sales havetedsul our earnin
premium income and/or have created a stream ofdgervicing spread. There can be no assurancevéhaitill be able to contint
originating these loans, that a secondary markiéewist or that we will continue to realize premma upon the sale of the guarant
portion of these loans. For a few months during 208 and early 2009 the secondary market for 3@ loans offered minim
loan premiums and we suspended loan sales. Whelaipms rebounded during 2010 there can be no agsuthat premiums w
remain at current levels.

Since we sell the guaranteed portion of our SBA It@ns, we incur credit risk on the ngnaranteed portion of the loans.
share prarata with the SBA in any recoveries. In the evendefault on an SBA loan, our pursuit of remedigaiast a borrower
subject to SBA approval. If the SBA establishest thdoss on an SBA guaranteed loan is attributablsignificant technici
deficiencies in the manner in which the loan wagioated, funded or serviced by us, the SBA mak seeovery of the principal lo
related to the deficiency from us. With respedit® guaranteed portion of SBA loans that have Iseéh the SBA will first honor i
guarantee and then seek compensation from us ievna that a loss is deemed to be attributabledionical deficiencies. There ¢
be no assurance that we will not experience siganiti deficiencies with our underwriting of SBA Isawhich could have a matel
adverse affect on us through failure of the SBAdnor a guarantee or the costs to correct anyideéies. Although the SBA h
never declined to honor its guarantees with resige8BA loans made by our SBA 7(a) subsidiary, s&usance can be given that
SBA would not attempt to do so in the future.

Curtailment of our ability to utilize the SBA 7(a) program could adversely affect our financial conditon and results o
operations.

We are dependent upon the Federal government totaimaithe SBA 7(a) loan program. There can be morasice that th
program will be maintained or that loans will conté to be guaranteed at current levels. In additiere can be no assurance
our SBA 7(a) lending subsidiary will be able to ntain its status as a Preferred Lender or thatamengaintain our SBA 7(a) licens

If we cannot continue originating and selling gawraent guaranteed loans, we would experience a aseia future servicir
spreads and no longer generate premium income. Eno@atotime the SBA has reached its internal budgeteddimnd ceased
guarantee loans for a stated period of time. Initexhg the SBA may change its rules regarding loansCongress may adc
legislation that would have the effect of discountilg or changing loan programs.

Our profitability may be impacted by the volume of SBA 7(a) loan originations.

Our net income and ability to continue to pay dérids at current or anticipated levels is dependeon the volume of our SE
7(a) loan originations due to the ability to sék tgovernment guaranteed portion of these loansrigiinating SBA 7(a) loans, v
compete with other SBA 7(a) lenders, specialty cemual lenders, banks, broker dealers, other REBEsjings and lo¢
associations, insurance companies and other ertité originate loans, many of which have grefitancial resources than us. 4
unanticipated reduction in the volume of these loaginations could negatively affect us.

There are significant risks in lending to small bugiesses.

Our loans receivable consist primarily of loansteall, privatelyewned businesses. There is no publicly availatfiernmatior
about these businesses; therefore, we must relyuorown due diligence to obtain information in cention with our investme
decisions. Our borrowers may not meet net incorash dlow and other coverage tests typically impdsgdanks. A borrowes’
ability to repay its loan may be adversely impadigchumerous factors, including a downturn intitdustry or other negative local
macro economic conditions. Deterioration in a baeds financial condition angrospects may be accompanied by deteriorati
the collateral for the loan. In addition, small inesses typically depend on the management tatamdsefforts of one person o
small group of people for their success. The Idsseovices of one or more of these persons couwl fam adverse impact on
operations of the small business. Small companiestypically more vulnerable to customer preferenagaarket conditions a
economic downturns and often need additional chpiteexpand or compete. These factors may havergradt on the ultima
recovery of our loans receivable from such busieeskoans to small businesses, therefore, involligla degree of business
financial risk, which can result in substantialdes and accordingly should be considered specealativ
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We depend on the accuracy and completeness of infoation provided by potential borrowers and guarantas.

In deciding whether to extend credit or enter imémsactions with potential borrowers and/or tigeiarantors, we rely on cert
information furnished to us by or on behalf of pdital borrowers and/or guarantors. We also relyrepresentations of potent
borrowers and/or guarantors as to the accuracyampleteness of that information. Our financialdition and results of operatic
could be negatively impacted to the extent we oglfinancial statements or other information tlsaniaterially misleading.

Longer term loans and our real estate owned (“REO”may be illiquid and their value may decrease.

Our commercial real estate loans and real estapeirac through foreclosure are relatively illiquitvestments. Therefore,
may be unable to vary our portfolio promptly inpesse to changing economic, financial and investroenditions. As a result, t
fair market value of these investments may decrigatbe future and losses may result.

There is typically no public market or establishestling market for the loans we originate. Theyilld nature of our loans m
adversely affect our ability to dispose of suchnbat times when it may be advantageous or negefmaus to liquidate suc
investments.

Changes in interest rates could negatively affecehding operations, which could result in reduced eaings and dividends.

As a result of our current dependence on variadtie-loans, our interest income will be reducedindutow interest raf
environments. During any period that LIBOR or thieme rate decreases, interest income on our lodhdegline.

Changes in interest rates do not have an immeiligdact on the interest income of our fixete loans. Our interest rate risk
our fixedrate loans is primarily due to loan prepayments iaadurities. The average maturity of our loan miidfis less than
average contractual terms because of prepaymessainding market liquidity, the average life of madg loans tends to incre
when the current mortgage rates are substantialyeh than rates on existing mortgage loans andyarsely, decrease when
current mortgage rates are substantially lower tlaées on existing mortgage loans (due to refimegeciof fixedrate loans at low:
rates).

Our net income is dependent upon the “sprdztiveen the rate at which we borrow funds and ditee @t which we loan the
funds. During periods of changing interest rateterest rate mismatches could negatively impachetiincome, dividend yield, a
the market price of our common shares.

At the present time, we are primarily originatireyiable-rate loans and have certain debt whicarigterm and at fixed intere
rates. If the yield on loans originated with furalstained from fixedate borrowings fails to cover the cost of suchd&rnour cas
flow will be reduced.

Competition might prevent us from originating loansat favorable yields, which would harm our resultsof operations and ou
ability to continue paying dividends at current oranticipated levels.

Our net income depends on our ability to origilatins at favorable spreads, over our cost of fulrdsriginating loans, w
compete with other SBA 7(a) lenders, specialty cemual lenders, banks, broker dealers, other REBEsjings and lo¢
associations, insurance companies and other entfitéd originate loans, many of which have grefibancial resources than us. A
result, we may not be able to originate sufficilr@ns at favorable spreads over our cost of fumtigch would harm our results
operations and consequently, our ability to corgipaying dividends at current or anticipated levels
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Our operating results will depend, in part, on theeffectiveness of our marketing programs.

In general, due to the highly competitive natureoaf business, we must execute efficient and é¥egbromotional an
marketing programs. We may, from time to time, dwour marketing strategies, including the timingnature of promotion:
programs. The effectiveness of our marketing ammption practices is important to our ability tadbe potential borrowers a
retain existing borrowers. If our marketing progsaare not successful, our results of operationsfemahcial condition may b
adversely affected.

Liquidity and Capital Resources Risks

In general, in order for us to repay indebtednessadimely basis, we may be required to disposzsséts when we would r
otherwise do so and at prices which may be belevrigt book value of such assets. Dispositions sétaould have a materi
adverse effect on our financial condition and résof operations.

If an event of default occurs under our revolving cedit facility (“Revolver”), the lender is permitted to accelerate repaymer
of the outstanding obligation.

The occurrence of an event of default permits #relér under our Revolver to accelerate repaymeuatl afmounts due, t
terminate commitments thereunder, and allows theigage loan collateral held as security for the dhear to be liquidated by tt
lender to satisfy any balance outstanding and dusuant to the Revolver.

The existence of an event of default restrictsramfborrowing under our Revolver and from declaniiigjdends or other cas
distributions to our shareholders. There can bassarance that an event of default will not occur.

Our operating results could be negatively impactedy our inability to access certain financial markes.

We rely upon access to capital markets as a sadidiguidity to satisfy our working capital needgow our business and inve
in loans. Turmoil in the capital markets has caistrd equity and debt capital available for invesitnin commercial real esta
Prolonged recent recessionary conditions, contirdigtiess in the limited service hospitality indysand increased loan losses cc
further limit access to these markets and mayicgsts from continuing our current business strategimplementing new busine
strategies.

Our operating results could be negatively impactedy our inability to extend the maturity of, or replace, our Revolver or
acceptable terms, if at all.

If we are unable to replace or extend our Revolymn its maturity (December 31, 2011) or if therterof the extension we
cost prohibitive, we could be required to repay tlutstanding balance which would become immediadely or may choose
accept terms which are significantly less favoraibleterms of costs or restrictions than the curremtns of our facility. Ou
investments are predominantly loteym; therefore, if the Revolver matures withouteaitension or replacement, we could be foi
to liquidate or otherwise dispose of assets am& tive would not ordinarily do so and/or at pricdsich we may not believe a
reasonable. In addition, if the Revolver is noeexied or replaced, we would need an additionaksoofrfunds to originate loans a
grow. Our results of operations, prospects andhfired condition could be negatively impacted if fRevolver is not extended or
extended with a significant increase in rate, f@e®strictions.

Turmoil in financial markets could increase our cos$ of borrowing and impede access to or increase theost of financing our
operations or investments.

To the extent credit and equity markets continuexperience significant disruption, many businesg#éisbe unable to obtai
financing on acceptable terms, if at all. In addifi when equity markets experience rapid and widetufations in value, crec
availability could diminish or disappear. Duringripels of credit and equity market disruptions, oast of borrowing may increa
and it may be more difficult or impossible to obtéinancing on acceptable terms.

The market demand for structured loan transactionsmay not return to previous levels which would negately affect our
earnings and the potential for growth.

Continued unavailability of the asdatcked securities market to us has had, and coulihcie to have, an adverse effect on
financial condition and results of operations. @umg-term ability to grow may depend on our abilitysell assebacked securitie
through structured loan transactions. In the cireeonomic market, the availability of funds hasiéiminished and/or has beco
non-existent or the “spreadharged for funds has increased. In addition, ipalior geopolitical events could impact the auaillty
and cost of capital.
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A number of factors could impair our ability, orteal our decision, to complete a structured loans@aation. These factc
include, but are not limited to:

. Investors in the type of asdetcked securities that we place are limited and imenease our cost of capital by wider
the “spreads” (over a benchmark such as LIBOR eastury rates) they require in order to begin pugiclgpthese asset-
backed securities agai

e A deterioration in the performance of our loangha loans of our prior transactions (for exampighbr than expectt
loan losses or delinquencies) may deter potentiastors from purchasing our asbatked securities assuming inve
demand for our ass-backed securities returr

e A deterioration in the operations or market peroeptf the limited service sector of the hospitalitdustry may det
potential investors from purchasing our adsatked securities or lower the available ratingnfrthe rating agenci
assuming investor demand for our a-backed securities returns; a

« A change in the underlying criteria utilized by traing agencies may cause transactions to redeiver ratings tha
previously issued thereby increasing the cost artransactions

Currently, a market for our type of securitizatidoes not exist. Continued unavailability or an @aged cost of this source
funds could have a material adverse effect on mantial condition and results of operations sime®king capital may not t
available or available at acceptable “spreadsutalffuture loan originations.

The market demand for secondary market sales may déne or be temporarily suspended.

The market for the sale of the government guarangeetion of SBA 7(a) loans may diminish and/or gremiums, if any
achieved on selling loans into that market may dé@uced which could have a material adverse effacowr ability to creal
availability under our Revolver and originate nemans. This market dislocation could be a resuliexfreased investor demand
asset-backed securities in general or loans tateplar industry and/or increased investor yieduirements.

Continuation of the unprecedented market volatilitymay have an impact on our access to capital market

The capital and credit markets have experiencedtiliol and disruption. The volatility and disrupti reached unpreceden
levels during 2008 including decreased liquidityatmuire the government guaranteed portion of legnish are typically sold in
the secondary market. In addition, the capital m@rkightened credit availability to companies withregard to their underlyil
financial strength. If recent levels of market dgion and volatility were to continue or deteosit, we may experience an adv:
effect, which may be material, on our ability t@ass capital markets and on our financial condiiod results of operations.

We use leverage to fund our capital needs which maijies the effect of changing interest rates on ougarnings.

We have borrowed funds and intend to borrow adufiidunds for our capital needs. Private lenders the SBA have fixe
dollar claims on our assets superior to the cladinthe holders of our common shares. Leverage rfiagrthe effect that rising
falling interest rates have on our earnings. Argréase in the interest rate earned on investmerasdess of the interest rate on
funds obtained from borrowings would cause our inebme and earnings per share to increase more tilgnwould withot
leverage, while any decrease in the interest r@teeel by us on investments would cause net incordearnings per share to dec
by a greater amount than they would without leveragverage is thus generally considered a spéeiiatvestment technique.

Investment Risks— General

We have concentrations of investments which may natively impact our financial condition and resultsof operations.

Substantially all of our revenue is generated ftoams collateralized by hospitality properties.Ddcember 31, 2010, our lo:
were 94% concentrated in the hospitality indus&gy economic factors that negatively impact thegiadity industry, includin
recessions, depressed commercial real estate mati@tel restrictions, bankruptcies or other jeditor geopolitical events, col
have a material adverse effect on our financiabld@n and results of operations.
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At December 31, 2010, 19.5% of our Retained Poadfaf loans and 20% of our Aggregate Portfolio ofaris wer
collateralized by properties in Texas. No othetestead a concentration of 10% or greater of ouaiRetl Portfolio or Aggrega
Portfolio at December 31, 2010. A decline in ecoimoonditions in any state in which we have a cotragion of investments cot
have a material adverse effect on our financiabld@n and results of operations.

We have not loaned more than 10% of our assetsitosimgle borrower; however, we have an affiliaggdup of obligor
representing greater than 5% of our loans recedvépproximately 6%) at December 31, 2010. Anyidedh the financial status
this group could have a material adverse effeawrfinancial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to prepayment risk on our loans regeable which could result in losses or reduced eamgs and negativel
affect our cash available for distribution to sharéolders.

We experience prepayments on our loans receivABBiming capital availability, during decreasintghest rate environmel
and when competition is greater, prepayments offizad-rate loans have generally been re-loanecoarmitted to be résaned &
lower interest rates than the prepaid loans rebésvdor prepayments on variabilge loans, if the spread we charge over LIBO
the prime rate were to decrease, the lower intea¢ss we would receive on these new loans reckeiwabuld have an adverse eff
on our results of operations and, depending upemate of future prepayments, may further impactresults of operations.

Changes in our business strategy or restructuringfoour business may increase our costs or otherwigdfect the profitability of
our business.

As changes in our business environment occur, wenmead to adjust our business strategies to mesetbhanges or we nr
otherwise find it necessary to restructure our apens. In addition, external events such as chanmgenacroeconomic conditior
may impair the value of our assets. If these chawgevents occur, we may incur costs to chang®asiness strategy and may n
to write-down the value of our assets. We may aksed to invest in new businesses that have skortreturns that are negative
low and whose ultimate business prospects are taicetn any of these events, our costs may inereag may have significe
charges associated with the writewn of assets or return on new investments malpwer than prior to the change in strateg
restructuring.

Our Board of Trust Managers may change operating plicies and strategies without shareholder approvabr prior notice and
such change could harm our business and results operations and the value of our common shares.

Our Board of Trust Managers has the authority talifigcor waive our current operating policies andtgies, including PM
Commercials election to operate as a REIT, without prior e®tnd without shareholder approval. We cannotigréite effect an
changes to our current operating policies andegifas would have on our business, operating reanitsvalue of our comm:
shares; however, the effect could be adverse.

We may not be able to successfully integrate newvastments, which could decrease our profitability.

Our future business and financial performance mepedd, in part, on our ability to grow through sssfully integrating ne
investments. We may incur significant costs in theluation of new investment opportunities. Sudtdlgsintegrating nev
investments puts pressure on our marketing and geament resources and we may fail to invest sufficiends to make
successful. If we are not successful in the intignaof new investments, our results of operationsld be materially adverse
affected, our revenues could decrease and outtgindiiy could decline.

Operating Risks

The occurrence of further adverse developments irhe mortgage finance and credit markets may affectuwr business.

The mortgage industry is under enormous pressueeta@unumerous economic and industry related factdesny companie
operating in the mortgage sector have failed ahdrstare facing serious operating and financiallehges. At the same time, m:
mortgage securities have been downgraded and delieips and credit performance of mortgage loans dateriorated. We fa
significant challenges due to these adverse camditin pricing and financing our mortgage asselt&rd can be no assurance
these conditions will stabilize or that they witbtrworsen. These adverse changes in the mortgageck and credit markets n
eliminate or reduce the availability of, or incredlse cost of, significant sources of funding fer u
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Economic slowdowns, negative political events andhanges in the competitive environment have affecteaind could adversel
affect future operating results.

Several factors impact the hospitality industry. nyleof the businesses to which we have made, or mwdke, loans a
susceptible to economic slowdowns or recessionsefadly, during economic downturns there may beictdns in business tra
and consumers take fewer vacations. In additioa,ethvironment for travel can be significantly aféet by a variety of facto
including adverse weather conditions or naturahstisrs, health concerns, international, politicalmilitary developments ai
terrorist attacks. If revenue for the limited seevsector of the hospitality industry were to eigrare significant sustained reductic
the ability of our borrowers to meet their obligaus could be impaired and loan losses could inerddankruptcies, recessions
other political or geopolitical events could coniinto negatively affect our borrowers. Our rpmrforming assets may incre
during these periods. These conditions could leaddditional losses in our portfolio and a decreiaseur interest income, r
income and the value of our assets.

We believe the risks associated with our operatiares more severe during periods of economic slowdow recessiol
Declining real estate values may further reducelével of new mortgage loan originations, sincerters often use existi
property value increases to support investmentlditisnal properties.

Borrowers may also be less able to meet their debtice, property tax, insurance and/or franchese requirements if tl
commercial real estate market does not reboundhé&umnore, declining commercial real estate valugsificantly increase tr
likelihood that we will incur losses on our loansthe event of default because the value of odatsshl may be insufficient to co
our exposure. Increased payment defaults, foressand/or losses could adversely affect our resefitoperations, financi
condition, liquidity, business prospects and odulitglio make dividend distributions.

Many of our competitors have greater financial emahagerial resources than us and are able to greeivices that we are |
able to provide {.e., depository services). As a result of these commstisize and diversified income resources, they maldite
able to withstand the impact of economic downturns.

There may be significant fluctuations in our quartely results which may adversely affect our share pce.

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate based ommber of factors, including, among others:

* Interest rate change

. Expenses related to REO or assets currently ifotteelosure proces

e The amount of nc-performing loans

e The volume and timing of loan originations and pngpents of our loans receivah

. Recognition of premium, if any, on secondary mat&anh sales

»  The recognition of gains or losses on investme

*  The level of competition in our markets; €

. General economic conditions, especially those whfééct the hospitality industr

As a result of the above factors, quarterly resshtsuld not be relied upon as being indicativeesfgrmance in future quarters.
Establishing loan loss reserves entails significajidgment and may materially impact our results ofoperations.

We evaluate our loans for possible impairment quarterly basis. Our impairment analysis includesegal and specific o
loss reserves. The determination of whether sicgnifi doubt exists and whether a specific loan tessrve is necessary requ
judgment and consideration of the facts and cir¢ant®s existing at the evaluation date. Our evialatf the possible establishm
of a specific loan loss reserve is based on, anotimgy things, a review of our historical loss exgece, the financial strength of ¢
guarantors, adverse circumstances that may afiecability of the borrower to repay interest andggdancipal and, to the extent 1
payment of the loan appears impaired, the estinfaieglalue of the collateral. The estimated faitue of the collateral is determir
by management based on the appraised value, tagsassvalue and/or cash flows. Additionally, furtbeanges to the facts ¢
circumstances of the individual borrowers, the f@diservice hospitality industry and the economy megjuire the establishment
additional loan loss reserves and the effect taresmlts of operations may be material. If our juégts underlying the establishm
of our loan loss reserves are not correct, oudtestioperations may be materially impacted.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had loan lossves of $1,609,000 and $1,257,000, respectivetjuding general loz
loss reserves of $1,100,000 and $650,000, respéetiOur provision for loan losses (excluding retibues of loan losses) as
percentage of our weighted average outstandingslaaceivable (excluding SBA 7(a) loans receivaldebject to securt
borrowings) was 0.46% and 0.57% during 2010 and9208spectively. To the extent one or several af loans experient
significant operating difficulties and we are fodae liquidate the loans, future losses may betsnlial.
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If we lower our dividend, the market value of our @mmon shares may decline.

The level of our dividend is established by our Boaf Trust Managers from time to time based onadety of factors
including market conditions, actual and projectedicflows and REIT taxable income and maintenaridREIT status. Variot
factors could cause our Board of Trust Manageetrease our dividend level, including continueztidrmarket dislocations, teri
of our Revolver covenants, additional borrower défaresulting in a material reduction in our célskvs or material losses resulti
from loan liquidations. If we lower our dividendhet market value of our common shares could be adiyeaffected.

We have risk and substantial expenses associatedtwholding and/or operating our REO.
Our REO is subject to a variety of risks includibgt not limited to:

. We are dependent upon thjpdfty managers to operate and manage our REO. REI&, PMC Commercial or i
subsidiaries cannot directly operate hospitalityperties;

. Our REO may be operated at a loss and such lossgbensubstantia

. Our insurance coverage may not be sufficient tdy fiilsure our businesses and assets from claimfoafidbilities,
including environmental liabilities

*  We may be required to make significant capital iowements to maintain our RE

. In conjunction with the operations of our REO, we aubject to numerous Federal and state laws amdrigmer
regulations including environmental, occupationaalth and safety, state and local taxes and lalating to access f
disabled persons; al

. Under various laws and regulations, we may be densd liable for the costs of remediating or remgvhazardot
substances found on our property, regardless othehave were responsible for its preset

The ultimate costs may be material to our financtaddition or results of operations.
We depend on our key personnel, and the loss of anyour key personnel could adversely affect our @rations.

We depend on the diligence, experience and skiluofkey personnel (executive officers) who prowid@nagement services
the selection, acquisition, structuring, monitoramgd sale of our portfolio assets and the borrosvimged to acquire these assets.
loss of any executive officer could harm our bussdinancial condition, cash flow and results péations.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and dusequent changes could adversely affect our finaraticondition or results
of operations.

As a company whose common shares are publicly drade are subject to the rules and regulationdefSEC. In additiol
many of our operations are regulated by the SBAanghs in laws that govern our entities may sigaifity affect our business. La
and regulations may be changed from time to tinne€l, the interpretations of the relevant laws andilagns are also subject
change. Any change in the laws or regulations guomgrour business could have a material impact unfioancial condition ¢
results of operations.

At any time, U.S. Federal income tax laws goverriRigTs or the administrative interpretations ofshdaws may be amend
Any of those new laws or interpretations thereofyrteke effect retroactively and could adverseleeiffour financial condition
results of operations. The tax rate on both divitdeand long-term capital gains for most rammporate taxpayers to 15% has
reduced through 2012. This reduced maximum taxgateerally does not apply to ordinary REIT dividend/hich continue to |
subject to tax at the higher tax rates applicablertlinary income (a maximum rate of 35%). Howevlee, 15% maximum tax re
does apply to certain REIT distributions. This #agfion may cause shares in nREiT corporations to be a more attrac
investment to individual investors than sharesEiT® and may adversely affect the market priceusfammmon shares.
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REIT Related Risks

Failure to qualify as a REIT would subject PMC Comnercial to U.S. Federal income tax.

If a company meets certain income and asset dfieatsbon and income distribution requirements unitier Code, it can quali
as a REIT and be entitled to pass-through taxrtreat. We would cease to qualify for passsugh tax treatment if we were unabl
comply with these requirements. PMC Commercial$s aubject to a nodeductible 4% excise tax (and, in certain casegpocate
level income tax) if we fail to make certain dibtrtions. Failure to qualify as a REIT would subjastto Federal income tax as if
were an ordinary corporation, resulting in a sufitiia reduction in both our net assets and the amnofi income available fi
distribution to our shareholders.

We believe that we have operated in a manner tlmatsaus to qualify as a REIT under the Code ardnd to continue to
operate. Although we believe that we are organaatioperate as a REIT, no assurance can be giaewéhwill continue to rema
qualified as a REIT. Qualification as a REIT invedvthe application of technical and complex provisiof the Code for which the
are limited judicial or administrative interpretats and involves the determination of various falctnatters and circumstances
entirely within our control. In addition, no assaca can be given that new legislation, regulati@asninistrative interpretations
court decisions will not significantly change thextlaws with respect to qualification as a REIT the Federal income t
consequences of such qualification.

In addition, compliance with the REIT qualificatiaests could restrict our ability to take advantafettractive investme
opportunities in non-qualifying assets, which won&atively affect the cash available for distribatto our shareholders.

If PMC Commercial fails to qualify as a REIT, we ynamong other things:
. Not be allowed a deduction for distributions to shareholders in computing our taxable inco

. Be subject to U.S. Federal income tax, including applicable alternative minimum tax, on our taxaiicome at regul
corporate rates

. Be subject to increased state and local taxes;

. Unless entitled to relief under certain statutorgvisions, be disqualified from treatment as a REliTthe taxable year
which we lost our qualification and the four tav@apkars following the year during which we lost qualification.

As a result of these factors, failure to qualifyaaREIT could also impair our ability to expand duwwsiness and raise capi
substantially reduce the funds available for disttion to our shareholders and may reduce the mprl@ of our common shares.

Ownership limitations associated with our REIT statis may restrict change of control or business comiation opportunities.

In order for PMC Commercial to qualify as a REIh more than 50% in value of our outstanding comrsloares may |
owned, directly or indirectly, by five or fewer iinitluals during the last half of any calendar yé#ndividuals” include natur:
persons, private foundations, some employee beplafis and trusts, and some charitable trusts.

To preserve PMC Commercial’REIT status, our declaration of trust generalighfbits any shareholder from directly
indirectly owning more than 9.8% of any class afeseof our outstanding common shares or prefesheges without specific wai
from our Board of Trust Managers. The ownershigthtion could have the effect of discouraging aetaker or other transaction
which holders of our common shares might receipeeanium for their shares over the then prevailirarhkat price or which holde
might believe to be otherwise in their best inteses

Failure to make required distributions to our shareholders would subject us to tax.

In order to qualify as a REIT, an entity generafiyst distribute to its shareholders, each taxabe,\at least 90% of its taxa
income, other than any net capital gain and exnlythe nordistributed taxable income of taxable REIT subsid&a As a result, o
shareholders receive periodic distributions from3usch distributions are taxable as ordinary incéonthe extent that they are m
out of current or accumulated earnings and profitsthe extent that a REIT satisfies the 90% distion requirement, but distribu
less than 100% of its taxable income, it will béjsat to Federal corporate income tax on its unbisted income. In addition, t
REIT will incur a 4% nondeductible excise tax or timount, if any, by which its distributions in arslendar year are less than
sum of:

. 85% of its ordinary income for that ye:
. 95% of its capital gain net income for that yeat

. 100% of its undistributed taxable income from pgears.
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We have paid out, and intend to continue to pay @ut REIT taxable income to shareholders in a reaimended to satisfy t
90% distribution requirement and to avoid Fedeoaporate income tax.

Our taxable income may substantially exceed ouilimeetme as determined based on generally acceptaliating principle
(“GAAP”) because, for example, capital losses will be dedlidh determining GAAP income, but may not be dédie in
computing taxable income. In addition, we may inviesassets that generate taxable income in exaieesonomic income or
advance of the corresponding cash flow from thetasseferred to as excess non-cash income. Altheoge types of nocast
income are excluded in determining the 90% distidvurequirement, we will incur Federal corporateame tax and the 4% exc
tax with respect to any nazash income items if we do not distribute thosm#en an annual basis. As a result of the foregair
may generate less cash flow than taxable incongparticular year. In that event, we may be requiceuse cash reserves, ir
debt, or liquidate nowash assets at rates or times that we regard asarable in order to satisfy the distribution requient and 1
avoid federal corporate income tax and the 4% exeis in that year.

Our ownership of and relationship with our taxable REIT subsidiaries will be limited, and a failure to comply with the limits
would jeopardize our REIT status and may result inthe application of a 100% excise tax.

Subject to certain restrictions, a REIT may owntad00% of the stock of one or more taxable REIbsgliaries. A taxab
REIT subsidiary may earn income that would not balifying income if earned directly by the pareriIR. Both the subsidiary al
the REIT must jointly elect to treat the subsidiagya taxable REIT subsidiary. A corporation of ehha taxable REIT subsidie
directly or indirectly owns more than 35% of thetimg power or value of the stock will automaticalig treated as a taxable RI
subsidiary. Overall, as of December 31, 2010, noentivan 25% of the value of a RE$Tassets may consist of stock or securiti
one or more taxable REIT subsidiaries. A taxabldTR&ubsidiary generally will pay income tax at régucorporate rates on &
taxable income that it earns. In addition, the bdexaREIT subsidiary rules limit the deductibility mterest paid or accrued by
taxable REIT subsidiary to its parent REIT to asdimat the taxable REIT subsidiary is subject t@ppropriate level of corpor:
taxation. The rules also impose a 100% excise tagentain transactions between a taxable REIT digrgiand its parent REIT tt
are not conducted on an arm’s-length basis.

Our taxable REIT subsidiaries are subject to noro@mporate income taxes. We continuously monita talue of oL
investments in taxable REIT subsidiaries for theppee of ensuring compliance with the rule thatmare than 25% of the value
our assets may consist of taxable REIT subsiditogksand securities (which is applied at the eneath calendar quarter). 1
aggregate value of our taxable REIT subsidiarykstnod securities is less than 25% of the valuewnftotal assets (including ¢
taxable REIT subsidiary stock and securities) aBefember 31, 2010. In addition, we will scrutinakof our transactions with
taxable REIT subsidiaries for the purpose of emguthat they are entered into on arrdg€sgth terms in order to avoid incurring
100% excise tax described above. There are nahdistn requirements applicable to the taxable RElibsidiaries and afteax
earnings may be retained. There can be no assuyitameever, that we will be able to comply with 2&% limitation on ownersh
of taxable REIT subsidiary stock and securitiesanrongoing basis so as to maintain REIT status awoid application of the 10C
excise tax imposed on certain non-arm’s-lengthstations.

Iltem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
Item 2. PROPERTIES

We lease office space for our corporate headquariddallas, Texas under an operating lease whiplres in October 2011.
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We had significant outstanding claims against Agtiam Hospitality, Inc.’s and its subsidiary Arlimgt Inns, Inc$ (togethe
“Arlington”) bankruptcy estates. Arlington objected to our ckBnd initiated a complaint in the bankruptcy segkamong othi
things, return of certain payments Arlington madespant to the property leases and the master ésgsement.

While confident a substantial portion of our claimweuld have been allowed and the claims againsivaisld have bee
disallowed, due to the exorbitant cost of defermgted with the likelihood of reduced availableedssn the debtor®states to p:¢
claims, we executed an agreement with Arlingtorsaéttle our claims against Arlington and Arlingterélaims against us. T
settlement provides that Arlington will dismiss daims seeking the return of certain payments npagtsuant to the property lea
and master lease agreement, and substantially esdua claims against the Arlington estates. Thiessent further provides f
mutual releases among the parties. The BankruptayrtGpproved the settlement. Accordingly, there o remaining assets
liabilities recorded in the accompanying consobkdifinancial statements related to this matter. élaw, the settlement will or
become final upon the Bankruptcy Court’s approvahdington’s liquidation plan which was filed during the thijdarter of 200°
Due to the complexity of the bankruptcy, we carggitmate when, or if, the liquidation plan will Bpproved.

In the normal course of business we are periogiqadirty to certain legal actions and proceedingsliring matters that a
generally incidental to our business.€., collection of loans receivable). In managemegrdpinion, the resolution of these le
actions and proceedings will not have a materiaeexk effect on our consolidated financial statesen

Item 4. RESERVED
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PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common shares are currently traded on the NXB8&Ex under the symbol “PCCThe following table sets forth, for t
periods indicated, the high and low sales pricegpsrted on the NYSE Amex and the regular divideper share declared by us
each such period.

Regular

Dividends Pe
Quarter Ende: High Low Share
December 31, 201 $ 8.9t $ 8.1(C $ 0.16(
September 30, 201 $ 9.1¢ $ 7.5C $ 0.16(
June 30, 201 $ 8.91 $ 7.28 $ 0.16(
March 31, 201( $ 8.0C $ 7.0C $ 0.16(
December 31, 20C $ 8.0C $ 7.0z $ 0.16(
September 30, 20( $ 7.7C $ 6.2C $ 0.16(
June 30, 200 $ 8.4t $ 5.3t $ 0.16(
March 31, 200¢ $ 8.4¢€ $ 4.21 $ 0.22¢

On March 3, 2011, there were approximately 785 émslaf record of our common shares, excluding $tolclers whose shai
were held by brokerage firms, depositories andrattitutional firms in “street namer their customers. The last reported <
price of our common shares on March 3, 2011 wa35$8.

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemtien and as declared by our Board of Trust Manafjees “Board”). In
determining dividend policy, our Board considersnmnéactors including, but not limited to, actuabdgorojected cash flows availa
for dividend distribution, expectations for futuearnings, REIT taxable income and maintenance dff Riatus, the econon
environment, competition, our ability to obtain éemge and our loan portfolio performance. In otdemaintain REIT status, PN
Commercial is required to pay out 90% of REIT tdgaimcome. Consequently, the dividend rate on artqug basis will nc
necessarily correlate directly to any single fastach as REIT taxable income or earnings expeastio

Our Board maintained our quarterly dividend at $0gker share for the first quarter dividend to bélpa April 2011. W«
anticipate that the Board will adjust the dividexxdneeded, on a quarterly basis, thereafter.

We have certain covenants within our revolving @réatility that limit our ability to pay out retus of capital as part of ¢
dividends. These restrictions have not historicldhited the amount of dividends we have paid armhagement does not believe
they will restrict future dividend payments. See=l&ted Financial Data” in Item 6, “ManagemsnDiscussion and Analysis
Financial Condition and Results of Operations —uidify and Capital Resources” in Item 7 anBifancial Statements a
Supplementary Data” in Item 8 for additional inf@tion concerning dividends.

We have not had any sales of unregistered seacudtigng the last three years.

See Item 12 in this Form 10-K for information redjag our equity compensation plans.
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Performance Graph

The following information in Item 5 is not deemedl lbe “soliciting material” or to be “filedivith the SEC or subject
Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Exchafge of 1934 (“Exchange Act”por to the liabilities of Section 18 of t
Exchange Act, and will not be deemed to be incateat by reference into any filing under the SemsitAct of 1933 or tr
Exchange Act, except to the extent the Companyifspaty incorporates it by reference into suchilag.

The line graph below compares the percentage chemtfee cumulative total shareholder return on common shares
beneficial interest with the cumulative total retwf the Russell 2000 and our Peer Group which istmef all publicly trade
mortgage REITs, mortgadecked security REITs and specialty finance REidted on the NYSE, NYSE Amex and the NASD
on which coverage is provided by SNL Financial bPthe period from December 31, 2005 through Deear8h, 2010 assuming
investment of $100 on December 31, 2005 and tmwestment of dividends. The share price performahcsvn on the graph is
necessarily indicative of future price performance.

Total Return Performance
160
140
1)
=2
>
g
B 100
= 1
—+— PMC Commercial Trust
80 T —=—Russ=all2000 \‘I//.
—&— PMC Commercial Trust Peer
Group
60 } -
12431006 12/31/06 12431007 12/31/08 12/31/09 1243110
December 31
Index 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
PMC Commercial Trus 100.0¢ 133.9: 105.1: 83.1¢ 93.5¢ 114.0:
Russell 200( 100.0( 118.37 116.5: 77.1% 98.11 124 .4¢
PMC Commercial Trust Peer Gro 100.0( 142.3¢ 114.2¢ 75.0¢ 95.3¢ 118.5¢

Source: SNL Financial LC
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is a summary of our Selected Finahbiata as of and for the five years in the periadexl December 31, 20
The following data should be read in conjunctiortrwdur consolidated financial statements and theesnthereto andltem 7
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiahdition and Results of Operations” appearing eftsaw in this Form 16
The selected financial data presented below has dexved from our consolidated financial stateraent

Years Ended December :
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share informati

Total revenues (1 $ 15,46 $ 16,267 $ 23,11% $ 27,29t $ 28,97
Total expenses (. $ 10,75 $ 10,37: $ 13,77¢ $ 14,717 $ 15,35¢
Income from continuing operations ( $ 4,84: $ 6,057 $ 9,027 $ 12,09¢ $ 13,53:
Discontinued operations (. $ (45 % 704 $ 784 $ 1,041 $ 2,152
Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢ $ 13,13¢ $ 15,68«
Basic weighted average common shi

outstanding 10,55« 10,57 10,767 10,76( 10,74¢
Basic and diluted earnings per comn

share:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.4¢€ $ 0.517 $ 0.84 $ 1.12 $ 1.2¢

Net income $ 0.41 $ 0.64 $ 0.91 $ 1.22 $ 1.4¢€
Dividends declared, comm¢ $ 6,75¢€ $ 7,44 $ 10,90¢ $ 12,91t $ 13,97t
Dividends per common sha $ 0.6 $ 0.70¢ $ 1.01¢ $ 1.2C $ 1.3C

At December 31
2010 (4) 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands

Loans receivable, net (: $ 233,21 $ 196,64. $ 179,80 $ 165,96 $ 169,18:
Retained Interes! $ 1,01( $ 12,527 $ 33,24¢ $ 48,61¢ $ 55,72¢
Total asset $ 252,12 $ 228,24 $ 227,52 $ 231,42( $ 240,40«
Debt $ 92,96¢ $ 68,50¢ $ 61,81« $ 62,95! $ 68,50¢

(1) The decrease in total revenues and income fromiragng operations is primarily due to declines ilBBOR. At December 3
2010, 54% of our loans were based on LIB!

(2) We foreclosed on the underlying collateral of thieespitality properties during 2010 which are gemtérg significant losse
We are currently marketing to sell these propert

(3) Our loans receivable increased during 2009 primardue to the consolidation of several previouslfrbalance she
securitizations which reached th¢ clear-up” call option.

(4) Effective January 1, 2010, due to a change in anting rules, we now consolidate the assets andlili@és of the QSPEs.
addition, effective January 1, 2010, due to a clamgaccounting rules, we are now required to peraraly treat procees
received from legally sold portions of loans punsuto Secondary Market Loan Sales (those soldXoess spread or those s
for a 10% cash premium and excess spread) as sttreowings for the life of the loa
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT' S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our Consolidated Financial Statements dnel related notes thi
appear elsewhere in this document. For a more tbtadlescription of the risks affecting our finadc@ndition and results ¢
operations, see “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of thierf 10-K .

Business Overview

We are primarily a commercial mortgage lender théginates loans to small businesses that are ipehy collateralized b
first liens on the real estate of the related bessn Our outstanding loans are predominantly (94Beeember 31, 2010) to borrows
in the hospitality industry.

We are organized as a REIT. Our loan underwrit;qygansistent and, among other things, typicalljiresg (1) significan
equity investments by the borrower in the prope(B),personal guarantees from the borrower, (3jaipe experience by tf
borrower and (4) evidence of adequate repaymetityabVe do not originate any “higher-riskbans such as option ARM produc
junior lien mortgages, high lo-to-value ratio mortgages, interest only loans, subgfimans or loans with initial teaser rates. We
do not originate any residential loans.

Our business of originating loans is affected byiegal commercial real estate fundamentals and thealh economic
environment. We have designed our strategy toéehile so that we can adjust our loan activitiesuticipation of, and in reactic
to, changes in the commercial real estate capitdl@operty markets and the overall economy as aglthanges to the speci
characteristics of the underlying real estate agbet serve as collateral for the majority of imwestments.

As a result of the continued economic uncertaintycommercial mortgage lenders, we are focusingooigination efforts ol
SBA 7(a) loans which require less capital due ® dbility to sell the government guaranteed portibisuch loans. We utilize tt
SBA 7(a) program to originate small business loanisparily secured by real estate, and then sellgitvernment guaranteed port
to investors.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
General

We are a commercial finance company that spec&lizéending to the limited service hospitality irstry. In general, both tt
commercial finance and hospitality industries eigrezed turbulence during 2009 and 2010. We belikgeeconomic environment
complicated and risky and will continue to presgmllenges to us and our industry.

We believe that our commercial lending business $tasng longterm fundamentals. However, due to these econ
conditions, we have experienced the following:

. Loan origination limitations due to availability bquidity;

. Reduced operating margins due to lack of econoofissale;

. Limited access to capital, and if such capitaMailable, at increased cos

* Anincrease in nc-accrual loans

* Anincrease in REO and foreclosure proceedi

* Anincrease in the holding period related to RE@wi corresponding increase in expenses relatdedse asset
 Anincrease in loan loss reserves and asset impats)

* Aninability to engage in structured loan transasi anc

. Reduced cash available for distribution to shamésl, particularly as our portfolio yield was redddyy lower variabl
interest rates, scheduled maturities, prepaymerttsar-performing loans

24




Table of Contents

We seek to position ourselves to be able to takerstdge of opportunities once market conditionsrowe and to maximi:z
shareholder value over time. To do this, we wilitioue to focus on:

. Paying dividends to our shareholde

. Originating quality assets and earning interestfaed;

. Enhancing cash flows from our investment portfc

. Increasing our volume of SBA 7(a) loan originatip

. Repositioning and marketing of r-performing asset:

. Exploring alternative financing sources; ¢

. Exploring alternative strategic activitie

We believe that these are the appropriate stepsdition us for long-term growth.
General Economic Environment

Commercial Real Estate and Lodging Industry

Economic conditions have subjected many of ourdveers to financial stress/distress. The operatafnhe limited servic
hospitality properties collateralizing our loansrevenegatively impacted by the recent recessionapn@mic environment. As
result, we are experiencing a significant numbeiissfies related to our borrowers including paynagiinquencies, slow pa
insufficient funds payments, ngrayment or lack of timely payment of real estateesaand franchise fees, requests for pay
deferrals, lack of cash flow for franchise requiregprovements or maintenance issues jeopardizingiramtion of franchise
terminating franchises, conversion to lesser frasash deterioration of the physical property (ooltateral), and declining prope
values. As such, our litigation and foreclosurevitgtand related costs have increased.

There has been an increase in mortgage defaultfoesrosures in the broader commercial real estetiket and these defat
may continue. This increase is due in part to ¢m@a@irket turmoil and declining property cash floavel property values. In additit
when foreclosures on commercial real estate priggeiricrease, the property values typically decéimen further as supply exce
demand. We have experienced an increase in litigafincluding borrowers who have filed for bankmptreorganization) ar
foreclosure activity. In conjunction with this imase in foreclosure activity, we have experien@ed| will likely continue t
experience, an increase in expenses, includingrgkaed administrative, provision for loan lossesl ampairment losses. Furth
our ability to sell our REO and the prices we reeain sale are affected by many factors, includingnot limited to, the number
potential buyers, the number of competing properte the market and other market conditions. Agslt of the challengir
economic conditions, our holding periods for ourdREave increased.

Historically, we have not experienced significanosdes on real estate secured loans due to ourwmsg’cequity in thei
properties, the value of the underlying collatetiag cash flows from operations of the businessésagher factors, such as hav
recourse to the guarantors. However, if the economthe commercial real estate market does notirmmtto improve, we cou
experience an increase in credit losses. In adlitoe to the prolonged economic downturn and thieent economic environme
we believe that in general, our borroweesfuity in their properties has been eroded and fudlier erode which may result in
increase in foreclosure activity and credit losgesa result, we increased both our general andifsptan loss reserves. Additiol
changes to the facts and circumstances of theithdil borrowers, the limited service hospitalitdirstry and the economy
require the establishment of significant additidlealn loss reserves and the effect on our restibperations and financial conditi
may be material.

Liquidity

At this time, we are uncertain as to how long teklof longterm liquidity will remain and what shape the ecoryowill take ir
the future. As a result of the prolonged downturmeal estate markets, the availability of cafibalproviders of real estate financ
was severely restricted. As a result, capital gters (including banks and insurance companies)autially reduced the availabil
and increased the cost of debt capital for manypzories originating commercial mortgages. Thesdamgs continue to impact ¢
ability to fully utilize our lending platform andalve reduced yields on our assets as interestdatdimed and remained at low levels.

Banks and other lending institutions have tighteleading standards and restricted credit to lterga real estate lenders as t
rebuilt their capital bases. The structured creditrkets, including the asset-backed securities GABmarkets, were severe
curtailed. While delinquencies in the commercialrestate markets remained low during 2008, th& lcliquidity in ABS,
commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMB&H)d other commercial mortgage markets negativelyasted commercial re
estate sales and financing activity during 2009 200. While we believe these conditions are temwyoand the commercial re
estate market fundamentals will return over thetmrm, we are unable to predict how long these ¢amdi will continue and wh
long-term impact this will have on the mark
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A major part of our business plan was to originagns and then sell those loans through privgidged structured lo
transactions while retaining residual interestshim loans sold by retaining a subordinate finaniciedrest. This was successful .
allowed us to grow our portfolio of serviced loansapproximately $500 million during 2004. While Welieve that a portion of o
retained portfolio of loans could be used as celldtfor a securitization, a market for our typeseturitization may not be availa
at terms which are acceptable to us in the future.

We currently are targeting 2011 SBA 7(a) loan awdgion volume of between $40 million and $50 millidVe anticipate n
funding needs for these originations to be betw&million and $11 million during 2011 after saletioe guaranteed portion of 1
loans. Our current credit facility is anticipatedbe sufficient to allow us to fund our anticipatedn originations.

Lodging Industry Trends

The lodging industry experienced declining demawer dhe past few years. With the onset of the oas all forms of trav
accommodations experienced revenue decreases sigmwenspending dropped and revenue per availabia ((RevPAR")reduce!
by 13.7% during the three year period ended DeceBibe?010 according to statistics compiled by &riitavel Research (“STR”
Part of the reduction in RevPAR was caused by arease in hotel room supply during that period.

Lodging demand in the United States generally afgpacorrelate to changes in U.S. GDP. The hdgpitadustry including
the limited service hospitality segment experiencedliced RevPAR, occupancy and average daily rades (“ADRS”). Leading
lodging industry analysts, including Pricewaterhetisopers LLP, have noted the following:

. Economic growth is expected to slowly acceleratengu2011;
. Occupancy levels and average daily room ratesxgected to increase during 2011 due to increasémgaohd; ant
. RevPAR is expected to increase during 2(

We are hopeful that the expectation of economieviftpdue primarily to an anticipated increase instomer spending and
anticipated sharp increase in business spenditigheviefit the recovery of the hospitality industBesearchers from STR anticig
that the current economic recovery and suppressestrtiction activity for new hotels will suppor7a% increase in RevPAR duri
2011.

While occupancy levels, average daily room rates RavPAR are expected to increase during 2011; éineynot expected
reach levels attained during 2007.

Strategic Alternatives

The current credit and capital market environmemiains unstable for commercial real estate lend@tsle we continue 1
explore and evaluate strategic opportunities, agimary focus is on maximizing the value of our et investment portfolio ai
business strategy and exploring opportunities lterative liquidity sources.

SBA 7(a) Program and Regulatory Environment

We continue to focus on the origination of SBA 7i@ns which require less capital due to the abtlit sell the governme
guaranteed portion of such loans. We utilize thé SBa) program to originate small business loanisnarily secured by real este
and then sell the government guaranteed portiamviestors.

Commencing in February 2009, legislative provisiargse passed which provided the SBA with tempofangling to eliminat
fees on SBA 7(a) loans and provided increased SB#&ramtee percentages on SBA 7(a) loans for up ¥% 80 certain loans.
addition, legislation was passed in September 2040 contained provisions to allow the SBA to supparger loans and provi
more financing options to a larger segment of simadinesses including permanently increasing tagl@an limit from $2 million t
$5 million.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumereetmn Act of 2010 (the “Act”)passed in July 2010, provides r
regulations and oversight of the financial servidedustry. While all provisions of the Act have nbeen finalized fc
implementation, we do not believe the Act will havenaterial impact on us.

26




Table of Contents

Secondary Market Loan Sales
General

During 2010, we sold $28.4 million of the guarautgeortion of SBA 7(a) Program loans. Loans wereal Soir (1) cas
premiums and 100 basis points (1%) (the minimureagrequired to be retained pursuant to SBA reiguig) as the servicing spre
on the sold portion of the loan, (2) future semirspreads averaging 438 basis points (includiegl®0 basis points required ta
retained) and no cash premiums, or (3) future seyispreads averaging 168 basis points (incluthegl00 basis points requirec
be retained) and cash premiums of 10Ré.(“hybrid loan sales”)As a result of the new accounting rules regardalg seatment fc
selling the guaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) katuring 2010, no gain was recognized at the tfrsale for any of these loans.

Even though recognition of premium income is deféras a result, management believes the best eamppportunity was t
forego the up-front cash premiums in lieu of sigmaift future servicing spread or to sell the loandn upfront cash premium ai
lesser future servicing spread (than if the loas w@ld solely for future servicing spread). On ¢hkmn sales, we receive a spi
between the interest rate due to us from our barswand the rate payable to the purchasers ofuti@gteed portions of the loans.

Cash Premium Loan Sales

For the 2010 loan sales where we received cashipmesrand the minimum servicing spread of 1%, saattent will occt
after all contingencies have been satisfied whigdukd occur 90 to 120 days after the proceeds vemeived. We recorded $709,(
in gains on sale during 2010 relating to thesedasales (reflected as premium income included lieroincome in our consolidal
income statements). Once gains are recorded, there significant difference between the old and reecounting rules for the
sales. During February 2011, the SBA rescindedctrgingency period; therefore, there will be noedefl of gain recognition ¢
these sales after that date.

Servicing Spread Loan Sales

For tax purposes, since all Secondary Market LagrsSare legal sales, we are required to recorsdmsed on present ve
cash flow techniques consistent with the book anting treatment utilized until January 1, 2010. Sexpuently, for tax purposes,
had gains of $681,000 during 2010 related to safefdans solely for excess spread but will not ggtipe any gains for bor
purposes. Instead, we will record book income aseageive the average 438 basis point spread agwie the sold portion of t
loan. There can be no assurance that the loansrewilhin outstanding until maturity. However, mamagat believes that tl
discounted present value of the future servicingags will be greater than the cash premiums weldvbave received since »
expect the income received on the sold portion twetife of the loans (and the future incrementalh flows) to exceed the foreg
cash premiums.

Hybrid Loan Sales

For tax purposes, we had gains of $1,758,000 dw2Btp related to hybrid loan sales but will notagmize gain for boc
purposes. For book purposes, the cash premium dstized as a reduction of interest expense ovellitheof the loan using tt
interest method. We record income as we receivatkeage 168 basis point excess spread as weesdheisold portion of the lo:
Management believes that the discounted presenieval the future servicing spreads will be gredaten the foregone ca
premiums we would have received since we expeciniteame received on the sold portion over the diféhe loans (and the futt
incremental cash flows) to exceed the foregone pesmiums.
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In summary, our Secondary Market Loan Sales wefellasvs during 2010:

Principal Premium Gain Upon Sals
Type of Sale Sold Receivec Book Tax
Cash premiun $ 7,736,00! $  758,00( $ 709,00( $ 817,00(
Servicing sprea 6,188,00! — — 681,00(
Hybrid 14,521,00 1,452,00i — 1,758,00

$ 28,445,00 $ 2,210,001 $  709,00( $ 3,256,001

The following highlights the difference betweenlisgl a loan for cash premium versus selling a l&@anfuture excess spre
versus selling a loan for a cash premium and futncess spread:

Cash Servicing
Premium Spreac Hybrid

Loan amoun $ 1,000,00! $ 1,000,00 $ 1,000,00
Guaranteed portion of total loi 90.0(% 90.00% 90.00%
Guaranteed loan amou $ 900,00( $ 900,00( $ 900,00(
Rate paid by borrowe 6.0(% 6.0(% 6.0(%
Rate paid to purchas 5.0(% 1.75% 4.5(%
Total spread on sold portion of lo 1.0(% 4.25% 1.5(%
Premium percentag 11.0(% — 10.0(%
Proceeds from sa $ 999,00( $  900,00( $  990,00(
Premium receive $ 99,00( $ — $ 90,00(
Future servicing sprea

Estimated cash flo— Year 1 $ 8,90( $ 37,90( $ 13,40(

Estimated cash flo— Initial 5 years $  42,90( $ 182,30( $ 64,30(
Total cash from sale at the end of 5 years $ 1,041,901 $ 1,081,90 $ 1,054,30

(1) Does not include the cash flow from the retainedipo of the loan
LOAN PORTFOLIO INFORMATION AND STATISTICS
General

Loans funded during 2010 and 2009 were $38.4 milhad $30.4 million, respectively. Depending oruilitity, we anticipat
loan fundings to be between $40 million and $50ianlduring 2011. At December 31, 2010 and 2009,cuistanding commitmer
to fund new loans were $16.5 million and $20.7 iomil] respectively. The majority of our commitmeate for variablaate SBA 7(z
loans which provide an interest rate match with pnasent sources of funds and these loans alsidgram SBA guarantee for 7!
to 90% of the loan amount.

We continue to actively monitor and manage our mitaeproblem loans. In certain instances, wheig likkely to maximize ot
return, we will consider restructuring loans. As eamtinue to pursue ways of improving our overatlavery and repayment on th
loans, we may experience reductions in net investimeome and cash flow. Bank and CMBS financingapee less available a
source of refinancing for our borrowers, which staimhe pace of prepayments by our borrowers arw @ksated new lendil
opportunities for us. Liquidity for commercial prpies including hospitality properties remainsited since banks are hesitan
lend and the securitization market for commeraal estate assets has been limited.

Loan Activity

In addition to our Retained Portfolio of $234.9lioih at December 31, 2010, we service $49.5 millidraggregate princip
balance remaining on Secondary Market Loan Sateaddlition, due to a change in accounting rulegiriméng January 1, 2010, 1
aggregate principal balance remaining on loanswlesé sold in structured loan sale transactiongwensolidated and includec
our Retained Portfolio. Since we retain a resido#drest in the cash flows from our sold loans, preeformance of these lo¢
impacts our profitability and our cash available dividend distributions. Therefore, we provideamhation on both our Retain
Portfolio and our Aggregate Portfolio.
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Information on our Aggregate Portfolio, includingepayment trends, was as follows:

December 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands
Aggregate Portfolio (1 $ 284,45 $ 273,68 $ 275,53( $ 326,36¢ $ 397,56
Loans fundec $ 38,44( $ 30,43t $ 34,587 $ 33,75¢ $ 51,68¢
Prepayments (2 $ 10,83( $ 12,79t $ 68,55¢ $ 84,13’ $ 91,71(
% Prepayments (¢ 4.C% 4.€% 21.(% 21.2% 20.5%

(1) Portfolio outstanding before loan loss reserves datérred commitment fee
(2) Does not include balloon maturities of SBA 504 paog loans.
(3) Represents prepayments as a percentage of our datgr&ortfolio outstanding as of the beginninghe &pplicable yeal

Market Interest Rates

The net interest margin for our leveraged portfididlependent upon the difference between theafasir borrowed funds al
the rate at which we invest these funds (the “nigtrest spread”)The interest rate yield curve combined with incegasompetitio
caused margin compressiomg., the margins we receive between the interest ratehaege our borrowers and the interest rat
are charged by our lenders have compressed). Trgim@mpression lowers our profitability and mawé an impact on our abil
to maintain our dividend at the current or antitggbamounts.

On our variableate loans, we charge a spread over a base rtiter EIBOR or the prime rate which is set on thetfday o
each quarter. For the first quarter of 2011, tHB@QR and prime rates are 0.30% and 3.25%, respéctidestorically, the base rat
were as follows:

2010 2009 2008
LIBOR
First Quarte 0.25% 1.44% 4.7%
Second Quarte 0.29 1.21% 2.7(%
Third Quartel 0.5% 0.6(% 2.7%
Fourth Quarte 0.2% 0.2% 3.8&%
Average 0.34% 0.88% 3.53%
Prime Rate
First Quarte 3.25% 3.25% 7.25%
Second Quarte 3.25% 3.25% 5.25%
Third Quartel 3.25% 3.25% 5.0%
Fourth Quarte 3.25% 3.25% 5.0(%
Average 3.25% 3.25% 5.63%

Most of our retained loans ($170.0 million) and alebt ($73.1 million) are based on LIBOR or them@irate. On the n
difference of $96.9 million between our variabléerbbans and debt, interest rate changes will aavienpact on our future earnings.
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Retained Loan Portfolio Rollforwards

The following table summarizes our loan activity fioe five-year period ended December 31, 2010:

Years Ended December

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands

Loans receivable, net — beginning o

year $ 196,64. $ 179,80 $ 165,96! $ 169,18: $ 157,57
Loans originated (1 69,70 62,99¢ 55,95( 44,41¢ 71,53(
Principal reductions (1 (28,697 (39,63¢) (42,026 (42,615 (55,95%)
Loans transferred to REO ( (4,040 (4,949 — (4,919 (3,730
Other adjustments (: (394) (1,579 (86) (99) (23¢)
Loans receivable, n— end of yea $ 233,21 $  196,64. $ 179,80 $  165,96¢ $ 169,18

(1) See detailed information belo

(2) Loans on which the collateral was foreclosed upod the assets were subsequently classified as
(3) Represents the net change in loan loss resen&suits and deferred commitment f
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Detailed information on our loans originated anthgipal reductions for the fivgear period ended December 31, 2010 wi
follows:

Years Ended December
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands

Loans Originated
Loans Fundec

Commercial mortgage loal $ 4,90¢ $ 2,42t $ 19,73¢ $ 28,41¢ $ 36,85¢
SBA 7(a) Program loar 33,53: 28,01( 10,97: 2,88¢ 8,537
SBA 504 program loans (: — — 3,87 2,452 6,29/
Total loans funde 38,44( 30,43 34,58 33,75¢ 51,68¢

Non-cash Loan Origination:

2003 Joint Venture (2 — 19,99: — — —
2002 Joint Venture (< — 12,57( — — —
2001 Joint Venture (< — — 13,76( — —
2000 Joint Venture (¢ 22,91: — — — —
1999 Partnership (¢ — — 7,60: — —
1998 Partnership (¢ 5,02¢ — — — —
Loans originated to facilitate the
sales of REO and hotel
properties 3,32¢ — — 10,66: 19,84
Total loans originate $ 69,70: $ 62,99¢ $ 55,95( $ 44,41¢ $ 71,53(
Principal Reductions (5
Prepayment $ 9,71¢ $ 5,60( $ 27,93¢ $ 26,54¢ $ 40,68¢
Proceeds from the sale of SBA 7(a)
guaranteed loar 7,692 24,99¢ 4,05¢ 1,971 6,37:
Scheduled principal paymer 11,28: 9,04( 5,33( 6,01( 6,55¢
Balloon maturities of SBA 504
program loan: — — 4,69¢ 8,08t 2,34z
Total principal reduction $ 28,69: $ 39,63¢ $ 42,02¢ $ 42,61¢ $ 55,95¢

(1) Represents second mortgages originated throug®B#e 504 Program which are repaid by certified depaient companie

(2) We attained, but did not exercise, our “clean-ugl’cprovisions resulting in loans which were preusly offbalance she
being included in our Retained Portfol

(3) We exercised our “clean-up call” provisions resalfiin loans which were previously d&flance sheet being included in
Retained Portfolio

(4) Due to a change in accounting rules effective Japda 2010, the 2000 Joint Venture and the 1998triaship wer
consolidated and included in our Retained Portfc

(5) Does not include principal reductions for loansriséerred to REC
Prepayment Activity

The timing and volume of our prepayment activity fmth our variable and fixedite loans fluctuate and are impactec
numerous factors including the following:

e The competitive lending environmeni.e., availability of alternative financing

e The current and anticipated interest rate environn

e The market value of, and ability to sell, limiteghgice hospitality properties; ai

«  The amount of the prepayment fee and the lenggiegfayment prohibition, if an’

It is difficult for us to accurately predict the lume or timing of prepayments since the factortetlsabove are not aihclusive
and changes in one factor are not isolated froongés in another which might magnify or counterdm tate or volume !
prepayment activity.

When loans receivable are repaid prior to theirunityt, we may receive prepayment fees. Prepaymess fesult in or-time



increases in our income. In general, the procesuls the prepayments we receive are either useepayrdebt, invest
initially in temporary investments or if related aor SBICs held for use in their operations. Iniadd, loans originated under t
SBA 7(a) program do not have prepayment fees wdniehretained by us.
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PORTFOLIO QUALITY

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had loan losrves of $1,609,000 and $1,257,000, respectivebluding general loe
loss reserves of $1,100,000 and $650,000, respdctiOur provision for loan losses (excluding retituts of loan losses) as
percentage of our weighted average outstandingsloaneivable (excluding our SBA 7(a) loans recd®abubject to secur
borrowings since the SBA has guaranteed paymetiiegbrincipal) was 0.46% and 0.57% during 2010 20@P, respectively. To tl
extent one or several of our loans experience fiignit operating difficulties and we are forcedlituidate the loans, future los:
may be substantial.

During the fiveyear period ended December 31, 2010, our aggregatgsion for loan losses, net, was $2.3 millior2érbasi
points per year based on the fiyear average of our loans receivable, excluding SB#) loans receivable, subject to sec
borrowings. Our total loan loss reserves and gémhasa loss reserves as a percentage of our odisgportfolio, excluding SBA 7
(a) loans receivable, subject to secured borrowiwgse 73 basis points and 50 basis points, reispgctat December 31, 2010.

The following table represents an aging of our fomteivable at December 31, 2010. This table doesiclude our SBA 7(;
loans receivable, subject to secured borrowingsesine SBA has guaranteed payment of the principal.

Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands

Current (1) $ 196,53¢ 91.€% $ 178,59: 91.2% $ 17,947 96.1%
Between 30 and 59 days delinqu 4,87 2.2% 4,664 2.4% 218 1.1%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 5,57¢ 2.6% 5,25z 2.7% 323 1.7%
Over 89 days delinquent ( 7,54¢ 3.5% 7,35¢ 3.£% 19C 1.C%

$ 214,54. 100.% $ 195,86¢ 100.(% $ 18,67: 100.(%

(1) Includes $9.0 million of loans which are currentden agreements which provide for interest only papts during a shao
period of time (not more than six months remainiimggxchange for additional collateral. Of this, .8illion relates to a
affiliated group of obligors representing approxitely 6% of our loans receivable at December 31,02

(2) Includes $6.3 million of loans on which the borresvbave filed for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. We aressified as a secur
creditor in the bankruptcy proceedings. In addititime collateral underlying $1.1 million of loansciuded in the over 89 de
delinquent category are in the foreclosure proc

The year of origination for our loans receivablec{ading our SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subjecséoured borrowings sin
the SBA has guaranteed payment of the pringipadre as follows:

Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Year of Originatior Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands

1991 to 199¢ $ 36,40¢ 17.% $ 35,057 17.% $ 1,34¢ 7.2%
2000 to 200¢ 56,491 26.2% 53,73¢ 27.% 2,75¢ 14.8%
2005 to 200 79,11¢ 36.% 77,778 39.7% 1,34¢ 7.2%
2008 to 201( 42,52 19.8% 29,29¢ 15.(% 13,22: 70.8%

$ 214,54. 100.% $ 195,86¢ 100.(% $ 18,67: 100.(%
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We consider loan origination dates to be a credidlity indicator of our portfolio. Loans originatdcbm 1991 to 1999 a
heavily seasoned; thus typically representing alsmiask in terms of loss upon liquidation duegaydowns of principal. For loa
originated during 2005 to 2007, the businessesitarlilizing these loans (within a short periodimiet following closing of the loan
were subject to extreme conditions including a ssim and resulting decrease in property values arbrmance. Indust
performance, while improving, has not yet reachedrgcession levels. The majority of our loan recel@athich were over 89 da
delinquent at December 31, 2010 were originatech 26005 to 2007.

Our policy with respect to loans which are in arseas to interest payments for a period of 60 daysore is generally
discontinue the accrual of interest income. Toakent collection of a loan becomes unlikely, wdl deliver a default notice al
begin foreclosure and liquidation proceedings whendetermine that pursuit of these remedies isntbst appropriate course
action.

Management closely monitors our loans which regeiraluation for loan loss reserves based on spddintification whicl
are classified into three categories: Doubtful, Sabdard and Other Assets Especially Mentioned E®IA (together ‘Specific
Identification Loans”).Loans classified as Doubtful are generally loansciwlare not complying with their contractual ternts
collection of the balance of the principal is calesed impaired and on which the fair value of tbllateral is less than the remain
unamortized principal balance. These loans are#jlgi placed on nomccrual status and are generally in the foreclopuoees:
Loans classified as Substandard are generally tloases that are either not complying or had presfipunot complied with the
contractual terms and have other credit weaknasheh may make payment default or principal expedikely but not yet certai
Loans classified as OAEM are generally loans foictvithe credit quality of the borrowers has tempbyaeteriorated. Typically tt
borrowers are current on their payments; howevey may be delinquent on their property taxes,raste, or franchise fees.
addition, included in OAEM are loans for which therrowers have filed for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy avel are classified as
secured creditor in the bankruptcy proceedingsil Bahkruptcy plans are confirmed, the loans apéchlly delinquent.

Management has classified our loans receivabldydxg our SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject toused borrowings sin
the SBA has guaranteed payment of the principaiplémvs (balances represent our investment inldhes prior to loan loss reser
and deferred commitment fees):

December 31

2010 2009
Commerciz
Mortgage SBA 7(a
Totals % Loans % Loans % Amount %
(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $187,63( 87.2% $ 169,88l 86.1% $ 17,75( 95.1% $177,13( 89.2%
OAEM 16,88¢ 7.9% 16,87 8.€% 14 0.1% 17,59: 8.9%
Substandar 9,11: 4.2% 8,46¢ 4.2% 644 3.4% 442 0.2%
Doubtful 912 0.4% 647 0.2% 26E 1.4% 3,081 1.6%

$214,54. 100.% $ 195,86¢ 100.(% $ 18,67¢ 100.0% $198,24° 100.(%

We begin foreclosure and liquidation proceedingemvive determine the pursuit of these remediesdsmnthst appropria
course of action. Foreclosure and bankruptcy aneptex and sometimes lengthy processes that aredubj Federal and state Ie
and regulations.

Our foreclosure activity has increased. In Jan2&d0, we sold an asset acquired through forecldsurgross cash proceeds
$2,500,000 and recorded a gain of $76,000. In M260, we sold an asset acquired through forecdeur$2,275,000 and financ
the sale. During May 2010, we acquired an assettir deed in lieu of foreclosure, sold it for $5,1000 and financed $1,050,00(
the sales price. No gains or losses were recordéldase transactions.

During June 2010, the 2003 Joint Venture acquirddllaservice hospitality property through forealms. At December 3
2010, the estimated fair value of the propertyreaiiced for costs of selling, was estimated to e #illion. During October 201
our SBA 7(a) subsidiary acquired two limited seeviwospitality properties through foreclosure. We eaurrently marketing to s
these three properties and anticipate that weaopirate the properties through a thaakty management company until they ca
sold.
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We are currently in the process of foreclosure @edings on several properties collateralizing aans$. Historically
subsequent to commencement of the foreclosure ggpo®any borrowers brought their loans currents thwe stopped the foreclos
process. However, in general, we believe that aurdwers’equity in their properties has eroded and may &irdrode which mz
result in an increase in foreclosure activity aneldit losses. Borrowers have the option of seeladeral bankruptcy protecti
which could delay the foreclosure process. In cociion with the bankruptcy process, the terms &f liban agreement may
modified. Typically, delays in the foreclosure pees will have a negative impact on our results pérations and/or financ
condition due to direct and indirect costs incuraed possible deterioration of the collateralsltifficult to determine what impe
the current market disruptions will have on ourrbesers whose collateral is in the process of fasate and the borrowerability
to become current on their loans.

Properties being foreclosed upon typically havesdetated both physically (requiring certain repaimd maintenance &
discretionary capital spending) and in its markeé ( issues with the propertiesendors and reputation requiring rebuilding o
customer and vendor bases). To the extent propeaat& acquired through foreclosure, we will incalding costs including, but n
limited to, taxes, legal fees and insurance. Inynzases, (1) cash flows have been reduced suclexpanses exceed revenues
(2) franchise issues must be addressed.(quality and brand standards and rpayment of franchise fees). Notwithstanding
foregoing, we believe that in most cases it is pnido continue to have the business operate itrtén be sold because @
property’s increased marketability as an operagntity compared to noaperating (demonstrated historically through oues
efforts and from information received from thirdryabrokers). We will hire thirgrarty management companies to operatt
properties until they are sold.

In connection with the sale of our REO, we may riicea a portion of the purchase price of the propéefhese loans w
typically bear market rates of interest. While thésans are evaluated using the same methodologyral®ans receivable, cert
lending criteria may not be able to be achieved.

Our nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2010 total $12,215,@0 this, $6,289,000 represents loans collategdliby five
hospitality properties which are involved in Chapt& Bankruptcy proceedings in which we are cléssifis a secured creditor. -
estimated market value of the collateral secutiregé properties exceeds the carrying value of thass.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caaditand our results of operations is based uponcousolidated financi
statements, which have been prepared in accordaiticeéSAAP. The preparation of these financial staéats requires us to me
estimates and judgments that affect the reporteduata of assets, liabilities, revenues and expeasésrelated disclosure
contingent assets and liabilities. Our managemastdiscussed the development and selection of tré&ml accounting policie
and estimates with the audit committee of our Badr@irust Managers, and the audit committee haiewed the disclosures relati
to these policies and estimates included in thisiahreport.

We believe the following critical accounting coresidtions and significant accounting policies repnéur more significa
judgments and estimates used in the preparationrofonsolidated financial statemer

Determination of Loan Loss Reserves

We evaluate our loans for possible impairment on atgug basis. Our impairment analysis includes gahand specific loe
loss reserves. The determination of whether sicgnifi doubt exists and whether a specific loan tessrve is necessary requ
judgment and consideration of the facts and cir¢ant®s existing at the evaluation date. Our eviaiatf the possible establishm
of a specific loan loss reserve is based on, anotimgy things, a review of our historical loss exgece, the financial strength of ¢
guarantors, adverse circumstances that may afiecability of the borrower to repay interest andgddancipal and, to the extent 1
payment of the loan appears impaired, the estinfaiedglalue of the collateral. The estimated faitue of the collateral is determir
by management based on the appraised value, tassaskvalue and/or cash flows.
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We have a quarterly review process to identify avdluate potential exposure to loan losses. Lohat require specif
identification review are identified based on omemmre negative characteristics including, butlimited to, nonpayment or lack «
timely payment of interest and/or principal, neayment or lack of timely payment of property tak@san extended period of tin
insurance defaults and/or franchise defaults. Bohespecifically identified loan, an evaluatiorpigpared to identify the exposure
loss. The specific identification evaluation begimish an estimation of underlying collateral valugsing appraisals, broker pr
opinions, tax assessed value and/or revenue asalyspraisals are ordered on a casez@ige basis when management believe:
the economics of the property warrant that a ctirappraisal be performed. We generally obtain FIRRIppraisals from certifie
appraisers from national companies. Managementama@sisals as tools in conjunction with other deteants of collateral value
described above to estimate collateral values,asothe sole determinant of value due to the cumeahomic environment. T
property valuation takes into consideration curiefdirmation on property values in general and gathanges in commercial r
estate and/or hospitality properties. The probigbdf liquidation is then determined based on méawtors and is unique to ez
individual loan. These probability determinationglude macroeconomic factors, the location of tmeperty and econorr
environment where the property is located, induspegcific factors relating primarily to the hosfttaindustry (and further to tt
limited service segment of the hospitality indutrgur historical experience with similar borrowensd/or individual borrower
collateral characteristics, and in certain circlanses, the strength of the guarantors. The ligwidatrobability is then applied to t
specifically identified exposure to loss (the diffiece between our outstanding loan balance andstiraated net realizable value
establish the specifically identified reserve tfuattloan.

The general loan loss reserve is established whaeitable information indicates that it is probalkldoss has occurred in
portfolio and the amount of the loss can be redsigrestimated. Significant judgment is requiredigtermining the general loan i
reserve, including estimates of the likelihood efadilt and the estimated fair value of the colkte®ur general loan loss reserve
initially established on December 31, 2008 in resgoto the overall portfolio performance trends @odginomic conditions in order
adequately reserve for all loans (including perfognioans and the portion of specifically identifilbans for which probability
liquidation of less than 100% was utilized). The@@l loan loss reserve includes those loans whih have negative characteris
which have not yet become known to us and for gulebuture increases in liquidation probabilitiesl@ans deteriorate. The gen
loan loss reserve uses a consistent methodolodgteymine a loss percentage to be applied to oalistg loan balances. These |
percentages are based on many factors, primaritgulative and recent loss history, general econocainditions and mo
specifically current trends in the limited servioespitality industry.

Additional changes to the facts and circumstandebeindividual borrowers, the limited service pitality industry and th
economy may require the establishment of signifieatuitional loan loss reserves and the effectumresults of operations may
material.

Valuation of REO and Specific Identification Loans

REO consists of properties acquired through foale in partial or total satisfaction of npetforming loans. REO acquirec
satisfaction of a loan is recorded at estimatedviaiue less costs to sell at the date of foreckastiny excess of the carrying value
the loan over the fair value of the property lestsngated costs to sell is chargefi-to the loan loss reserve when title to the pirty
is obtained. Any excess of the estimated fair valuie property less estimated costs to sell hadtarrying value is recorded as ¢
on foreclosure within discontinued operations wtita to the property is obtained.

We have a quarterly review process to identify awdluate potential exposure to impairment lossesown REO. Thi
evaluation uses managemeantidgment of the estimated fair value of our REGjustments to the carrying value are generallyet
on managemerg’assessment of the appraised value of the callatax assessed value of the collateral, operatiatistics to th
extent available and/or discussions with potenpiatchasers and thindarty brokers and are recorded as impairment loBy
discontinued operations on our consolidated statésred income.

Managemens estimation of the fair value of our Specific ItBoation Loans is a Level 3 valuation in the faalue hierarch
established for disclosure of how a company valtseassets. In general, quoted market prices frotiweamarkets for the identic
asset (Level 1 inputs), if available, should beduevalue an asset. If quoted prices are not aviailfor the identical asset, the
determination should be made if Level 2 inputsavailable. Level 2 inputs include quoted pricesdionilar assets in active mark
or for identical or similar assets in markets ta not active {.e., markets in which there are few transactions forabset, the pric
are not current, price quotations vary substagtialt in which little information is released puii). There is limited reliable mark
information for our Specific Identification Loanadwe utilize other methodologies to value the tasgeh as appraisal informat
and tax assessed value of the collateral, thus @irerno Level 1 or Level 2 determinations avadlabkvel 3 inputs are unobserve
inputs for the asset that are used to measur@dhie when observable inputs are not availables@leputs include management’
assessment of the appraised value of the collatralassessed value of the collateral and/or tipgratatistics to the exte
available. Adjustments to the carrying value of 8fieldentification Loans are recorded as loarslosserves.
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Revenue Recognition Policies
Interest Income

Interest income includes interest earned on loadsoar shorterm investments and the amortization of net lodgirtation fee
and discounts. Interest income on loans is accaseelarned with the accrual of interest suspendegh e related loan become
non-accrual loan. A loan receivable is generalassified as non-accrual (a “Non-Accrual Loaif'(}l) it is past due as to paymen
principal or interest for a period of 60 days orreyd2) any portion of the loan is classified asilatful or is chargeaff or (3) if the
repayment in full of the principal and/or interéstin doubt. Generally, loans are charggflwhen management determines tha
will be unable to collect any remaining amounts doder the loan agreement, either through liquidatif collateral or other mea
Interest income on a Non-Accrual Loan is recognizeeither the cash basis or the cost recovergbasi

Origination fees and direct loan origination cosist, are deferred and amortized to income as mrstatent of yield over tt
life of the related loan receivable using a metiwbith approximates the effective interest method.

For loans originated under the SBA 7(a) progranonugale of the SBA guaranteed portion of the loghieh are accounted 1
as sales, the unguaranteed portion of the loaasnest by us is valued on a fair value basis andseodnt (the Retained Loa
Discount”)is recorded as a reduction in basis of the retapwtion of the loan. For loans recorded with aaietd Loan Discour
these discounts are recognized as an adjustmgigldfover the life of the related loan receivabing the effective interest method.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2009

Overview

Years Endet

December 31 Change

2010 2009 $ %
(Dollars in thousands

Total revenue $ 15,46 $ 16,26 $ (804) (4.€%)
Total expense $ 10,75: $ 10,377 $ 37t 3.6%
Income from continuing operatiol $ 4,847 $ 6,057 $ (1,219 (20.1%)
Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ (2,469 (36.4%)

The comparability of our operations between 201@ 2009 was impacted by the consolidation of preslipoff-balance she
securitizations and the accounting change (effectanuary 1, 2010) for sale treatment on Secoridariet Loan Sales.

The consolidation of previously off-balance shatities caused a “gross-upf our interest income and interest expense d
2010 as compared to separate tine+evenue recognition during 2009 as income fRatained Interests. In addition, our net inc
was impacted by a change in accounting rules etkat&econdary Market Loan Sales that records #eesecured borrowings (los
sold for excess spread and loans sold for a 10% masmium and excess spread) for the life of tlam Isubsequent to December
2009. For loans sold for a cash premium and exsigesd, the cash premium will be amortized as actéxh to interest expense o
the life of the loan.

The primary cause of the reduction in income framtmuing operations from 2009 to 2010 was the gkan accounting f
sale treatment on Secondary Market Loan Sales sisduabove. Due to this accounting change, ouripneimcome decreased fr
$1,343,000 during 2009 to $709,000 during 2010 evlulr sales of the guaranteed portion of SBA 7¢a@ns increased
$28.4 million in 2010 from $25.0 million in 2009réiums collected during 2010 which have been defedue to this accounti
change and are reflected as a liability on our clisisted balance sheet were $1,439,000 at Dece®ihe010.
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The primary cause of the reduction in net inconoenf2009 to 2010 was a $1,249,000 change in disagedi operations whi
generated a loss of $545,000 during 2010 compar@ttbme of $704,000 during 2009. During 2010, waeagyated operating los:
from operating properties acquired through foramesand impairment losses. During 2009, we gengiga@s on sales of assets
gain on foreclosure which was partially offset merating losses from foreclosure properties.

More detailed comparative information on the conitpws of and changes in our revenues and expesgaevided below.
Revenue:

The increase in interest income of $2,357,000 wasapily attributable to the consolidation of ouepiously offbalance she
securitizations partially offset by a decrease IBQR. The increase in interest income attributabléhese securitizations tota
$2,782,000 during 2010. At December 31, 2010, 78%uoloans had variable interest rates. The avebage LIBOR charged to «
borrowers decreased from 0.88% during 2009 to 0.3Ufng 2010. On our average LIBOR based portfaigstanding c
$130.2 million during 2010, the 54 basis point diop.IBOR decreased interest income by $700,000.

Income from Retained Interests decreased $2,693J0600 a change in accounting rules which requihedl our offbalanc
sheet securitizations be consolidated effectiveidignl, 2010. As a result, our income from Retaimterests decreased to $163,
during 2010. We expect that income from Retaing€erésts will remain at its current level during 201

Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December ¢

2010 2009
(In thousands
Premium income $ 70¢ $ 1,34:
Prepayment fee 37¢ 12¢€
Servicing income 344 37C
Loan related incom 22¢€ 224
Other 10€ 162

$ 1,768 $ 2,228

Premium income results from Secondary Market LoalesS Effective January 1, 2010, we only recordniuen income relate
to sales for cash premiums and the 1% minimum reduservicing spread. During February 2011, we gbkl governmel
guaranteed portion totaling $4,680,000 on two lofmscash premiums and the required 1% servicingagh We collected ca
premiums of $449,000 related to these two salesmfim income will not equal collected cash premilrasause premium incol
represents the difference between the fair valtrébatable to the sale of the government guaranggation of the loan and t
principal balance (cost) of the loan adjusted bstsof origination.

Based on our loan portfolio composition and otherkat factors, we anticipate that the amount opayenents will be

relatively low levels during 2011. Prepayment feeome is dependent upon a number of factors andtigenerally predictable
the mix of loans prepaying is not known.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended December ¢

2010 2009
(In thousands
Structured note $ 1,29¢ $ 281
Junior subordinated not 994 1,14%
Revolving credit facility 69¢ 667
Debentures payab 49¢ 497
Secured borrowing 39¢ —
Other 132 281

$ 4,01¢ $ 2,86¢

The weighted average cost of our funds was 4.1%ng@®009 compared to 4.0% during 2010. Intereseasp on the juni
subordinated notes decreased as a result of desrgakIBOR.

The weighted average balance outstanding on ouolRavdecreased to $18.9 million during 2010 fro&b.$ million during
2009 while the interest rate increased by 0.75%fione borrowings during 2010.

During May 2009, we redeemed 20,000 shares of $a0@alue, 4% cumulative preferred stock of onewfSBICs held by tt
SBA due in September 2009. No gain or loss wasrdecbon the redemption. During March 2010, we redsab the remainir
20,000 shares of $100 par value, 4% cumulativeepred stock of one of our SBICs held by the SBA oluiay 2010. No gain «
loss was recorded on the redemption.

The increase in interest expense on structured matgable is due to the consolidation of thebaffance sheet securitizations
September 2009, we consolidated the 2003 Jointwenicluding its structured notes and their reldatgerest expense. The 2(
Joint Venture notes bear interest at LIBOR plu$®.&ffective January 1, 2010, due to a change éowatting rules, we consolidal
the structured notes of the 2000 Joint Venture thed1998 Partnership and their related intereseres@. The 2000 Joint Vent
notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 7.28% wthiée1998 Partnership notes bear interest at tiheeprate less 1%. In addition, dur
September 2009 we repaid the remaining structuoéesrof the 2002 Joint Venture which had a fixedriest rate of 6.67%.

In addition, effective January 1, 2010, we recortriest expense on secured borrowings relatingalies f the guarante
portion of our SBA 7(a) loans.

Other Expenses

General and administrative expense increased fr@®9%,000 during 2009 to $2,168,000 during 2010neBa an
administrative expenses are comprised of (1) catpooverhead including legal and professional esggnsales and market
expenses, public company and regulatory costs @nekpenses related to assets currently in theepsoaf foreclosure. Our corpor
overhead decreased slightly to $1,843,000 from &710®0. Expenses related to assets currently inptbeess of foreclosu
increased to $325,000 during 2010 from $229,00indu2009. These expenses incurred during the fosecké process for proble
loans are primarily related to property taxes inedy legal fees, protection of the asset and oipgradeficits funded to receivers. \
expect to continue to incur general and administagéxpenses related to these problem loans wh#ilfereclosure processes
completed; however, we are unable to estimate thegenses at this time and these expenses maytbaahadnce the foreclost
processes are completed, net losses are includisiciontinued operations related to these progertie

Permanent impairments on Retained Interests (wdtens of the value of our Retained Interests) wks62,000 in 20C

resulting primarily from reductions in expecteduig cash flows. Due to a change in accounting yetsctive January 1, 2010,
no longer record additions to Retained Interests.
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Provision for loans losses, net, was $641,000 du2®l0 compared to $989,000 during 2009. Theseigioms were primaril
related to the prolonged economic recession angrueconomic environment and negative changekérfihancial condition «
certain borrowers and collateral valuation on éert@spitality loans. During 2010, we increased gemeral reserve to $1,100,000.

Income tax benefit was $131,000 during 2010 contpaoe$167,000 during 2009. During 2010, a deferteed benefit o
$712,000 was recorded by one of our taxable REBGigiaries as a result of a book loss while curirodbme tax expense of 1
subsidiary was $410,000. The primary reason fordifference is the new accounting rules that defmaigs recognition treatment
Secondary Market Loan Sales. During 2010, signifiggains of $2,439,000 were deferred for book psegoand recorded as g:
for income tax purposes.

Discontinued Operation:
Our discontinued operations consisted of the falhgw

Years Ended December ¢

2010 2009
(In thousands
Gains on sales of real est $ 78 $ 721
Gain on foreclosur — 38¢
Impairment losse (325) —
Net operating losse (298 (40€)
Discontinued operatior $ (545  $ 704

Gains on sales of real estate generally represeatrie recognition on previously deferred gains.elrefl gains are recordec
income as principal is received on the related doantil the required amount of cash proceeds atairad from the purchaser
qualify for full accrual gain treatment. We alsalteagain on the sale of REO acquired through foserk of $76,000 during 2010.

Gain on foreclosure represents the gain recordetheattime of foreclosure of the collateral undertyia limited servic
hospitality property as its estimated fair valussleosts to sell was greater than the carryingafdsie loan. The property was sol
approximately the recorded value during 2010 witremy additional gain or loss.

Impairment losses represent declines in the esintir value of our REO subsequent to initial atilon. During 2010, w
recorded an impairment loss of $203,000 related fall service hospitality property owned by the020Joint Venture due to
decline in its market potential and an impairmesslof $114,000 related to a retail establishment.

During 2010, net operating losses from discontinapdrations were primarily from our hospitality pesties. We expect

continue to generate net holding period lossetorproperties acquired through foreclosure uhil properties are sold. Duri
2009, these losses were primarily from the opemnatfoa golf course included in REO which was saldanuary 2010.
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Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to the YeanBed December 31, 2008

Overview

Years Endet

December 31 Change

2009 2008 $ %
(Dollars in thousands

Total revenue $ 16,267 $ 23,11° $ (6,850 (29.€%)
Total expense $ 10,37" $ 13,77¢ $ (3,399 (24.7%)
Income from continuing operatiol $ 6,051 $ 9,027 $ (2,96%) (32.¢%)
Discontinued operatior $ 704 $ 784 $ (80) (10.2%)
Net income $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢ $ (3,04%) (31.1%)

Net income decreased from 2008 to 2009 primariky
* A decrease in our net interest margin of $2,230@@arily due to a decrease in LIBOR; ¢

. A decrease in yield generated from our Retaiméerésts of approximately $3,503,000 due to tharattent of “clean-up”
call options causing a reduction in the weightedrage balance of our Retained Interests and atiedun the amount «
fees received upon prepayment of the lo

The above reductions in net income were partidfised by:

e Areduction in overhead (salaries and related besnafid general and administrative expenses) @4®1000 due primari
to our 2008 cost reduction initiatives; &

. A onetime charge for severance costs of $1,808,000 @98 as a result of our cost reduction initisgiemnounced
October 2008

More detailed comparative information on the conitpws of and changes in our revenues and expesgaevided below.
Revenue:

The decrease in interest income of $3,360,000 wiesagly attributable to decreases in LIBOR patiiaffset by an increase
our weighted average loans receivable outstandiuy.weighted average loans receivable increasé&190.2 million during 20C
from $180.0 million during 2008 primarily due toetttonsolidation of loans previously included in-bfflance sheet entities.
December 31, 2009, approximately 77% of our rethinans had variable interest rates. The average b@BOR rate charged to ¢
borrowers decreased from 3.5% during 2008 to 0.9%nd 2009. During 2009, our average outstandingQR based loans we
$126.0 million. The 260 basis point reduction irBOR caused an approximate $3.3 million reductionnberest income. To tl
extent variable rates decline further, they wil&a negative impact on our earnings.

Income from Retained Interests decreased primdiiky to a 45% decrease in the weighted average dsalanour Retaine
Interests outstanding to $21.4 million during 2@@8npared to $38.9 million during 2008 due primatiyattainment of “cleamy
call” options and a reduction in yield. The yield on Ratained Interests, which is comprised of the ine@arned less perman
impairments, decreased to 10.6% during 2009 fror@%5luring 2008. In addition, there was a decr@as@anticipated prepayme
fees of approximately $1.3 million on the sold Isafi the QSPEs.
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Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December ¢

2009 2008
(In thousands
Premium income $ 1,34: $ 22%
Servicing income 37C 46¢
Loan related incom 224 36¢
Prepayment fee 12¢ 771
Other 162 38C
$ 2,22¢ $ 2,212

Premium income results from Secondary Market LoalesS Of the $25.0 million of guaranteed portiorB&A 7(a) loans so
during 2009, $16.3 million were sold for cash prem$ with an average premium collected of 8%. Aesult of governme
initiatives that increased the maximum guarantedgntage of loans from 75% to 90%, we were abied@ase our volume of lo

sales which benefitted our premium income during%20

We saw high levels of prepayment activity during first half of 2008; however, our prepayment attiwas significantl
reduced during the last half of 2008 and during®U®repayment fee income is dependent upon a nuofbictors and is n

generally predictable as the mix of loans prepajgngpt known.
Interest Expense

Interest expense consisted of the following:

Years Ended December ¢

2009 2008
(In thousands
Junior subordinated not $ 1,14: $ 1,80z
Revolver 667 793
Debentures payab 497 49¢
Structured note 281 10C
Conduit facility — 434
Other 281 281
$ 2,86¢ $ 3,90¢

The weighted average cost of our funds was 4.1%ng@®009 compared to 5.5% during 2008. Intereseasp on the juni
subordinated notes decreased as a result of desrga&|BOR. The conduit facility matured on May2)08 and was repaid us
proceeds from our Revolver. The weighted averadstanding on our Revolver increased to $25.0 mmlliluring 2009 from $17
million during 2008. As a result of the extensiohowr Revolver, the interest rate was increasedli3y5% for LIBORbase!
borrowings and 0.75% for prime rate borrowings @ffee December 29, 2009. Based on the 2009 weightedage outstandi
balance outstanding on the Revolver of $25.0 mmjlimssuming LIBORyased borrowings, interest expense would have pesate
by approximately $350,000 during 2009.

During May 2009, we redeemed 20,000 shares of $a0@alue, 4% cumulative preferred stock of onewfSBICs held by tt
SBA due in September 2009. No gain or loss wasrdecbon the redemption.

In September 2009, we repaid the remaining stradtuotes of the 2002 Joint Venture which had afixéerest rate of 6.67¢
In addition, beginning in September 2009, we cadatdéd the 2003 Joint Venture including its struetlinotes of $8.6 million whic
bear interest at LIBOR plus 2.5%.

41




Table of Contents

Other Expenses

General and administrative expense decreased frar804,000 during 2008 to $2,096,000 during 2009neBa an
administrative expenses during 2009 are compriged)acorporate overhead including legal and prsifasal expenses, sales .
marketing expenses, public company and regulatosgscand (2) expenses related to assets currentheiprocess of foreclosu
Our corporate overhead decreased by $437,000 piynaara result of decreased professional feesoandost reduction initiative
Expenses related to assets currently in the pramfefseclosure totaled $229,000 during 2009. Thexgeenses incurred during
foreclosure process for problem loans are primaelgted to property taxes incurred, legal feestgmtion of the asset and opera
deficits funded to receivers. Once the forecloguecesses are completed, net losses will be indludediscontinued operatio
related to these properties. We did not have asgtasn the process of foreclosure during 2008.

Salaries and related benefits expense decreased $40705,000 during 2008 to $3,871,000 during 2808 primarily to
reduction in workforce which was announced in Oetdl008. Annual savings from the cost reductiorigtives during th
12 months subsequent to their implementation wemroximately $1.2 million which was primarily a retion of salaries ai
related benefits.

Permanent impairments on Retained Interests (wioteas of the value of our Retained Interests) vi&%2,000 and $521,0
for 2009 and 2008, respectively, resulting prinyafilom reductions in expected future cash flows guinarily to increase
prepayments and loan losses.

Provision for loans losses, net, increased to $88Pduring 2009 compared to $439,000 during 2008.r&¢orded a provisit
for loan losses, net, of $614,000 related to oecsig loan loss reserves during 2009 due primadlgevaluations of commercial r
estate collateralizing our limited service hosjtiydbans. We increased our general provision danl losses by $375,000 during 2
primarily due to the weakened economy and recessiemaluations of commercial real estate, incredseds evaluated f
impairment and rising borrower delinquencies anfémeent requests.

Income tax benefit (provision) was a benefit of 3080 during 2009 compared to a provision of $30@,8uring 2008. Th
change was primarily due to (1) reduced earningsra of our taxable REIT subsidiaries, (2) a deférbenefit resulting fro
increased loan loss reserves, and (3) a defermefibeesulting from sale of loans of our SBA sulisiy.

Discontinued Operation:
Our discontinued operations consisted of the falhgw

Years Ended December ¢

2009 2008
(In thousands
Gains on sales of real est: $ 721 $ 784
Gain on foreclosur 38¢ —
Net operating losse (40€) —
Discontinued operatior $ 704 $ 784

Gains on sales of real estate represent incomgmémn on previously deferred gains. Deferred gaire recorded to income
principal is received on the related loans un#l thquired amount of cash proceeds are obtainedtfie purchaser to qualify for f
accrual gain treatment.

Gain on foreclosure represents the initial gainorded on the foreclosure of the collateral undedya limited servic
hospitality property as its estimated fair valugsleosts to sell was greater than the carryingafdbe loan.

We incurred net holding period losses included iscahtinued operations of $406,000 during 2009 diiclv $345,00
represents the losses from operating a golf coargeired in July 2009 and the remainder relatesutoother properties acquirec
2009 (a retail establishment and a limited sertigspitality property). In January 2010, we sold gloéf course for cash proceeds
$2.5 million and recorded a gain of approximatef$ $00.
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SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following represents our selected quarterlgriicial data which, in the opinion of managemeriteces adjustments (comprisi
only normal recurring adjustments) necessary fiorpi@sentation.

Year Ended December 31, 20

Income Fror
Continuing Net Earnings
Revenue: Operations Income Per Shart
(In thousands, except earnings per share and faeji
First Quarte! $ 3,45¢ $ 1,267 $ 1,27¢ $ 0.12
Second Quarte 3,93¢ 1,22¢ 1,223 0.1z
Third Quartel 4,30¢ 1,242 1,207 0.11
Fourth Quarte 3,77( 1,10 58¢ 0.0€(1)
$ 15,46 $ 4,84: $ 4,297 $ 0.41

Year Ended December 31, 20

Income Fror
Continuing Net Earnings
Revenue: Operations Income Per Shart
(In thousands, except earnings per shi

First Quarte! $ 3,991 $ 1,59¢ $ 1,62¢ $ 0.1t
Second Quarte 3,872 1,54¢ 1,56¢ 0.1t
Third Quartel 4,237 1,46¢ 1,89¢ 0.1¢
Fourth Quarte 4,167 1,44¢ 1,67¢ 0.1¢€
$ 16,26 $ 6,057 $ 6,761 $ 0.64

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2010, we recorded Es$rom discontinued operations of $193,000 frotroperating losses of o
limited service hospitality properties includedREO and impairment losses on our REO of $325,

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash Flow Analysis

Information on our cash flow was as follows:

Years Ende:
December 31
2010 2009 Change
(In thousands
Cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (20,109 $ 5,86( $ (25,969
Cash provided by investing activiti $ 10,25¢ $ 9,67¢ $ 582
Cash provided by (used in) financing activit $ 4,64¢ $ (18309 $ 22,95

Due to a change in accounting rules effective Janlja2010 which delayed (due to a 90 day contiogeyeriod) or eliminate
sale treatment related to our Secondary Market [Smas, cash used to originate loans held forasal@ use of funds from operai
activities while proceeds from the sale of guaradtéoans are included in financing activities. DgriFebruary 2011, the St
rescinded the contingency period; therefore, theilebe no deferral of gain recognition on sales focash premium and the
minimum servicing spread after that date. Procémais these sales will be reflected as operatiniyiéiets beginning on that date.
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Operating Activities

Our net cash flow from operating activities is paily used to fund our dividends. Since operatiagicflows also includ
lending activities, it is necessary to adjust castcflow from operating activities for our lendiagtivities to determine coverage
our dividends from operations. Therefore, we adjet cash provided by operating activities to “Midi Cash.”Managemet
believes that our modified cash available for divid distributions (“Modified Cash's a more appropriate indicator of opera
cash coverage of our dividend payments than cash firovided by (used in) operating activities. Miati Cash is calculated
adjusting our cash from operating activities byt{i§ change in operating assets and liabilities(8htbans funded, held, for sale,
of proceeds from sale of guaranteed loans (“Opegdtban Activity”). Modified Cash is one of the n@AAP measurements us
by our Board in its determination of dividends ahdir timing. NonGAAP financial measures have inherent limitatioas no
required to be uniformly applied and are not autlithese noifGAAP measures have limitations as analytical taold should not t
considered in isolation, or as a substitute folye®s of results as reported under GAAP. In respectir dividend policy, we belie
that the disclosure of Modified Cash adds addifisrsasparency to our dividend calculation andntittns. However, Modified Ca
may differ significantly from dividends paid due toning differences between book income and taxahd®me and timing «
payment of dividends to eliminate or reduce Fede@me taxes or excise taxes at the REIT level.

The following reconciles net cash flow provided(bged in) operating activities to Modified Cash:

Years Ended December ¢

2010 2009
(In thousands
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ (20,109 % 5,86(
Change in operating assets and liabili (1,007 1,04¢
Operating Loan Activity 27,60: (612)
Modified Cast $ 6,497 $ 6,297

To the extent Modified Cash does not cover theerurdividend distribution rate or if additional bais needed based on
working capital needs, the Board may choose to fudthi current dividend policy. During 2010 and 20@lividends paid we
greater than our Modified Cash by $279,000 and&B®0, respectively. The excess distribution du009 includes the paym:
of approximately $1.5 million of special dividenddated to taxable income during 2008. To the extemneed working capital
fund any shortfall in operating cash flows to cower dividend distribution, we would borrow the @sfrom our Revolver or u
funds from the repayment of principal on our loegteivable.

Investing Activities

Our primary investing activity is the originatiofiloans and collections on our investment portfolduring 2010 and 2009, t
primary source of funds was principal collected loans receivable in excess of loans funded of $900® and $8,589,0C
respectively. In addition, during 2010 we sold ss#ecluded in REO and collected net cash proceé82,373,000. During 2010 \
used funds to increase our investment in our uralwiaed variable interest entity by repaying itsrtgage note of $1,024,000.

Based on our outstanding loan portfolio at Decen®ier2010, our scheduled principal payments in 28l approximate
$12.9 million. Of this, approximately $7.5 millicould be available to repay a portion of the emistbalance under the Revoh
The remaining $5.4 million would be used to repayictured notes payable, secured borrowings andvfking capital of oL
SBICs. Our need for capital to fund new loans heenlreduced as a result of the focus of loan atgin activity to SBA 7(a) loar
We anticipate net funding needs between $8 millind $11 million during 2011 after sale of the goweent guaranteed portion
the loans. To the extent our loan origination liityi needs were to exceed our principal repaymami$ any proceeds frc
liquidating the collateral of our non-performingalts, we would use our Revolver to fund the shartfal

Financing Activities

We used funds in financing activities during 201id 22009 primarily to pay dividends of $6,776,000d &9,681,00(
respectively. Primarily as a result of our net lagdactivity, during 2010 we were able to repay289illion on our Revolve
Proceeds from Secondary Market Loan Sales durifi 2@ere $28,445,000, In addition, we redeemed $®@libn of redeemabl
preferred stock of subsidiary in 2009 and $2.0ianilin 2010 using cash on hand of one of our SBIRs&liaries. During 2009, \
exercised the “clean-up calfption and repaid the structured notes of the 208t Venture of $5,517,000 using the reserve i
cash on hand and proceeds from our Revolver. Werafsurchased common shares under our share regergtan for $1,076,0
during 2009. We did not repurchase shares undesléimeduring 2010 and the plan expired.
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Sources and Uses of Funds
Liquidity Summary

Liquidity is a measure of our ability to meet pdtahcash requirements, including ongoing committegn repay borrowing
fund loans and other investments, pay dividendsd fdebt service and for other general corporatpgaas. Our primary sources
funds to meet our shotérm liquidity needs, including working capital vitlends, debt service and additional investmefitany.
consist of (1) proceeds from principal and inteqggyments, including prepayments, (2) borrowingdenrany credit facilities ai
(3) Secondary Market Loan Sales. We believe theseces of funds will be sufficient to meet our lidjity requirements in the short-
term.

Our Revolver matures on December 31, 2011. Thé aot@unt available under the Revolver is $30 millidéit December 3
2010, we had $13.8 million outstanding under thedResr. We are currently addressing the extensfahe facility for an addition
year with our lendel

Currently we cannot access debt capital throughelarse lines, securitization issuances or trusepea issuances. In t
event we are not able to extend or refinance owoRer upon its maturity in December 2011 or susfids/ secure alternatiy
financing, we will rely on Modified Cash, principphyments (including prepayments), and (if necg3gaoceeds from asset ¢
loan sales to satisfy our liquidity requirements.

If we are unable to make required payments undebotrowings, breach any representation or warrafityur borrowings ¢
violate any covenant, our lenders may acceleraterthturity of our debt, require us to liquidatedgled collateral or force us to t:
other actions. In connection with an event of diéfander our Revolver, the lender is permitted toederate repayment of
amounts due, terminate commitments thereunderliguidate the mortgage loan collateral held as sgcfor the Revolver to satis
any balance outstanding and due pursuant to thelRsv Any such event may have a material adveffeeteon our liquidity, th
value of our common shares and our ability to psiddnds to our shareholders.

Sources of Funds

In general, we need liquidity to originate new Isaand repay principal and interest on our debt. @uarating revenues
typically utilized to pay our operating expensasteiiest and dividends. We have been utilizing ppedccollections on loat
receivable, proceeds from Secondary Market LoaasSahd borrowings under our Revolver as our prirsagyces of funds.

In addition, historically we utilized a combinatiofithe following sources, among others, to gemefatds:
. Issuance of SBIC debenturt

. Issuance of junior subordinated notes

. Structured loan financings or sales (prior to 20

These sources are not available to us at the grésenand there can be no assurance that theybeilvailable in the futui
Since 2004, our working capital was primarily peed through credit facilities and the issuanceunfgr subordinated notes. Priol
2004, our primary source of long-term funds wasudtred loan sale transactions through commermah |assebacker
securitizations. At the current time, there is agharket available to us for commercial loan abseked securitizations. We can
anticipate when, or if, this market will again beagable to us. Until this market becomes availafadleus, our ability to grow
limited.

The limited amount of capital available to origimatew loans has caused us to significantly restraat-SBA 7(a) loa
origination activity. A reduction in the availalhyliof the above sources of funds could have a nahi@averse impact on our financ
condition and results of operations. If these sesi@re not available in the future, we may haveriginate loans at further reduc
levels or sell assets, potentially on unfavorabtent.
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Our Revolver, which has aggregate availability 80 $nillion, matures December 31, 2011. There candassurance that"
will be able to extend or refinance our Revolveomiits maturity. To the extent we need additioreital for unanticipated iten
there can be no assurance that we would be ablerease the amount available under any steont-credit facilities or identify oth
sources of funds at an acceptable cost, if at all.

During the second and third quarters of 2010, vepiested commitments from the SBA for debenture$1& million whict
would be used to fund loans within our SBICs. &ili, approval for these commitments was deniedyéher, we are in discussic
with the SBA and have provided additional requesteclimentation to attempt to obtain these additioommitments.

We rely on Secondary Market Loan Sales to creatdlability and/or repay principal due under our Bleer. Once full
funded, we sell the government guaranteed portfoouo SBA 7(a) loans pursuant to Secondary Markedrl Sales. The marl
demand for Secondary Market Loan Sales may deolife temporarily suspended. To the extent we aable to execute Second
Market Loan Sales in the normal course of businassfinancial condition and results of operaticosid be adversely affected.

As a REIT we must distribute to our shareholdereast 90% of our REIT taxable income to maintain @ax status under t
Code. Accordingly, to the extent the sources abvepeesent taxable income, such amounts have hialigribeen distributed to o
shareholders. In general, if we receive less cawh bur portfolio of investments, we can lower theidend so as not to cause .
material cash shortfall. During 2011, we anticiptitat our Modified Cash will be utilized to fund roexpected 2011 divide|
distributions and generally will not be availabiefind portfolio growth or for the repayment ofrmipal due on our debt.

The Revolver requires us to comply with certainermants. At December 31, 2010, we were in compliavittethe covenants
this facility. While we anticipate maintaining coligmce with these covenants during 2011, therebeano assurance that we will
able to do so. Our most significant covenants vasréollows at December 31, 2010:

Requiremen
Covenan or Maximum Actual
Minimum net worth $145,000,00 $150,560,00
Maximum leverage rati 2.0C 0.67
Non-performing loan rati 15% 8%

Uses of Funds

Currently, the primary use of our funds is to anage loans and for repayment of the principal andrést of our debt. O
outstanding commitments to fund new loans were $illion at December 31, 2010, the majority of ethiwere for primeate
based loans to be originated by First Westerngthernment guaranteed portion of which is intentbede sold into the second
market. Our net working capital outlay would be @pgmately $3.3 million related to these loans; koer, the governme
guaranteed portion of the SBA 7(a) loans cannatdde until they are fully funded. Commitments hdixed expiration dates. Sin
some commitments expire without the proposed |dasirg, total committed amounts do not necessaglyresent future ca
requirements. We anticipate that fundings during22@ill range from $40 million to $50 million. Inddition, we use funds f
operating deficits and holding costs of our REO praperties in the process of foreclosure.

There may be several months between when thelibdiance of an SBA 7(a) loan is funded and itidyffunded and can |
sold pursuant to Secondary Market Loan Sales.dsetlinstances, our liquidity would be affectechia $hort-term.

Upon approval from our lender, we may repurchasaddrom our securitizations which have become rgpba-off” as define
in the transaction documents either through debngy or initiation of foreclosure proceedings ormay repurchase all of the lo:
from a securitization once “clean-up call” optiomsve been achieved. Currently, we have achieveshtielp call’options on ot
2003 Joint Venture and 1998 Partnership. Once a&pgdraf we choose to repurchase a loan from a gemation or exercise ol
“clean-up call’option and repurchase all the loans from a segatitin using our Revolver, the balance due on tuctired note
payable would decrease and the balance due undé&emolver would increase. We may also be requioedse the restricted ce
collateralizing one of our securitizations to repayhe structured noteholders a loan within swettustization if it is deemed to b
“charged-off” loan pursuant to the transaction doeats.
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We may pay dividends in excess of our Modified Casmaintain our REIT status or as approved byBuard. During 201!

our sources of funds for our dividend distributiafsapproximately $6.8 million were Modified Cash$6.5 million and princip:
collections on our loans of $0.3 million.

SEASONALITY

Generally, we are not subject to seasonal trendsueier, since we primarily lend to the limited seevhospitality industn

loan delinquencies and requests for defermentsdlilpirise temporarily after the summer months guenarily to reductions i
business travel and consumer vacations.

SUMMARIZED CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMITMENTS AND  CONTINGENCIES

The following summarizes our contractual obligasi@t December 31, 2010:

Payments Due by Peric

Less thar 1to3 3to5 More than
Contractual Obligations (. Total 1 year years years 5 years
(In thousands, except footnot:

Debt:
SBIC debentures payable | $ 8,19( $ — $ 4,19( $ 4,00( $ —
Structured notes payable | 22,15' 3,40¢ 7,482 8,05: 3,211
Secured borrowings — government

guaranteed loans (. 21,76¢ 56€ 1,18¢ 1,26¢ 18,74¢
Revolver 13,80( 13,80( — — —
Junior subordinated debt ( 27,07( — — — 27,07(
Interest:
Debt (5) 35,20¢ 3,831 5,94¢ 4,45¢ 20,97:
Other Contractual Obligations
Severance and related bene 12¢ 57 71 — —
Operating lease (¢ 187 187 — — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 128,50: $ 21,85( $ 18,88( $ 17,77. $ 70,00:

(1)

()
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Does not include $3.0 million of cumulative preésfrstock of subsidiary (valued at $900,000 on aamsolidated balanc
sheet) and related dividends (recorded as inteegpiense) of $90,000 annually which is perpetual gmd has no maturi
date.

SBIC debentures payable are presented at face v

Principal payments are dependent upon cash flowsived from the underlying loans. Our estimatehefrtrepayment is bas
on scheduled principal payments on the underlyiogan$. Our estimate will differ from actual amoumdsthe extent w
experience prepayments and/or los:

The junior subordinated notes may be redeemed abption, without penalty and are subordinated thl® Commerciak
existing debt

Calculated using the variable rate in effect at Beder 31, 2010. In addition, for our Revolver, assea current balant
outstanding through maturity dat

Represents future minimum lease payments undespmrating lease for office spac

Our commitments at December 31, 2010 are summaaigéollows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Peri
Total Amount: Less thar 1to3 3to5 After 5

Commitments Committed 1 year years years years

(In thousands

Loan commitment $ 16,477 $ 16,47 $ — $ — $ —

See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrfent detailed discussion of commitments andingetcies.
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

During 2006, we entered into a lease agreementrierof our hotel properties. The property had atgage with a princip.
balance of $1.3 million with a significant prepayrheenalty. Therefore, we structured the lease wWith potential buyer of tl
property for a term equal to the term remainingom mortgage and then a purchase with a price 82%1000. The subsidiary w
determined to be a variable interest entity. Siweedid not expect to absorb the majority of thetgrd future expected losses
receive the entity expected residual returns, PMC Commercial Truz not considered to be the primary beneficiaryusThhe
subsidiary was no longer consolidated in PMC ConeiméiTrust’s financial statements and the equity method wad ts accoul
for our investment in the subsidiary effective Sepber 29, 2006.

During January 2011, the fixed price purchase optias exercised and the property was sold to aseke No gain or loss v
recorded on the transaction.

IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

See Note 1 of the Consolidated Financial Statemfenta full description of recent accounting pronoements including tl
respective dates adopted or expected dates ofiadaptd effect, if any, on our results of operasiamd financial condition.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Servicing fee income for the years ended Decembge2@9 and 2008 for loans held by the QSPEs was,800 and $287,0C
respectively.

We received approximately $2.9 million and $6.8lionl in cash distributions from the QSPEs during020and 200¢
respectively.

We entered into a consulting agreement with ouméar chief operating officer for consulting servicies October 200t
Payments under the consulting agreement totalecb®22 $50,000 and $10,000 during 2010, 2009 and,2B8spectively. Th
agreement terminated on April 1, 2010.

DIVIDENDS

During 2010, our dividends were declared as foltows

Amount
Record Dat¢ Date Paic Per Shart Type
March 31, 201( April 12, 2010 $ 0.1¢ Regular
June 30, 201 July 12, 201( 0.1¢ Regular
September 30, 201 October 12, 201 0.1¢ Regular
December 31, 201 January 10, 201 0.1€ Regular
$ 0.64

Our shareholders are entitled to receive dividemiaisn and as declared by our Board. In determinivigehd policy, our Boar
considers many factors including, but not limited actual and anticipated Modified Cash, expeatatifor future earnings, RE
taxable income and maintenance of REIT status,et@nomic environment, our ability to obtain levexaand loan portfoli
performance. In order to maintain REIT status, P@&@nmercial is required to pay out 90% of REIT tdgebcome. Consequent
the dividend rate on a quarterly basis will notessarily correlate directly to any individual facto

In order to meet our 2009 taxable income distrinutiequirements, we made an election under the @otfeat a portion of tt
distributions declared in 2010 as distribution2609's REIT taxable income. These distributions are kmaw spillover dividend
As a result, our dividends declared in 2010 excéede 2010 REIT taxable income.

Our Board maintained our quarterly dividend at $0pkr share for the first quarter dividend to b&pa April 2011. Wk
anticipate that the Board will adjust the divideaxdneeded, on a quarterly basis, thereafter.
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We have certain covenants within our debt facsitileat limit our ability to pay out returns of cegbias part of our dividenc
These restrictions have not historically limitee@ timount of dividends we have paid and managenuoa# ot believe that they v
restrict future dividend payments.

TAXABLE INCOME

REIT taxable income and Taxable income, net ofandrtax expense are financial measures that asemted to assist invest
in analyzing our performance and are factors wtilidy our Board in determining the level of dividento be paid to o
shareholders. NoBAAP financial measures have inherent limitaticarg not required to be uniformly applied and areanalited
These nortsAAP measures have limitations as analytical t@old should not be considered in isolation, or amulastitute fc
analyses of results as reported under GAAP.

The following reconciles net income to REIT taxaioleome:

Years Ended December :
2010 2009 2008
(In thousands

Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢
Book/tax difference on depreciati (53 (56) (60)
Book/tax difference on gains related to real es 387 (1,110 (784)
Book/tax difference on Retained Interests, — (212 57
Severance accrual (paymer (33 (1,43%) 1,59¢
Impairment losse 317 — —
Book/tax difference on amortization and accre (102) (232) (34%)
Loan valuatior (247) 497 43C
Other book/tax differences, r (121) (38) (177)

Subtotal 4,451 4,17¢ 10,52¢

Adjustment for taxable REIT subsidiaries net lassdme), net of ta 34C 41z (587)

Dividend distribution from taxable REIT subsidie 30C — 2,00(

REIT taxable incom $ 5,091 $ 4 ,58¢ $ 11,93¢

Distributions declare $ 6,75¢ $ 7,44 $ 10,90¢

Weighted average common shares outstan 10,55/ 10,57 10,761

As a REIT, PMC Commercial generally will not be gdb to corporate level Federal income tax on netiine that is current
distributed to shareholders provided the distrifmugxceeds 90% of REIT taxable income. We may naakelection under the Cc
to treat distributions declared in the current yasdistributions of the prior yeartaxable income. Upon election, the Code pro
that, in certain circumstances, a dividend declardibequent to the close of an ensitidxable year and prior to the extended due
of the entitys tax return may be considered as having been rimadlee prior tax year in satisfaction of income tdimition
requirements.

To the extent our taxable REIT subsidiaries distebtheir retained earnings through dividends toCP®ommercial, the:
dividends would be included in REIT taxable incomigen distributed. From 2005 to 2010, approxima&3y4 million of earning
were accumulated. We distributed $2.0 million ofnéizgs from one of our taxable REIT subsidiariePtdC Commercial durir
2008 and $0.3 million during 2010.
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Primarily as a result of the timing differences f@in recognition on Secondary Market Loan Salescombined REIT taxak
income and taxable REIT subsidiaries’ (“TRS’¢8xable income (net of income tax expense) is naledifferent than our ni
income. The following table reconciles our net imeoto our Taxable Income, Net of Current Tax Expens

Year Ended December 31, 2C

Combined REIT TRE's
(In thousands, except footnoti
Net income $ 4,29 $ 4,637 $ (340
Book vs. tax timing difference 2,27¢ 454 1,82((1)
Taxable incomq 6,571 5,091 1,48(
Dividends paid from TRS to REI (300 (300 —
Taxable income adjusted for special it 6,271 4,791 1,48(
Current income tax expen (519 — (5149
Taxable Income, Net of Current Tax Expe $ 5,751 $ 4,791 $ 96€
Year Ended December 31, 20
Combined REIT TRE's
(In thousands, except footnot:
Net income $ 6,761 $ 7,17¢ $ (419
Book vs. tax timing difference (1,912 (2,587(2) 675(1)
Taxable incomq 4,84¢ 4,58¢ 261
Severance payments { 1,43¢ 1,43¢ —
Taxable income adjusted for special it 6,28¢ 6,02z 261
Current income tax expen (89) — (89
Taxable Income, Net of Current Tax Expe $ 6,198 $ 6,027 $ 172

(1) Includes $2,547,000 and $777,000 of timing diffeemsnduring 2010 and 2009, respectively, relatedanprily to Secondal
Market Loan Sales. The increase in 2010 is dueanmilynto the accounting change related to Seconddayket Loan Sales

(2) Related to our 2008 reduction in force which wasessed for GAAP purposes in 2008 and for incom@tagoses in 200¢

Taxable Income, Net of Current Tax Expense is @efias reported net income, adjusted for book veaesusming difference
and special items. Special items may include, betret limited to, unusual and infrequent raperating items. We use Taxa
Income, Net of Current Tax Expense to measure aalligte our operations. We believe that the resultside a useful analysis
ongoing operating trends.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

We are subject to market risk including liquiditigk; real estate risk and interest rate risk asalibed below. Althoug
management believes that the quantitative anatysigterest rate risk below is indicative of ounstivity to interest rate changes,
does not adjust for other potential changes inalgdiamong other things, credit quality, size andhposition of our consolidate
balance sheet and other business developmentedhid affect our financial condition and net incardecordingly, no assuranc
can be given that actual results would not diffatenially from the potential outcome simulated bgge estimates.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the potential that we would bealble to meet our obligations as they come due Isecafl an inability tc
liquidate assets or obtain funding. We are subjeathanges in the debt and collateralized mortgagekets. These markets
continuing to experience disruptions, which couwdtue to have an adverse impact on our earnindgiaancial condition.

Current conditions in the debt markets include ceduliquidity and increased risk adjusted premiufiteese conditions hay
increased the cost and reduced the availabilitfirifncing sources. The market for trading and isseain ABS continues 1
experience disruptions resulting from reduced itaredemand for these securities and increased timvgield requirements. In ligl
of these market conditions, we expect to financelaan portfolio in the shortierm with our current capital and any availabledir
facilities.

REAL ESTATE RISK

The value of our commercial mortgage loans andatility to sell such loans, if necessary, are ini@ddy market conditior
that affect the properties that are collateraldor loans. In addition, market conditions affea tralue of our REO. Property valt
and operating income from the properties may bectéfl adversely by a number of factors, including,not limited to:

. National, regional and local economic conditic

. Significant rises in gasoline prices within a shpetiod of time if there is a concurrent decreaséusiness and leist
travel;

. Local real estate conditions (including an oversypp commercial real estate

. Natural disasters, including hurricanes and easdkes, acts of war and/or terrorism and other evérds may caus
performance declines and/or losses to the ownetr®parators of the real estate securing our Ic

. Changes or continued weakness in the demand faetimervice hospitality propertie

. Construction quality, construction cost, age arnsigie

. Demographic factor

. Increases in operating expenses (such as enertp) tarsthe owners of the property; a

. Limitations in the availability and cost of leves

In the event property operating income decreasdmreower may have difficulty repaying our loanshigh could result i
losses to us. In addition, decreases in properlyegareduce the value of the collateral and theng@l proceeds available tc

borrower to repay our loans, which could also causéo suffer losses. Decreases in property valeesce the value of our RE
which could cause us to suffer losses.

51




Table of Contents

The following analysis of our provision for loarskes quantifies the negative impact to our netnmecfrom increased losses
our Retained Portfolio:

Years ended December
2010 2009
(In thousands

Provision for Loan Losse

As reported (1 $ 1,01¢ $ 1,07¢
Annual loan losses increase by 50 basis point 2,117 2,027
Annual loan losses increase by 100 basis point 3,21¢ 2,971

(1) Excludes reductions of loan loss

(2) Represents provision for loan losses based on &s&® in losses as a percentage of our weightedageeloans receivab
(excluding SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject tmssd borrowings), for the periods indicate

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factoxduding governmental monetary and tax polictgsmestic and internatior
economic and political considerations and othetofac

Since our loans are predominantly variatdte, based on LIBOR or the prime rate, our opegatesults will depend in lar
part on LIBOR and the prime rate. One of the primdaterminants of our operating results is theedéffice between the income fr
our loans and our borrowing costs. As a result,trobsur borrowings are based on LIBOR or the priae. The objective of tr
strategy is to minimize the impact of interest r@tanges on our net interest income.

VALUATION OF LOANS

Our loans are recorded at cost and adjusted bipartorigination fees and discounts (which are gatzed as adjustments
yield over the life of the loan) and loan loss ress. In order to determine the estimated fair @adfi our loans, we use a pres
value technique for the anticipated future castvélaising certain assumptions including a currestalint rate, potential prepaym
risks and loan losses. If we were required toaallloans at a time when we would not otherwissalahere can be no assurance
management’s estimates of fair values would beimdtdaand losses could be incurred.

At December 31, 2010, our loans were 73% variasle-at spreads over LIBOR or the prime rate. ®ee or decreases
interest rates will generally not have a matenigbact on the fair value of our variable-rate loae had $170.0 million of variable-
rate loans at December 31, 2010. The estimated/déiie of our variableate loans (approximately $166.3 million at Decembik
2010) is dependent upon several factors includingnges in interest rates and the market for the tfploans that we ha
originated.

We had $63.2 million and $45.7 million of fixedte loans at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respbctiVhe estimated fe
value of our fixed interest rate loans approximatesr cost and is dependent upon several factamtading changes in interest re
and the market for the types of loans that we iggnated. Since changes in market interest rdtesot affect the interest rates
our fixedrate loans, any changes in these rates do notdrailmediate impact on our interest income. Owgregt rate risk on o
fixed-rate loans is primarily related to loan prgments and maturities.

The average maturity of our loan portfolio is Iéisan its average contractual terms because of ypmegrats. Assuming mark
liquidity, the average life of mortgage loans temalsncrease when the current mortgage rates dogtamtially higher than rates
existing mortgage loans and, conversely, decredsnvthe current mortgage rates are substantialeridhan rates on existi
mortgage loans (due to refinancings of fixed-ratnk).
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INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had $170.0 millemd $151.0 million of variablexte loans, respectively, &
$73.1 million and $58.4 million of variable-ratelderespectively. On the difference between ouralderate loans outstanding
our variablerate debt ($96.9 million and $92.6 million at Ded®mn31, 2010 and 2009, respectively) we have isteete risk. To tr
extent variable rates decrease our interest inagwhef interest expense would decrease.

The sensitivity of our variableate loans and debt to changes in interest rategidarly monitored and analyzed by meast
the characteristics of our assets and liabiliti¥e. assess interest rate risk in terms of the pafesffect on interest income net
interest expense in an effort to ensure that warengated from any significant adverse effectgrfrohanges in interest rates. A
result of our predominantly variabtate portfolio, our earnings are susceptible tm¢peeduced during periods of lower interest r.
Based on our analysis of the sensitivity of inteiesome and interest expense at December 31, 20d®009, if the consolidat
balance sheet were to remain constant and no actiene taken to alter the existing interest ratesisigity, each hypothetical .
basis point reduction in interest rates would headuced net income by approximately $242,000 arg2 820, respectively, on
annual basis. In addition, as a REIT, the use dimg interest rate risk is typically only provided debt instruments due to poter
negative REIT compliance to the extent the hedgingtegy was based on our investments. Benefitgedbfrom hedging strategi
not based on debt instrumentse( , investments) may be deemed bad income for REHIifgpation purposes. The use of a he
strategy (on our debt instruments) would only bedfieial to fix our cost of funds and hedge agaishg interest rates.

DEBT

Our debt is comprised of SBIC debentures, strudturetes, junior subordinated notes, secured bongsvi—governmer
guaranteed loans and our Revolver. At December2BL0 and 2009, approximately $19.9 million and $Xfillion of oul
consolidated debt had fixed rates of interest dredefore was not affected by changes in interasisraDur fixedrate debt ¢
December 31, 2010 was comprised of SBIC debenfamdghe structured notes of the 2000 Joint Venfore. variablerate debt i
based on LIBOR and the prime rate and thus sutjemtlverse changes in market interest rates. Asguthere were no increase:
decreases in the balance outstanding under owrblarate debt at December 31, 2010, each hypothet@abasis point increase
interest rates would increase interest expenséteamdfore decrease net income by approximately $780

The following presents the principal amounts byryefaexpected maturity, weighted average interagds and estimated f
values to evaluate the expected cash flows andtiségsto interest rate changes of our outstanditedpt at December 31, 2010 |
2009.

Years Ending December 2 Carrying Fair
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015  Thereafte Value Value (1
(Dollars in thousands

Fixec-rate debt (2 $165: $181t $6,158 $2,006 $6,208 $ 2,066 $1990. $ 20,51
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and

prime based) (3) (¢ 16,12: 2,414 2,46: 2,57(C 2,53¢ 46,96¢ 73,06¢ 68,14.
Totals $17,77¢ $4,22¢ $8,61¢ $457¢ $8,73¢ $ 49,03( $92,96¢ $ 88,65¢

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a presentevahiculation based on prices of the same or simiitatruments afte
considering risk, current interest rates and reni@inmaturities.

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2010 was 6.

(3) Principal payments on the structured notes and tborrowings are dependent upon cash flows reckfkxom the underlyir
loans. Our estimate of their repayment is basechugzheduled principal payments on the underlyiram$ Our estimate w
differ from actual amounts to the extent we expegeprepayments and/or loan loss

(4) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2010 was 3.

Years Ending December 2 Carrying Fair
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014  Thereafte Value Value (1
(Dollars in thousands

Fixec-rate debt (2 $197t $ — $ — $4177 $ — $ 4,000 $10,14¢ $ 10,04
Variable-rate debt (LIBOR and

prime rate based) (. 24,23¢ 1,294 1,34% 1,36¢ 1,42¢ 28,69 58,36: 45,81"
Totals $26,21¢ $1,29¢ $134° $553¢ $142t $ 32,69¢0 $6850¢ $ 55,86

(1) The estimated fair value is based on a presentevahiculation based on prices of the same or simiitatruments afte
considering risk, current interest rates and renii@inmaturities.

(2) The weighted average interest rate of our f-rate debt at December 31, 2009 was 6.
(3) The weighted average interest rate of our vari-rate debt at December 31, 2009 was 3.
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The information required by this Item 8 is herebgdrporated by reference to our Financial Statesnkaginning on page E-
of this Form 10-K.

tem 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participatioroaf Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financialfioér, management h
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otmtind procedures (as defined under rules 133-aB(e15d15(e) of the Securitit
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchang®)Aas of December 31, 2010. Based on that evaluatienChief Executiv
Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded tlmair disclosure controls and procedures were effeéti ensuring that informati
required to be disclosed by the Company in the nigpibat it files or submits to the SEC under thehange Act is recorde
processed, summarized and reported within the perods specified by the SECrules and forms and include controls
procedures designed to ensure the information rediuio be disclosed by the Company in such repisrtaccumulated ai
communicated to management, including our Chiefchtiee Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, agpropriate, to allow time
decisions regarding required disclosure.

MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financighoing as defined
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act384. The Companyg’internal control over financial reporting is dpsd t
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réfjabil financial reporting and the preparation ofancial statements for exter
purposes in accordance with generally accepteduatiog principles. We reviewed the results of mamagnts assessment with 1
Audit Committee of the Board of Trust Managers.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cghspaternal control over financial reporting as acfde@mber 31, 2010.
making this assessment, management used the ariteriforth by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaituma of the Treadw:
Commission (COSO) innternal Control-Integrated Framework Based on their assessment, management deteritiaes ¢
December 31, 2010, the Company’s internal contvel dinancial reporting was effective based on ¢hosteria.

The effectiveness of the Compasyihternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2010 has been audite
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisgarblic accounting firm as stated in their repdrich appears herein.
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LIMITATIONS ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF CONTROLS

Our management, including our Chief Executive @ffiand Chief Financial Officer, does not expect tha disclosure contrc
or our internal controls will prevent all error afrdud. A control system, no matter how well desand operated, can provide ¢
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the taystems objectives will be met. Further, the design ofoatrol system mu
reflect the fact that there are resource constaand the benefits of controls must be consideziadive to their costs. Because of
inherent limitations in all control systems, no lexadion of controls can provide absolute assurahed all control issues a
instances of fraud, if any, have been detecteds& eherent limitations include the realities fugtgments in decision making can
faulty, and that breakdowns can occur becausenglsierror or mistake. Controls can also be ciroemed by the individual acts
some persons, by collusion of two or more peopiéyananagement override of the controls. The desfgany system of controls
based in part upon certain assumptions about kKedihlbod of future events, and there can be norasse that any design v
succeed in achieving its stated goals under akmi@tl future conditions. Over time, controls magcbme inadequate becaus:
changes in conditions or deterioration in the degrEcompliance with associated policies or procesluBecause of the inher
limitations in a cost effective control system, sté&gements due to error or fraud may occur andeatetected.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

There have been no changes in our internal coaote financial reporting that occurred during theader ended December
2010 that have materially affected, or are reasgriddely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART 1lI
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 with redjdo directors and executive officers of the Conyparompliance wit
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, the audit contemibf the Board and the audit committee finaneiglert is hereby incorporai
by reference to our definitive proxy statement édfited with the SEC within 120 days after the yeavered by this Form 1R-with
respect to the Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct andsHtbri trust managers, officers and employees wisicvailable on ol
website at www.pmctrust.com. Shareholders may tcquéee copy of the Code of Business Conductzhits from:

PMC Commercial Trust
Attention: Investor Relations
17950 Preston Road, Suite 600
Dallas, Texas 75252

(972) 349-3235
Www.pmctrust.com

We have also adopted a Code of Ethical ConducS#@rior Financial Officers setting forth a code tifies applicable to ol
principal executive officer, principal financial fafler and principal accounting officer, which is aflable on our website
www.pmctrust.com. Shareholders may request a fopy of the Code of Ethical Conduct for Senior Fitiah Officers from th
address and phone number set forth above.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

We have adopted Corporate Governance Guidelinestwére available on our website at www.pmctrust.c8hareholders m;
request a free copy of the Corporate Governancelgines from the address and phone number set &mblre under ‘Code o
Ethics.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 regardiewgcutive compensation and the compensation copenitt the Board
hereby incorporated by reference to our definipvexy statement to be filed with the SEC within 1H&ys after the year covered
this Form 10-K with respect to the Annual Meetiddsbareholders.
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
SHAREHOLDER MATTERS

The following table provides information at DecemBg, 2010 with respect to our common shares, eih#&ons or restricte
shares, that may be issued under existing equipeasation plans, all of which have been approyeshlareholders.

@) (b) ()
Number of commol
shares remaining availal

Number of commol for future issuances und

shares to be issued u; Weighted averag equity compensation pla

Plan exercise of outstandir exercise price ¢ (excluding shares reflect
Category options outstanding optior in column (a))

Equity incentive plan 90,75( $ 10.11 306,00(

Additional information regarding security ownerstop certain beneficial owners and management afatek sharehold
matters is hereby incorporated by reference todefinitive proxy statement to be filed with the SE@hin 120 days after the ye
covered by this Form 10-K with respect to the Ariridaeting of Shareholders.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 regardioegtain relationships and related transactions direttor independence
hereby incorporated by reference to our definipvexy statement to be filed with the SEC within 12ys after the year covered
this Form 10-K with respect to the Annual Meetiddsbareholders.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 regardprincipal accountant fees and services is heretyrporated by reference
our definitive proxy statement to be filed with tBEC within 120 days after the year covered by faism 10K with respect to tr
Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Documents filed as part of this report

(1) Financial Statemen—

See index to Financial Statements set forth on p-1 of this Form 1-K.
(2) Financial Statement Schedu—

Schedule I— Valuation and Qualifying Accoun

Schedule IvV— Mortgage Loans on Real Est:
(3) Exhibits—

See Exhibit Index beginning on pag-1 of this Form 1-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&6{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused t
report to be signed on our behalf by the undersighereunto duly authorized.

PMC Commercial Trust

By: /s/ Lance B. Rosemort
Lance B. RosemorPresident

Dated March 16, 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpihe following persor
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/s/ LANCE B. ROSEMORE Chairman of the Board of Trust Managers, President, March 16, 2011
Lance B. Rosemore Chief Executive Officer, Secretary and Trust Mami

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ BARRY N. BERLIN Chief Financial Officer and Executive Vice Presiden March 16, 2011
Barry N. Berlin (Principal Financial and Principal Accounting O#fij

/sl NATHAN COHEN Trust Manager March 16, 2011
Nathan Cohel

/s/ DR. MARTHA GREENBERG Trust Manager March 16, 2011
Dr. Martha Greenber

/s BARRY A. IMBER Trust Manager March 16, 2011
Barry A. Imber

/s/ IRVING MUNN Trust Manager March 16, 2011
Irving Munn
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Report of Independent Registered Public AccountiRigm

To the Shareholders and Board of Trust Managers of
PMC Commercial Trust:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated ba#dasheets and the related consolidated statemémtgmne, comprehensi
income, equity, and cash flows present fairly, Ih material respects, the financial position of PM&bmmercial Trust (t
“Company”)and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and 2&@®the results of their operations and their ¢ksirs for each ¢
the three years in the period ended December 310 #0 conformity with accounting principles genéradccepted in the Unite
States of America. In addition, in our opinion, treancial statement schedules listed in the indpgearing under Item 15(a)
present fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein when read in conjunctioithvihe related consolidat
financial statements. Also in our opinion, the Camyp maintained, in all material respects, effectiiernal control over financi
reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on @itestablished irinternal Control — Integrated Frameworissued by th
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). The Compasmyhanagement is responsible for tt
financial statements and financial statement sdeedfior maintaining effective internal control ov@ancial reporting and for i
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cowtvel financial reporting, included in “ManagemeanReport on Internal Conti
over Financial Reporting,appearing under Iltem 9A. Our responsibility is press opinions on these financial statementshe
financial statement schedules, and on the Compaimygrnal control over financial reporting based aur integrated audits. v
conducted our audits in accordance with the statsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@dited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetswaliobtain reasonable assurance about whethén#dreial statements are free
material misstatement and whether effective infecoatrol over financial reporting was maintainedall material respects. C
audits of the financial statements included exanginon a test basis, evidence supporting the are@ntt disclosures in the finan:
statements, assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by management,eaatliating the over:
financial statement presentation. Our audit ofrimakcontrol over financial reporting included abtag an understanding of inter
control over financial reporting, assessing thk tigt a material weakness exists, and testingegatliating the design and opera
effectiveness ofinternal control based on the assessed risk. Oditsaalso included performing such other procedwagswe
considered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbdliat our audits provide a reasonable basisudpppinions.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrst@ements, effective January 1, 2010, new ademyrstandards required f
Company to change the manner in which it accoumtstfe recognition of certain loan sales and tosotidate certain variak
interest entities.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranadiregthe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordante generally accepted account
principles. A company internal control over financial reporting inclsdéhose policies and procedures that (i) pertairthg
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detedlurately and fairly reflect the transactions dispositions of the assets of
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thas#éetions are recorded as necessary to permitratepaof financial statements
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipies; and that receipts and expenditures of timepamy are being made only
accordance with authorizations of management anectdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasomsabssurance regard
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use, or disposition of the compasigssets that could have a material €
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @ttaisstatements. Also, projectic
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future pesiage subject to the risk that controls may becimradequate because of change
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whithpolicies or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 16, 2011
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2010 2009
ASSETS
Loans receivable, ne
Commercial mortgage loans receivable, pledgedvolvang credit facility $ 122,58: $ 134,01
Commercial mortage loans receivable, subject teciired notes payab 40,42 19,78:
SBIC commercial mortgage loans receive 31,11¢ 27,59:
SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject to secured bongs 20,53 —
SBA 7(a) loans receivab 18,57( 15,25
Loans receivable, ni 233,21t 196,64.
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 5,78¢ 1,365
Real estate owne 3,471 5,47¢
Cash and cash equivalel 2,64z 7,83¢
Retained interests in transferred as 1,01¢ 12,527
Other asset 5,994 4,392
Total assets $ 252,12 $ 228,24
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Debt:
Junior subordinated not $ 27,07( $ 27,07(
Structured notes payalk 22,15] 8,291
Secured borrowing— government guaranteed log 21,76¢ —
Revolving credit facility 13,80( 23,00(
SBIC debentures payak 8,171 8,17:
Redeemable preferred stock of subsid — 1,97¢
Debt 92,96¢ 68,50¢
Borrower advance 3,462 2,36¢
Accounts payable and accrued expet 2,67¢ 2,36¢
Dividends payabli 1,71z 1,731
Deferred gains on property sa 68t 68€
Other liabilities 61 127
Total liabilities 101,56 75,78¢
Commitments and contingenc
Beneficiaries’ equity:
Common shares of beneficial interest; authorize®dmd,000 shares of $0.01 par value;
11,095,883 and 11,084,683 shares issued at Dec&hp2010 and 2009, respectively,
10,559,554 and 10,548,354 shares outstanding aritser 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively 111 111
Additional paic-in capital 152,75t 152,61:
Net unrealized appreciation of retained interastsansferred asse 27¢€ 32t
Cumulative net incom 172,44¢ 167,68t
Cumulative dividend (171,03) (164,274
154,56: 156,45¢
Less: Treasury stock; at cost, 536,329 shares @rbiger 31, 2010 and 20 (4,907) (4,907)
Total beneficiaries’ equity 149,66( 151,55¢
Noncontrolling interest— cumulative preferred stock of subsidi: 90C 90C

Total equity 150,56( 152,45t




Total liabilities and equity $ 252,12 $ 228,24.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesnsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(In thousands, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Revenues:
Interest incom: $ 13,537 $ 11,18( $ 14,54(
Income from retained interests in transferred a¢ 163 2,862 6,36¢
Other income 1,765 2,22¢ 2,212
Total revenue 15,46 16,26 23,11%
Expenses:
Interest 4,01¢ 2,86¢ 3,99¢
Salaries and related benet 3,92 3,871 4,70¢
General and administratiy 2,16¢ 2,09¢ 2,30
Provision for loan losses, n 641 98¢ 43¢
Severance and related bene — — 1,80¢
Permanent impairments on retained interests irsteared asse! — 552 521
Total expense 10,752 10,37: 13,77¢
Income before income tax benefit (provision) and dcontinued
operations 4,711 5,89( 9,341
Income tax benefit (provisiot 131 167 (319)
Income from continuing operations 4,84 6,057 9,022
Discontinued operations (54E%) 704 784
Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢
Weighted average shares outstandir
Basic 10,55¢ 10,57 10,76"
Diluted 10,57( 10,57 10,767
Basic and diluted earnings per shar
Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.4¢ $ 0.57 $ 0.8¢4
Discontinued operatior (0.05) 0.07 0.07
Net income $ 0.41 $ 0.64 $ 0.91

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesnsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢
Change in net unrealized appreciation of retainéetésts in transferred
assets
Net unrealized appreciation (depreciation) ariglngng perioc 24C (20€) (1,172)
Realized gains included in net incol (24) (89) (153)
21€ (295) (1,325
Comprehensive income $ 4,518 $ 6,46¢ $ 8,481

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesnsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 20®
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Net
Unrealized
Common Appreciation
Shares of of Retained Cumulative
Beneficial Additional Interests in Cumulative Preferred
Interest Par Paid-in Transferred Net Cumulative  Treasury Stock of Total
Outstanding  Value Capital Assets Income Dividends Stock Subsidiary Equity
Balances, January 1, 2008 10,765,03 $ 111 $ 152,33. $ 1,94t $ 151,11¢ $ (14592) $ (3,23) $ 90C  $157,25:
Net unrealized depreciatic — — — (1,329 — — — — (1,329
Share-based compensation
expense 14,90( — 12¢ — — — — — 12¢
Treasury shares, n (85,14%) — — — — — (594) — (594)
Dividends ($1.015 per shar — — — — — (20,909 — — (10,909
Net income — — — — 9,80¢ — — — 9,80¢€
Balances, December 3!

2008 10,694,78 111 152,46( 62C 160,92¢ (156,829 (3,825 90C 154,36:
Net unrealized depreciatic — — — (295) — — — — (295)
Share-based compensation

expense 18,40( — 151 — — — — — 151
Treasury shares, n (164,839 — — — — — (1,07¢) — (1,07¢)
Dividends ($0.705 per shar — — — — — (7,445 — — (7,44%)
Net income — — — — 6,761 — — — 6,761

Balances, December 3!

2009 10,548,35. 111 152,61: 32t 167,68t (164,27 (4,900 90C 152,45¢
Cumulative effect adjustme — — — (265) 46€ 201
Net unrealized appreciatic — — — 21€ — — — — 21€
Shares issued through

exercise of stock optior 1,50C — 11 — — — — — 11
Share-based compensation

expense 9,70( — 134 — — — — — 134
Dividends ($0.64 per shar — — — — — (6,75%) — — (6,757%)
Net income — — — — 4,291 — — — 4,291

Balances, December 3!

2010 10,559,55 $ 111 $ 152,75t $ 27€ $ 172,44¢ $ (171,03) $ (490) $ 90C  $150,56(

The accompanying notes are an integral part of teensolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,
2010 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigsea by (used in)
operating activities

Depreciatior 12 25 27
Permanent impairments on retained interests irsteared asse! — 552 521
Impairment losse 32t — —
Gains on foreclosure and sales of real et (78) (1,199 (784)
Deferred income taxe (645) (25€) 47
Provision for loan losses, n 641 98¢ 43¢
Unrealized premium adjustme 1,501 (23 (10
Amortization and accretion, n 21¢ (402) (335)
Shar+based compensatic 134 151 12¢
Capitalized loan origination cos (31¢€) (239) (207)
Loans funded, held for sa (27,60:) (24,389 (8,399
Proceeds from sale of guaranteed Ic — 24,99¢ 4,05¢
Principal collected on loar 427 — —
Loan fees remitted, ni (20 (65) 8
Change in operating assets and liabilit
Borrower advance 1,104 (451) (247)
Accounts payable and accrued expel 272 (749 92¢
Other liabilities (59 (240 (202)
Other asset (327) 29C 20E
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitie (20,109 5,86( 5,96¢
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loans fundec (20,839 (6,057) (26,190
Principal collected on loans receiva 20,57: 14,64( 37,96
Principal collected on retained interests in tramsfd assel 20C 30¢ 532
Investment in retained interests in transferreeta — (559 (2,820
Principal collected on mortga-backed security of affiliat — 162 104
Purchase of furniture, fixtures, and equipmr — (5) —
Proceeds received from sales of real estate owrs 2,37: — —
Investment in unconsolidated subsidi (1,029 — —
Release of (investment in) restricted cash and egsivalents, ne (1,024 1,181 2,84z
Net cash provided by investing activitie: 10,25¢ 9,67¢ 12,43t

Cash flows from financing activities:

Purchase of treasury sha — (1,076 (5949
Proceeds from issuance of common sh 11 — —
Proceeds from (repayment of) revolving credit faginet (9,200 30C 22,70(
Repayment of conduit facility, n — — (23,950
Payment of principal on structured notes pay. (5,409 (5,817 (7,205
Proceeds from secured borrowir— government guaranteed log 28,44t — —
Payment of principal on secured borrowings — goramt guaranteed
loans (427) — —
Redemption of redeemable preferred stock of suusi (2,000 (2,000 —
Payment of borrowing cos — (30 —
Payment of dividend (6,77€) (9,687) (10,239
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitie 4,64¢ (18,304 (19,287)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivaler (5,19¢) (2,76¢) (879)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of ye: 7,83¢ 10,60¢ 11,48¢

Cash and cash equivalents, end of ye: $ 2,64 $ 7,83¢ $ 10,60¢




The accompanying notes are an integral part of teesnsolidated financial statements.
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

Business

PMC Commercial Trust (“PMC Commercial” or togethwth its wholly-owned subsidiaries, “we,” “us” oolr”) was organized
1993 as a Texas real estate investment trust (“REOuUr common shares of beneficial interest (“Coom$hares”are traded on tl
NYSE Amex (symbo“PCC"). We primarily obtain income from the yield and othelated fee income earned on our investn
from our lending activities. To date, these investis have principally been in the hospitality irtdys

Principles of Consolidatior

The accompanying consolidated financial statemleat® been prepared by management in accordanceJvBthgenerally accept
accounting principles, or GAAP. We consolidate ti&githat we control as well as variable interesities (“VIEs”) for which we ar
the primary beneficiary. A VIE is an entity for vehi control is achieved through means other thamgaights. An entity shou
consolidate a VIE if that entity will absorb a midip of the VIE’'s expected losses, receive a majoof the VIE's expected residl
returns, or both. To the extent we do not have pritya voting interest, we use the equity methodatwount for investments |
which we have the ability to exercise significanftience over operating and financial policies. &ditated net income includes
share of the net earnings of any VIE for which we aot the primary beneficiary. All material interapany balances a
transactions have been eliminated.

During 2005, PMC Commercial issued notes payalhe (Junior Subordinated Notes9f approximately $27.1 million di
March 30, 2035 to a special purpose subsidiary @éeto be a VIE. The Junior Subordinated Notesuphell in our consolidat
balance sheets, are subordinated to PMC Commeyra@alsting debt. Since PMC Commercial is not cogrgid to be the prima
beneficiary, the VIE is not consolidated in PMC Goeicial’s financial statements and the equity method idl ts@ccount for ol
investment in the VIE.

At December 31, 2009, we had two off-balance skeetrritizations: PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 2000 (183800 Joint Venture”janc
PMC Capital L.P. 1998-1 (the “1998 Partnershidue to a change in accounting rules, these qualdigecial purpose entiti
(“QSPEs")were consolidated beginning January 1, 2010. Thewing table summarizes the assets and liabilitiethe 2000 Joil
Venture and the 1998 Partnership (which represemtsneash transaction) which were previously includededsined interests
transferred assets (“Retained Interests”):

January 1
2010

(In thousands

Loans receivable, ni $ 27,75:
Restricted cash and cash equivale 3,39¢
Other asset 16€
Total asset $ 31,31¢
Structured notes payable | $ 19,52
Other liabilities 58
Total liabilities $ 19,58:

(1) Included $254 held by PMC Commercial which wasiekted in consolidatior
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemel

ASC topic 860 (formerly FASB No. 166, “AccountingrfTransfers of Financial Assets -an amendment of FASB Staterr
No. 140) was issued in June 2009. ASC 860 amendedatcounting guidance for transfers of financiates#s includin
(1) eliminating the concept of QSPESs for prospectegcuritizations, (2) a new unit of account dé&fini that must be met for transf
of portions of financial assets to be eligible &ale accounting, (3) clarifications and changesh# derecognition criteria for
transfer to be accounted for as a sale, (4) a é&tmthe amount of recognized gain or loss onrster of financial assets accour
for as a sale when beneficial interests are redelyethe transferor, and (5) extensive new disclsuASC 860 was effective
interim and annual reporting periods beginningraftevember 15, 2009. This standard affected ouoatting for secondary marl
loan transactions beginning on January 1, 2010d#te we adopted the standard. We are requirgddbdertain legally sold portic
of loans (those sold for excess spread and thdddaoexcess spread and a 10% cash premium) aseskborrowings for the life
the loan. The impact to our consolidated balan@etstvas to reflect the government guaranteed podfoour SBA 7(a) loans
loans receivable and secured borrowings for thegally sold portions of our loans. For statementagh flow purposes, proce:
received from the sale of the guaranteed portioSBA 7(a) loans are reflected as a financing agtivivhereas previously the
proceeds were reflected as operating activi
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PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ASC topic 810 (formerly FASB No. 167, “Amendments RASB Interpretation No. 46(R)'\as issued in June 2009. ASC

required an entity to perform an analysis to deteemvhether the entitg’' variable interest or interests give it a coninglifinancia
interest in a variable interest entity. This anialydentifies the primary beneficiary of a varialiméerest entity as the entity that

both of the following characteristics: (1) the powe direct the activities of a variable interestity that most significantly impact t
entity’s economic performance and (2) the obligation teodb the losses of the entity that could potentibf significant to tr
variable interest entity or the right to receivendiits from that entity that could potentially bigrgficant to the variable intere
entity. ASC 810 was effective for interim and annteporting periods beginning after November 150200ur offbalance she
securitizations were consolidated beginning Janta010, the date we adopted the standard. Detgngnthe carrying amounts
the assets and liabilities of the securitizatiores wot practicable and the assets of the sectigtizacan only be used to se
obligations of the securitizations; therefore, thmaid principal balance method was used to rezegassets and liabilities of !
securitizations. The difference of approximatel$p&000 between the net amounts added to our cdasedi balance sheet as as
and liabilities and our Retained Interests was gazxed as a cumulative effect adjustment in ourelieiaries’ equity. Unrealize
appreciation of Retained Interests of $265,000 reagrsed in conjunction with the consolidation;réfere, the net effect to ¢
beneficiaries’ equity was an increase of approxatya$201,000.

ASC topic 310 was issued in July 2010. ASC 310 ireguadditional disclosures about the credit gualitfinancing receivables a
the allowance for credit losses. ASC 310 was dffedor interim and annual reporting periods endimgor after December 15, 20:

Loans Receivable, n¢

We primarily originate loans to small businessdiateralized by first liens on the real estatehw telated business. Loans receiv
are carried at their unamortized principal balaless net loan origination fees, discounts and loas reserves. For loans origine
under the Small Business Administration’s (“SBA'(pY Guaranteed Loan Program (“SBA 7(a)f)on sale of the SBA guarant
portion of the loans which are accounted for asssahe unguaranteed portion of the loan retaiyaashs valued on a fair value be
and a discount (the “Retained Loan Discount”) orded as a reduction in basis of the retainedgrodf the loan.

We evaluate our loans for possible impairment @uarterly basis. Our impairment analysis includescgic and general loan Ic
reserves. The general loan loss reserve is edtaliliwhen available information indicates that prisbable a loss has occurred in
portfolio and the amount of the loss can be redsgrestimated. Significant judgment is requiredlgtermining the general loan i
reserve, including estimates of the likelihood efadilt and the estimated fair value of the collteFhe determination of whett
significant doubt exists and whether a specifimléa@ss reserve is necessary requires judgment ansideration of the facts a
circumstances existing at the evaluation date.e&atuation of the possible establishment of a fijgdoan loss reserve is based ¢
review of our historical loss experience, adverseumstances that may affect the ability of therbaer to repay interest and
principal and, to the extent the payment of thenlbacomes dependent upon liquidation of the colihtéhe estimated fair value
the collateral. The estimated fair value of thelatetal is determined based on the appraised védneassessed value and/or «
flows.

Real Estate Owned'REQO")

REO consists of properties acquired by foreclosaungartial or total satisfaction of nqmerforming loans. REO in satisfaction ¢
loan is recorded at estimated fair value less doss®ll at the date of foreclosure. Any excesthefcarrying value of the loan o
the estimated fair value of the property less e costs to sell is chargeti-to the loan loss reserve when title to the proypis
obtained. Any excess of the estimated fair valuthefproperty less estimated costs to sell anatdhneying value is recorded as g
on foreclosure within discontinued operations whita to the property is obtained. Subsequent tedimsure, REO is valued at
lower of cost or market. Any impairment lossesra@rded within discontinued operations.
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Retained Interest:

Historically, Retained Interests primarily represehthe subordinate interest in QSPEs created nijunotion with structured lo:
sale transactions. Retained Interests are cartiestimated fair value, with realized gains andwserent impairments included in
income and unrealized gains and losses recordeeneficiariesequity. The estimated fair value of our Retaingénests is based
estimates of the present value of future cash flewsxpect to receive. Effective January 1, 20l€iaRed Interests consists so
of the remaining value attributable to any excesead between the interest rate due to us fronbouowers and the rate payabl
the purchaser of the guaranteed portion of the aatk the required minimum servicing spread on sdmgnmarket loan sal
completed prior to January 1, 2010.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We generally consider all highly liquid investmeptschased with an original maturity of three mantin less to be cash equivale
Generally, we maintain cash, cash equivalents aesiticted investments in accounts in excess ofrédigansured limits with variot
financial institutions. We regularly monitor thedincial institutions and do not believe a signtfitcaeredit risk is associated with -
deposits in excess of federally insured amounts.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivaler

Represents the collection and cash reserve accmised to be held on behalf of the structuregimolders as collateral pursuar
the securitization transaction documents. Cashrresaccounts may be required to be used to repaystituctured noteholde
pursuant to the transaction documents.

Deferred Borrowing Cost

Costs incurred in connection with the issuanceetit dire being amortized to expense over the lifta@frelated obligation using 1
effective interest method. Deferred borrowing castsincluded in other assets on our consolidadéahibe sheets.

Borrower Advance:

In general, as part of the monitoring process tifywéhat the borrowerstash equity is utilized for its intended purpose, neceiv:
deposits from our borrowers and release funds ypesentation of appropriate documentation. Funéts dre behalf of borrowers
included as a liability on the consolidated balasiceets.

Deferred Gains on Property Sal

We evaluate our property sales individually to deiae if they qualify for full accrual gain treatmte If the down payment receiv
is not sufficient to qualify for full gain treatmgrwe record initial installment gains and defee tlemaining gains. The remain
gains are recorded to income as principal is reckon the related loans until the required amotinash proceeds are obtained fi
the purchasers to qualify for full accrual gairatraent.

Net Unrealized Appreciation of Retained Intere:

Net unrealized appreciation of Retained Interespsasents the excess of estimated fair value oRetained Interests over their ¢
basis.

Revenue Recognition Policie
Interest Income

Interest income includes interest earned on loadsoar shorterm investments and the amortization of net lodgiration fees ar
discounts. Interest income on loans is accruechased with the accrual of interest suspended whendlated loan becomes a non-
accrual loan. A loan receivable is generally ckess$ias non-accrual (a “Non-Accrual Loarif)(1) it is past due as to payment
principal or interest for a period of 60 days orreyd2) any portion of the loan is classified asilatful or is chargeaff or (3) if the
repayment in full of the principal and/or interéstin doubt. Generally, loans are charggflwhen management determines tha
will be unable to collect any remaining amounts doder the loan agreement, either through liquidatif collateral or other mea
Interest income on a Non-Accrual Loan is recogniaecither the cash basis or the cost recovergbasi

Origination fees and direct loan origination coses, are deferred and accreted to income as astawnt of yield over the life of t
related loan receivable using the effective intemesthod.
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For loans recorded with a Retained Loan Discotmaise discounts are recognized as an adjustmergldfover the life of the relat
loan receivable using the effective interest method

Income from Retained Interests

The income from our Retained Interests represdmsatcretion (recognized using the effective irieraethod) on our Retain
Interests which was determined based on estiméfesuoe cash flows.

Other Income

Other income consists primarily of premium incorservicing income, prepayment fees and other lokte@ income. Historicall
premium income represented the difference betweemelative fair value attributable to the saldgha& guaranteed portion of a Ic
originated under the SBA 7(a) Program and the jpaicbalance (cost) allocated to the loan. The saiee included the vali
attributable to any excess servicing spread rediaiiyeus plus any cash received. Effective Janua®010, premium income is ot
recognized on the sale of loans sold solely forashcpremium and minimum required 1% servicing spré&ervicing incom
represents the fees we receive for servicing ladirtee sold portion of our SBA 7(a) loans and isognized as revenue when
services are performed. Prepayment fees are rexajais revenue when loans are prepaid. Late feksthar loan related fees
recognized as revenue when chargeable, assumilegtdality is reasonably assured.

Income Taxes

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under thaéspros of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, asrated (the “Code”)To the
extent we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we gehgnaill not be subject to a Federal corporate imeotax on our taxable income t
is distributed to our shareholders. We may, howdweisubject to certain Federal excise taxes aid ahd local taxes on our incc
and property. If PMC Commercial fails to qualify @aREIT in any taxable year, it will be subjectRederal income taxes at regi
corporate rates (including any applicable altexgatninimum tax) and will not be able to qualify asREIT for four subseque
taxable years. In order to remain qualified as dTREhder the Code, we must satisfy various requinets in each taxable ye
including, among others, limitations on share owhgr, asset diversification, sources of income, taieddistribution of at least 9(
of our taxable income within the specified timeztordance with the Code.

PMC Commercial has wholly-owned taxable REIT sulasids (“TRS’s”) which are subject to Federal income taxes. Thenie
generated from the taxable REIT subsidiaries isdaat normal corporate rates. Deferred tax assetdiabilities are recognized 1
the future tax consequences attributable to diffeee between the financial statement carrying aisoah existing assets a
liabilities and their respective tax bases.

We have established a policy on classificationafgities and interest related to audits of our Fddend state income tax returns
incurred, our policy for recording interest and giies associated with audits will be to recordhsitems as a component of incc
before income tax provision (benefit) and discamtith operations. Penalties, if incurred, will be oréded in general ai
administrative expense and interest paid or redeivél be recorded in interest expense or inteiesbme, respectively, in tl
consolidated statements of income.

Earnings per Share

Earnings per share is computed by dividing netnimedy the weightedverage number of shares outstanding. Diluted egsnpe
share includes the dilutive effect, if any, of staased compensation awards.

Distributions to Shareholder:
Distributions to shareholders are recorded on xhdiddend date.
Share-Based Compensation Plans

We have options outstanding under shaased compensation plans described more fully ite Nd. We use fair value recognit
provisions to account for all awards granted, niedibr settled.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates and rapsions that affect tt
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andaisice of contingent assets and liabilities atdhte of the financial statements
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhernreporting period. Actual results could diffieem our estimates. Our mu
sensitive estimates involved determination of lwes reserves and valuation of our real estate dwne
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Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclasstfiedonform with the current period presentatiohe3e reclassifications had
effect on previously reported net income or castvél

Note 2. Loans Receivable, net:
Loans receivable, net, consisted of the following:

December 31

2010 2009
(In thousands

Commercial mortgage loans, pledged to revolvinglicfacility $ 124,06! $ 135,33
Commercial mortgage loans, subject to structurédspayabl 40,51« 19,80¢
SBIC commercial mortgage loa 31,28¢ 27,85¢
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowi 20,32¢ —
SBA 7(a) loan: 18,67: 15,25¢
Total loans receivabl 234,86 198,24
Less:

Deferred commitment fees, r (40 (348

Loan loss reserve (1,609 (1,257%)
Loans receivable, ni $ 233,21 $ 196,64.

Commercial mortgage loans, pledged to revolvinglitriacility
Represents loans of PMC Commercial Trust whichatelblize our $30 million revolving credit facility
Commercial mortgage loans, subject to structuregtepayable

Represents loans contributed to special purposeesnin exchange for a subordinated financialriegé in that entity. The collate
of the structured notes payable includes thesesloan

SBIC commercial mortgage loans
Loans originated by our Small Business Investmaenh@any (“SBIC”) subsidiaries.
SBA 7(a) loans, subject to secured borrowings

Represents the government guaranteed portion n§ la&ich were sold with the proceeds received filoensale reflected as secu
borrowings —government guaranteed loans (a liability on oursotidated balance sheet). There is no credit risociated wit
these loans since the SBA has guaranteed paym#éme pfincipal.

SBA 7(a) loans

Represents the nagevernment guaranteed retained portion of loangirated under the SBA 7(a) program and the govent
guaranteed portion of loans that have not yet baliy funded or legally sold. The balance is netR#tained Loans Discounts
$1.3 million and $1.5 million at December 31, 2@l 2009, respectively.

Concentration Risks

We have certain concentrations of investments. taabally all of our revenue is generated from lpaollateralized by hospitall
properties. At December 31, 2010, our loans wepé 8dncentrated in the hospitality industry. Any m@mic factors that negative
impact the hospitality industry, including recessipdepressed commercial real estate markets,| tr@steictions, bankruptcies
other political or geopolitical events, could havmaterial adverse effect on our financial condiimd results of operations.

At December 31, 2010, 19% of our loans were caolfditeed by properties in Texas. No other state &damncentration of 10%
greater of our loans receivable at December 310.28-ecline in economic conditions in any statevinich we have a concentrat
of investments could have a material adverse effieaur financial condition and results of openasio
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We have not loaned more than 10% of our assetnyosangle borrower; however, we have an affiliagup of obligor
representing greater than 5% of our loans recedvégproximately 6%) at December 31, 2010. Anyidedh the financial status
this group could have a material adverse effeawrfinancial condition and results of operations.

Aging

The following table represents an aging of our foecteivable at December 31, 2010. This table doesiclude our SBA 7(a) loa
receivable, subject to secured borrowings sinc&SB& has guaranteed payment of the principal.

Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Category Totals Loans Loans
(Dollars in thousands

Current (1) $ 196,53¢ 91.€% $ 178,59: 91.2% $ 17,947 96.1%
Between 30 and 59 days delinqu 4,871 2.2% 4,66¢ 2.4% 213 1.1%
Between 60 and 89 days delinqu 5,57¢ 2.6% 5,25z 2.7% 323 1.7%
Over 89 days delinquent ( 7,54¢ 3.5% 7,35¢ 3.£% 19C 1.C%

$ 214,54: 100.% $ 195,86¢ 100.(% $ 18,67: 100.(%

(1) Includes $9.0 million of loans which are currentden agreements which provide for interest only payt® during a sho
period of time (not more than six months remainiimggxchange for additional collateral. Of this, .8illion relates to a
affiliated group of obligors described abo

(2) Includes $6.3 million of loans on which the borresvbave filed for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy. We aressified as a secur
creditor in the bankruptcy proceedings. In addititime collateral underlying $1.1 million of loansciuded in the over 89 de
delinquent category are in the foreclosure proc

Loan Loss Reserv

We have a quarterly review process to identify emaluate potential exposure to loan losses. Ldatsequire specific identificati
review are identified based on one or more negatharacteristics including, but not limited to, Aoslyment or lack of time
payment of interest and/or principal, npayment or lack of timely payment of property taXes an extended period of tin
insurance defaults and/or franchise defaults. Teeific identification evaluation begins with artiemtion of underlying collater
values using appraisals, broker price opinions,assessed value and/or revenue analysis. Managersestappraisals as tools
conjunction with other determinants of collateralue to estimate collateral values, not as the determinant of value due to -
current economic environment. The property valumtakes into consideration current information ooperty values in general &
value changes in commercial real estate and/oritadisp properties. The probability of liquidatiois then determined. The
probability determinations include macroeconomittdes, the location of the property and economidrenment where the prope
is located, industry specific factors relating paity to the hospitality industry (and further thienited service segment of t
hospitality industry), our historical experiencettwsimilar borrowers and/or individual borrower awllateral characteristics, and
certain circumstances, the strength of the guarsintde liquidation probability is then appliedthe specifically identified expost
to loss to establish the specifically identifiederve for that loan.

Management closely monitors our loans which regaireluation for loan loss reserves based on spedéntification which ai
classified into three categories: Doubtful, Subdtéad and Other Assets Especially Mentioned (“OAENt9gether Specific
Identification Loans”).Loans classified as Doubtful are generally loansctwtare not complying with their contractual terntisg
collection of the balance of the principal is caiesed impaired and on which the fair value of tbkateral is less than the remain
unamortized principal balance. These loans are#jlgi placed on nomccrual status and are generally in the foreclopuoees:
Loans classified as Substandard are generally tloases that are either not complying or had presfipunot complied with the
contractual terms and have other credit weaknegbi&h may make payment default or principal expedikely but not yet certai
Loans classified as OAEM are generally loans foictithe credit quality of the borrowers has tempbyaeteriorated. Typically tt
borrowers are current on their payments; howevey may be delinquent on their property taxes,ranste, or franchise fees.
addition, included in OAEM are loans for which therrowers have filed for Chapter 11 Bankruptcy avel are classified as
secured creditor in the bankruptcy proceedingsil Bahkruptcy plans are confirmed, the loans apéclly delinquent.
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Management has classified our loans receivableu@xg our SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subject toused borrowings since t
SBA has guaranteed payment of the principal) devisl (balances represent our investment in theslgaior to loan loss resen
and deferred commitment fees):

December 31

2010 2009
Commerciz
Mortgage SBA7(a
Totals % Loans % Loans % Amount %
(Dollars in thousands
Satisfactory $187,63( 87.2% $ 169,88l 86.1% $ 17,75( 95.1% $177,13( 89.2%
OAEM 16,88¢ 7.9% 16,87 8.6% 14 0.1% 17,59: 8.9%
Substandar 9,11: 4.2% 8,46¢ 4.2% 644 3.4% 442 0.2%
Doubtful 91z 0.4% 647 0.3% 26E 1.4% 3,081 1.6%

$214,54: 100.%0 $ 195,86¢ 100.(% $ 18,67¢ 100.0%  $198,24° 100.(%

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, we had loan losves of $1,609,000 and $1,257,000, respectivetiuding general loan lo
reserves of $1,100,000 and $650,000, respecti@ly.provision for loan losses (excluding reductioh$oan losses) as a percent
of our weighted average outstanding loans recetv@bkcluding SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subjecsaéoured borrowings) w
0.46% and 0.57% during 2010 and 2009, respectividythe extent one or several of our loans expeeesignificant operatir
difficulties and we are forced to liquidate therieafuture losses may be substantial.

During the fiveyear period ended December 31, 2010, our aggr@gatésion for loan losses, net, was approximat@yd$nillion ol
25 basis points per year based on the y®ar average of our loans receivable. Our totah loss reserves and general loan
reserves as a percentage of our outstanding porfexcluding SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subjectsézured borrowings) we
approximately 73 basis points and 50 basis paiaspectively, at December 31, 2010.

The activity in our loan loss reserves was as ¥ato

Years Ended December :

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands
Balance, beginning of ye. $ 1,257 $ 48(C $ 42
Provision for loan losse 1,01¢ 1,07¢ 48¢
Reduction of loan loss¢ (37¢) (87) (36)
Consolidation of the 2000 Joint Venture and theg1BAartnership reserv: 184 — —
Principal balances writt-off (473) (212) (14)
Balance, end of ye: $ 1,60¢ $ 1,257 $ 48(
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Impaired Loan Dat¢

Information on those loans considered to be imgdibans (loans for which it is probable that thedier will be unable to collect
amounts due based on the original contractual tefittee loan) was as follows:

At December 31

2010
Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans 2009
(In thousands
Impaired loans requiring reserv $ 687 $ 41¢ $ 26¢ $ 3,13
Impaired loans expected to be fully recover 22¢ 22¢ — 22¢
Total impaired loan $ 91t $ 647 $ 26¢ $ 3,36(
Years Ended December @
2010
Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Total Loans Loans 2009 2008
(In thousands
Average impaired loar $ 4,315 $ 3,55¢ $ 75¢ $ 5,661 $ 2,404
Interest income on impaired loa $ 114 $ 89 $ 25 $ 83 $ 162

Our recorded investment in Ndkecrual Loans at December 31, 2010 of $12,275,089 eomprised of $519,000 of SBA 7(a) Ic
and $11,756,000 of commercial mortgage loans. @gorded investment in Nokecrual Loans at December 31, 2009
$3,151,000. The collateral securing the majorityooff NonAccrual Loans was in the process of foreclosurebankruptc
proceedings at December 31, 2010 and 2009. Weadlithave any loans receivable past due 90 days oe mhbich were accruir
interest at December 31, 2010 or 2009.

Additional Credit Quality Indicato

The year of origination for our loans receivablgc{ading our SBA 7(a) loans receivable, subjecségured borrowings since
SBA has guaranteed payment of the principal) wer®lkows:

Commercia
Mortgage SBA 7(a)
Year of Originatior Totals Loans Loans

(Dollars in thousands

1991 to 199¢ $ 36,40¢ 17.% $ 35,05: 17.% $  1,34¢ 7.2%
2000 to 200+ 56,491 26.2% 53,73¢ 27.%% 2,75¢ 14.8%
2005 to 200" 79,11¢ 36.€% 77,77 39.1% 1,34¢ 7.2%
2008 to 201( 42,52 19.8% 29,29¢ 15.(% 13,22: 70.8%

$ 214,54: 100.(% $ 195,86¢ 100.(% $ 18,67¢ 100.(%

We consider loan origination dates to be a creditlity indicator of our portfolio. Loans originatébm 1991 to 1999 are heayv
seasoned; thus typically representing a smallde insterms of loss upon liquidation due to paydovefsprincipal. For loar
originated during 2005 to 2007, the businessesiehllizing these loans (within a short periodimit following closing of the loan
were subject to extreme conditions including a ssimm and resulting decrease in property values martbrmance. Indust
performance, while improving, has not yet reachedrgcession levels. The majority of our loan recel@athich were over 89 da
delinquent at December 31, 2010 were originatech 26005 to 2007.

F-15




Table of Contents

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 3. Retained Interests:

Our Retained Interests consisted of the following:

At December 31, 201
Estimated Fair Valu
OC Piece Reserve Fur 10 Receivabl Total Cost
(In thousands

734
734

= $ = $ 1,01C $ 1,01(C

First Westerr $
$ — $ — $ 1,01( $ 1,01(

AP

At December 31, 200
Estimated Fair Valu
OC Piece Reserve Fur 10 Receivabl Total Cost
(In thousands

First Westerr $ — $ — $ 994 $ 994 $ 934
1998 Partnership (’ 28C 1,012 101 1,39: 1,35¢
2000 Joint Venture (1 8,49¢ 1,40¢ 23€ 10,14( 9,91:

$ 8,77¢ $ 2,421 $ 1,331 $ 12,527 $ 12,20:

(1) Effective January 1, 2010, due to a change in acting rules, we now consolidate the assets andilii@s of the 199
Partnership and the 2000 Joint Ventu

The SBA guaranteed portions of our loans receivablé to either dealers in government guaranteadsl@eceivable or institutior
investors (“Secondary Market Loan Saleg/hen each individual loan becomes fully funded. GBA 7(a) subsidiary has Retait
Interests related to the sale of loans originategyant to the SBA 7(a) program prior to Januar2010. Effective January 1, 20
based on a change in accounting rules, we no laegerd additions to Retained Interests.

On Secondary Market Loan Sales prior to Janua®p10, to the extent we retained an excess spraact®e the interest rate due
us from our borrowers and the rate payable to thhehaser of the guaranteed portion of the notetla@dequired minimum servici
spread (“Excess Spreadi)e established Retained Interests. In determirtiegestimated fair value of our Retained Interesistec
to Secondary Market Loan Sales completed priomatwdry 1, 2010, our assumptions at December 31) R@luded a prepayme
speed of 15% per annum and a discount rate of 13.8%

The following sensitivity analysis of our Retaintlerests at December 31, 2010 highlights the Wibyathat results when loan loss
and discount rates are different than our assumgtio

Estimatec
Fair
Changed Assumptia Value Asset Change (
(In thousands
Prepayments increase by 500 basis points per a $ 877 $ (139
Prepayments increase by 1000 basis points per a $ 77¢ % (2349)
Discount rates increase by 300 basis pc $ 941 % (69)
Discount rates increase by 500 basis pc $ 89¢ % (111

(1) Any depreciation of our Retained Interests woulcehiker included in the accompanying statemennobine as a perman
impairment or on our consolidated balance shedtaneficiarie’ equity as an unrealized los

No credit losses are assumed for our Retaineddsitesince the SBA has guaranteed the paymeng gfithcipal on these loar
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These sensitivities are hypothetical and shoulddszl with caution. Values based on changes in @esemptions generally can
be extrapolated since the relationship of the changassumptions to the change in estimated fairevis not linear. The effect o
variation in a particular assumption on the estaddair value of our Retained Interests is caladatvithout changing any ott
assumption. In reality, changes in one factor at isolated from changes in another which might mifggor counteract tt
sensitivities.

Note 4. Other Assets:
Other assets consisted of the following:

December 31

2010 2009
(In thousands
Investment in VIF's (1) $ 2,18: $ 1,127
Deferred tax asset, net ( 1,03¢ 394
Deferred borrowing costs, n 83¢€ 88t
Servicing asset, ni 75¢€ 72€
Interest receivabl 691 594
Prepaid expenses and depo 28¢€ 343
Other 201 32€

$ 5,99/ $ 4,392

(1) During August 2010, we increased our investmewtinunconsolidated variable interest entity by rgipg its mortgage note
approximately $1.0 million. In January 2011, ousdee exercised the fixed purchase option relatethéoassets of o
unconsolidated variable interest entity. No gainasgs was recorded on the transacti

(2) The increase in our deferred tax asset is due pilgn#o the deferral of gain recognition on Secongldlarket Loan Sales d
to a change in accounting rules effective JanuargQi0.
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5. Debt:

Information on our debt was as follows:

Weighted
Average
Interest Ratt
Weighted Averag on Underlying
Carrying Value a Coupon Rate ¢ Loans al
December 31, (1 December 31 December 31
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except footnot
Structured notes payable (z
2003 Joint Ventur $ 7,094 $ 8,291 2.8(% 2.7% 4.29% (3)
2000 Joint Ventur: 11,72¢ — 7.28% NA 9.54%
1998 Partnershi 3,33¢ — 2.25% NA 4.9%
22,157 8,291
Junior subordinated not 27,07( 27,07( 3.54% 3.5% NA
Revolving credit facility 13,80( 23,00( 3.25% 3.25% NA
Debentures payab 8,17 8,17: 5.9(% 5.9(% NA
Secured borrowings — governmenti
guaranteed loans
Loans sold for a premium and
excess spread (: 15,66¢ — 3.81% NA 5.94%
Loans sold for excess spre 6,101 — 1.5¢% NA 5.9€%
21,76¢ —
Redeemable preferred stock of
subsidiary (5 — 1,97¢ NA 4.0(% NA
Debt $ 92,96¢ $ 68,50¢
(1) The face amount of debt as of December 31, 2012&08 was $92,982,000 and $68,551,000, respect

()

(3)
(4)

(5)

Beginning January 1, 2010, due to a change in anting rules, the 2000 Joint Venture and the 1998triaship wer
consolidated

The weighted average rate on the underlying caltior the 2003 Joint Venture at December 31, 20@8 4.31%

For loans sold for premiums and excess spreadytighted average coupon rate reflects an adjustrfernthe cash premiu
received

During March 2010, we redeemed 20,000 shares o0 D value, 4% cumulative preferred stock of oheuw SBICs held t
the SBA due in May 2010. No gain or loss was remh the redemptiol
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Principal payments on our debt at December 31, 284@ as follows (face amount):

Structurec

Notes anc
Years Ending Securec All Other
December 31 Total Borrowings (1 Debt (2)

(In thousands

2011 $ 17,77¢ $ 3,97¢ $ 13,80(
2012 4,22¢ 4,22¢ —
2013 8,631 4,441 4,19(
2014 4,57¢ 4,57¢ —
2015 8,73¢ 4,73¢ 4,00(
Thereafte 49,03( 21,96( 27,07(

$ 92,98: $ 43,92: $ 49,06(

(1) Principal payments are generally dependent uponhciews received from the underlying loans. Ourineate of thei
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynmentee underlying loans. Our estimate will diffesrh actual amounts to t
extent we experience prepayments and/or loan lodepayment is due on the structured notes orrgelcborrowings unle:
payments are received from the borrowers on thadamderlying then

(2) Represents the revolving credit facility, juniobsudinated notes and SBIC debentures pay:
Structured notes payable

Structured notes payable are collateralized byldhes of the securitizations. Repayment of theimgipal is based on collections
principal on the underlying loans receivable. W&ehao obligation to pay these notes, nor do thehalters have any recou
against our assets (other than the underlying loageivable and restricted cash of the securitag}io

Junior subordinated note

The Junior Subordinated Notes bear interest aiatifig rate which resets on a quarterly basisea®tiday LIBOR plus 3.25%. Tt
Junior Subordinated Notes may be redeemed at jpaur atption. Interest payments are due on a quptiesis.

Revolving credit facility

PMC Commercial has a collateralized revolving dréalcility which provides credit availability up 30 million which expires ¢
December 31, 2011. The facility is collateralizgcthoe loans of PMC Commercial and the common stdadur SBA 7(a) subsidiar
Our SBA 7(a) subsidiary was added as a borroweetutite revolving credit facility during Decemberl®0with a borrowin
availability of up to $7.5 million (included withithe total availability of $30 million). We are aigaed interest on the balar
outstanding under the revolving credit facilityoatr election of either the prime rate of the lenaleBOO basis points over LIBOR.
addition, we are charged an unused fee equal ®8&is points computed based on our daily availbblance. The credit facil
requires us to meet certain covenants, the mastatége of which provides for a maximum amountrafn-performing loans and re
estate owned as defined in the agreement. The roaxiproblem assets cannot exceed 15% of benefigiaipiity calculated on
quarterly basis. In addition, we have (1) a coveiizat limits our ability to pay out returns of d@bas part of our dividends and (2
minimum equity requirement of $145 million. At Deaker 31, 2010, we were in compliance with the cangs of this facility.

SBIC debentures payable

SBIC debentures represent amounts due to the SBAare semi-annual interest only payments untibinitst

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed loans

Secured borrowings —-government guaranteed loans represents legally3®hl 7(a) loans which are treated as secured bangs
if the loans were sold for excess spread or ifltla@s were sold for excess spread and a cash prerfixcess spread represents
difference between the interest rate due to us fsamborrower and the rate payable to the purchefsére guaranteed portion of

loan and servicing costs. To the extent securerbimimgs include cash premiums, these premiumsheilhmortized as a reductior
interest expense over the life of the loan usimgititerest method.
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Interest Paic
During 2010, 2009 and 2008 interest paid was $30081 $2,669,000, and $3,919,000, respectively.
Note 6. Cumulative Preferred Stock of Subsidiary:

One of our SBICs has outstanding 30,000 shared@d par value, 3% cumulative preferred stock (B8 ‘Preferred Stockeld by
the SBA. Our SBIC is entitled to redeem, in whotepart, the 3% Preferred Stock by paying the pdue/$3.0 million) of thes
securities plus dividends accumulated and unpaidhendate of redemption. While the 3% PreferredciStmay be redeeme
redemption is not mandatory. The 3% Preferred Steak valued at $900,000 when acquired in 2004.demis of $90,000 we
recognized on the 3% Preferred Stock during both028nd 2009 and are reflected in our consolidatattrments of income
interest expense.

Note 7. Earnings Per Share:

The computations of basic earnings per common sr@®ased on our weighted average shares outsgaridie weighted avera
number of common shares outstanding was approxiynife554,000, 10,573,000 and 10,767,000 for treryended December
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. For purposeslsiulating diluted earnings per share, the weidjlaeerage shares outstanc
were increased by 16,000 shares during 2010 fodith&ve effect of share options. No shares watded to the weighted aver:
shares outstanding for purposes of calculatingetilearnings per share during 2009 or 2008 asraptiere anti-dilutive.

Not included in the computation of diluted earnipgs share were outstanding options to purchase=ippately 77,000, 90,000 a
59,000 common shares during 2010, 2009 and 206Bectively, because the optiorXercise prices were greater than the ave
market price of the shares.

Note 8. Dividends Paid and Declared:

During 2010, our dividends were declared as foltows

Amount
Record Dat¢ Date Paic Per Shart Type
March 31, 201( April 12, 2010 $ 0.1¢€ Regular
June 30, 201 July 12, 201( 0.1¢ Regular
September 30, 201 October 12, 201 0.1¢ Regular
December 31, 201 January 10, 201 0.1€ Regular
$ 0.64

We have certain covenants within our revolving gréakcility that limit our ability to pay out retas of capital as part of c
dividends. These restrictions have not historicfhited the amount of dividends we have paid armhagement does not believe
they will restrict future dividend payments.

Note 9. Income Taxes:

PMC Commercial has elected to be taxed as a RE#Euihe Code. To qualify as a REIT, PMC Commentiakt meet a number
organizational and operational requirements, ifolgich requirement that we distribute at least 90%uw taxable income to o
shareholders. As a REIT, PMC Commercial generallynet be subject to corporate level Federal inedi@ix on net income thai
currently distributed to shareholders.

F-20




Table of Contents

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following reconciles net income to REIT taxaileome:

Years Ended December

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands
Net income $ 4,297 $ 6,761 $ 9,80¢
Book/tax difference on depreciati (53 (56) (60)
Book/tax difference on gains related to real es 387 (1,110 (784)
Book/tax difference on Retained Interests, — (212) 57
Impairment losse 317 — —
Severance accrual (paymer (33 (1,435 1,59¢
Book/tax difference on amortization and accre (202) (232) (34%)
Loan valuatior (247 497 43C
Other book/tax differences, r (121) (38) (177)
Subtotal 4,451 4,17¢ 10,52
Adjustment for taxable REIT subsidiaries net lass@me), net of ta 34C 41c (587)
Dividend distribution from taxable REIT subsidie 30C — 2,00(
REIT taxable incom $ 5,091 $ 4 ,58¢ $ 11,93¢
Distributions declare $ 6,75¢ $ 7,44~ $ 10,90¢
Basic weighted average common shares outstal 10,55¢ 10,57 10,767

Dividends per share for dividend reporting purposeee as follows:

Years Ended December ¢

2010 2009 2008
Amount Amount Amount
Per Shart Percen Per Shar Percen Per Shart Percen
Non-qualified dividends $ 0.56¢ 88.7%% $ 0.70: 100.0% $ 0.82¢ 81.61%
Quialified dividends 0.02¢ 4.36% — — 0.18¢ 18.3"%
Non-taxable return of capiti 0.04< 6.8E% — — — —
$ 0.64( 100.0%% $ 0.70¢ 100.0%6 $ 1.01t 100.00%

In order to meet our taxable income distributioquieements, we may make an election under the Godesat a portion of tt
distributions declared and paid in the current yasmadistributions of the prior yeartaxable income. Dividends of approxima
$1.4 million paid during 2010 were used to satisfy 2009 dividend distribution requirement and agpnately $4.3 million pai
during 2009 were used to satisfy our 2008 dividéisttibution requirement.

PMC Commercial has wholly-owned TRS’s which arejectto Federal income taxes. The income genefaetenthe TRSS is taxe
at normal corporate rates.

We calculate our current and deferred tax provisibased on estimates and assumptions that codiéd &dém the actual resu
reflected in income tax returns filed during théseguent year. Adjustments based on the finaleaxns are generally recordet
the period when the returns are filed.
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Income tax provision (benefit) related to the TR&ssisted of the following:

Years Ended December
2010 2009 2008
(In thousands

Federal.
Current provisior $ 514 $ 89 $ 272
Deferred provision (benefi (64E) (25€) 47
Income tax provision (benefi $ (13 $ (167 $ 31¢

The provision (benefit) for income taxes resultgffective tax rates that differ from Federal staty rates of 34%. The reconciliati
of TRS income tax attributable to net income (lasshputed at Federal statutory rates to incomeptaxision (benefit) was

follows:
Years Ended December :
2010 2009 2008
(In thousands

Income (loss) before income taxes for T's $ 477 % 580 $ 90¢€
Expected Federal income tax provision (ben $ 1e0) $ (19¢) % 307
Preferred dividend of subsidia 31 31 31
Other adjustment (2 — (19
Income tax provision (benefi $ (13)) $ (167 $ 31¢

We have identified our Federal tax returns and state returns in Texas as “majaix jurisdictions. The periods subject
examination for our Federal tax returns and stetierms in Texas are the 2007 through 2009 tax y#éesbelieve that all income t
filing positions and deductions will be sustainedaudit and do not anticipate any adjustmentswuiilatesult in a material change
our financial position. Therefore, no reservesuiocertain tax positions have been recorded.

The components of our net deferred tax asset veefallaws:

December 31
2010 2009
(In thousands

Deferred tax asset

Secured borrowing— government guaranteed loe $ 48¢ $ —
Retained Interest 31t 22¢
Servicing asse 164 24
Loans receivabl 42 12€
Net operating losse 28 27
Real estate owne 3 —

Total gross deferred tax ass 1,041 40E

Deferred tax liabilities

Discounts on redeemable preferred stock of subyidiad debentures payal 2 11
Total gross deferred tax liabilitie 2 11
Deferred tax asset, n $ 1,03¢ $ 394

Net operating loss carryforwards at December 3102@ere generated by two T's and are available to offset future taxable inc
of these TRS’s. The net operating loss carryforaaxpire from 2027 to 2030.
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We paid approximately $538,000, $109,000 and $28bi income taxes during 2010, 2009 and 2008 ectiely.
Note 10. Other Income:
Other income consisted of the following:

Years Ended December :

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands
Premium income (1 $ 70¢ $ 1,34: $ 22¢
Prepayment fee 37¢ 12¢ 771
Servicing income 344 37C 46¢
Other loan related incon 22¢€ 224 36¢
Equity in earnings of VIE 10€ 76 94
Other — 86 28¢€

$ 1,768 $ 2,22t $ 2,212

(1) Premium income results from the sale of the goveninguaranteed portion of our SBA 7(a) loans puniua Secondal
Market Loan Sales. Effective January 1, 2010, wéonger record premium income for loans sold foleoexcess spread
loans sold for excess spread and a 10% cash pren

Note 11. Discontinued Operations:
Our discontinued operations consisted of the falhgw

Years Ended December :

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands
Gains on sales of real esti $ 78 $ 721 $ 784
Gain on foreclosur — 38¢ —
Net operating losse (29¢) (40¢€) —
Impairment losse (325) — —
Discontinued operatior $ (545  $ 704 $ 784

Gains on sales of real estate represent gainseosatles of hotel properties and income recogniiopreviously unamortized gail
We also had a gain on the sale of REO acquireditfiréoreclosure of $76,000 during 2010.

Gain on foreclosure represents the initial adjustnod the carrying value to the estimated fair wabf our REO upon foreclosu
During 2009, the estimated fair value after selldogts of the collateral underlying a limited seevhospitality property included
REO on our consolidated balance sheet was in extéisscost.

Net operating losses represent the net of reveang®xpenses of our REO. During 2010, these lagsested primarily from ot
hospitality properties included in REO. During 2088t operating losses represent primarily thdasstes related to a golf course.

Impairment losses represent declines in the estunfair value of our REO subsequent to initial adilon. During 2010, we record
an impairment loss of $203,000 related to a futVise hospitality property owned by the 2003 Jdienture and an impairment I
of $114,000 related to a retail establishment dugetlines in their market potential.
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Note 12. Dividend Reinvestment and Cash Purchased?l:

We have a dividend reinvestment and cash purchase(fhe “Plan”).Participants in the Plan have the option to reihadisor ¢
portion of dividends received. The purchase prickhe Common Shares is 100% of the average ofldsng price of the Comm
Shares as published for the five trading days imately prior to the dividend record date or priorthe optional cash paym:
purchase date, whichever is applicable. Our trarefent, on our behalf, uses the open market tohage Common Shares v
proceeds from the dividend reinvestment portiothefPlan.

Note 13. Profit Sharing Plan:

We have a profit sharing plan available to our-fule employees after one year of employment. Vgsticreases ratably to 10(
after the sixth year of employment. Pursuant to profit sharing plan, approximately $216,000, $089, and $207,000 w
expensed during 2010, 2009 and 2008, respecti@agtributions to the profit sharing plan are atdigcretion of our Board of TrL
Managers.

Note 14. Share-Based Compensation Plans:

At December 31, 2010, we had options outstandingeuisharesased compensation plans. The 2005 Equity Incelae wa
approved by our shareholders on June 11, 2005 amdifs the grant of options to our employees, etreewfficers and Board !
Trust Managers and restricted shares to our execofficers and Board of Trust Managers for up 8,800 Common Shares. !
believe that these awards better align the intei@sbur employees, executive officers and Boar@irakt Managers with those of «
shareholders.

Option awards are granted with an exercise priaealetp the market price of our Common Shares atddite of grant and ve
immediately upon grant with fivgear contractual terms. A summary of the statusuofstock options as of December 31, 2010, .
and 2008 and the changes during the years enddthea dates are as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Number o Weightec Number o Weightec Number o Weightec
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise Underlying Exercise

Options Prices Options Prices Options Prices
Outstanding, January 89,65( $ 1173 74,65( $ 12.4¢€ 101,65: $ 13.6¢
Grantec 26,50( $ 8.3t 15,00( $ 8.3t 20,00( $ 7.6t
Forfeited — — — — (25,449 $ 12.8¢
Exercisec (1,500 % 7.6t — — — —
Expired (23,900 $ 14.5¢ — — (21,55) ¢ 13.1-

Outstanding and exercisable,

December 3: 90,75( $ 10.11 89,65( $ 117 74,65( $ 12.4¢

Weighted-average fair value per
share of stock options granted
during the yea $ 1.24 $ 0.71 $ 0.3C

The market price of our Common Shares at DecemheP@10 is greater than certain of our share optiercise prices (55,5
shares). The intrinsic value of these share oponstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2@HRawproximately $17,000.

Upon notification of intent to exercise stock opso our policy is to first verify that the optioase exercisable, then to contact
transfer agent instructing them to issue new shamdghen to collect the cash proceeds.
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The fair value of each share option granted isvedd on the date of grant using the Black-Schopg®n-pricing model with th
following weighted-average assumptions:

Years Ended December

2010 2009 2008
Assumption:
Expected Term (year: 3.0 3.C 3.C
Risk-Free Interest Ral 1.23% 1.91% 3.3%%
Expected Dividend Yiels 7.66% 8.44% 11.44%
Expected Volatility 40.2% 28.0% 20.1%
Forfeiture Rate 10.0(% 10.0(% 5.0(%

The expected term of the options represents thiegef time that the options are expected to bestantling and was determir
based on our historical data. The risk-free rate based on the year U.S. Treasury rate corresponding to the erpletetrm of th
options. We used historical information to determiour expected volatility, dividend yield and fotfiee rates. We record
compensation expense of $33,000, $11,000 and $68@@dy 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, relétettiese option grants.

The following table summarizes information abowrehoptions outstanding at December 31, 2010:

Options Outstanding and Exercisa

Weighted
Average Weighted
Remaining Average
Range o Number Contract Life Exercise
Exercise Price Outstanding (in years) Price
$7.65 to $8.3! 55,50( 3.74 $ 8.17
$12.72 to $14.0 35,25( 0.8C $ 13.15
$7.65 to $14.0: 90,75( 2.5¢ $ 10.11

A summary of our restricted shares as of Decembgl@10, 2009 and 2008 and the changes duringdhesyended on those ds
are as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Weighted
Average Gran

Weighted
Average Gran

Weighted
Average Gran

Number o Date Fair Valu Number o Date Fair Valu Numbero Date Fair Valu

Shares Per Shart Shares Per Shart Shares Per Shart
Balance, January 17,41¢ $ 8.1¢4 13,20 $ 9.0t 10,45 $ 13.6¢€
Granted 13,10 $ 8.3t 18,40C % 8.3t 16,50C $ 7.6
Vested (15,050 $ 8.11 (14,189 $ 9.2t (22,150 $ 7.8¢4
Forfeited (3,400 $ 8.3t — — (1,600 $ 11.2¢
Balance, December : 12,06¢ $ 8.3t 17,41¢ $ 8.14 13,20C $ 9.0t

The restricted share awards vest based on two yéarsntinuous service with orthird of the shares vesting immediately u
issuance of the shares and diied vesting at the end of each of the next twargeRestricted share awards provide for acceld
vesting if there is a change in control (as defimedhe plan). Compensation expense related torék&icted shares is be
recognized over the vesting periods. We recordedpemsation expense of $101,000, $140,000 and $128@ring 2010, 2009 a
2008, respectively, related to our restricted shiaseances. At December 31, 2010, there was $47080@tal unrecognize
compensation expense related to the restricte@shwdrich will be recognized over the next two years
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Note 15. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infaration:
Our non-cash activities were as follows:

Years Ended December

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands

Consolidation of loans receivable | $ = $ 32,56: $ 13,76(
Reclassification from loans receivable to realtestavnec $ 4,04( $ 4,94¢ $ —
Reclassifications reducing secured borrowings —egawient guaranteed

loans and loans receivable, | $ 7,692 $ — $ =
Reclassification from Retained Interests to lo@teivable — PMC Capital,

L.P. 199¢1 $ — $ — $ 7,59¢
Loans receivable originated to facilitate saleseaif estate owne $ 3,32¢ $ — $ =

(1) In addition, as described in Note 1, effective Jagul, 2010, we are now consolidating the assets labilities of the 200
Joint Venture and the 1998 Partnership, representior-cash transactions. Previously, the 2000 Joint Vienand the 19¢
Partnership were reflected as Retained Intere

Note 16. Fair Values of Financial Instruments:

At December 31, 2010, Retained Interests was olyr asset that was required to be measured at &revon a recurring basis.
liabilities were required to be measured at falugan a recurring basis. A financial instrumsngvel within the fair value hierarc
is based on the lowest level of any input thaigsificant to the fair value measurement. In geheyaoted market prices from act
markets for the identical asset (Level 1 inpufisqvailable, should be used to value an asseudteyl prices are not available for
identical asset, then a determination should beenifadevel 2 inputs are available. Level 2 inputslude quoted prices for simi
assets in active markets or for identical or simdasets in markets that are not activee(, markets in which there are fi
transactions for the asset, the prices are noegyrprice quotations may vary substantially, owknch little information is releas:
publicly). There is little or no market informatidor our Retained Interests, thus there are no ILéver Level 2 determinatiol
available. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inpatsttie asset. Unobservable inputs are used to meeésiu value when observal
inputs are not available. These inputs includeexyrectations about the assumptions that markdtipants would use in pricing t
asset in a current transaction.
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We used Level 3 inputs to determine the estimad@dvilue of our Retained Interests. The followisgactivity for our Retaine

Interests:
Years Ende:
December 31
2010 2009
(In thousands
Value as of beginning of peric $ 12,527 $ 33,24¢
Accretion (1) — 302
Repurchases/Consolidation | (12,739 (21,129
Investment: — 1,261
Principal collection: (200) (30¢)
Realized gains included in net income (29 (89
Cumulative effect adjustment ( 201 —
Permanent impairmen — (552)
Unrealized appreciation (depreciatic 24C (20€)
Value as of end of peric $ 1,01( $ 12,52:
Cost at end of perio $ 734 $ 12,20:

(1) Represents accretion of income in excess of p@hcipllections, included within income from Retairieterests

(2) During 2010, represents the consolidation of th@®®Woint Venture and the 1998 Partnership basednupochange i
accounting rules effective January 1, 2010. Durg@9, represents the repurchase of a securitizadiot consolidation of
securitization based upon attainment of “ clear-ug” call option.

(3) Included within income from retained interestsramsferred asset:

(4) Based on a change in accounting rules, we cons@tdéhe 2000 Joint Venture and the 1998 Partnersfffipctive January
2010. The difference of $466,000 between the ara@dtted to our consolidated balance sheet as aaseitsiabilities and ot
Retained Interests was recognized as a cumulaffeeteadjustment in our beneficiar’ equity. Unrealized appreciation
Retained Interests of $265,000 was reversed inuomtipn with the consolidation; therefore, the eéfect to our beneficiarir
equity was an increase of $201,0

We may be required, from time to time, to measerain other assets at fair value on a nonrecutyagis. These adjustments to
value usually result in the recognition of loansl@eserves on individual loans and valuation reeseon REO based on the estim
fair value.

For impaired loans measured at fair value on aewmnring basis during 2010 and 2009 the followialylé provides the carryil
value of the related individual assets at year ¥¥elused Level 3 inputs to determine the estimfgtizd/alue of our impaired loans.

Carrying Value a Provision for
December 31 Loan Losses (2
2010 2009 2010 2009
(In thousands
Impaired loans (1 $ 69€ $ 2,99¢ $ 16C $ 334

(1) Carrying value represents our impaired loans netlodéin loss reserves. Our carrying value is deteedinbased c
managemen$ assessment of the fair value of the collateralebdaon numerous factors including operating stagsto the
extent available, appraised value of the collatetak assessed value and market environn

(2) Represents the net change in the provision for loases included in our consolidated statementsaafme related specifica
to these loans during the periods presen
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For REO, our carrying value approximates the edschdair value at the time of foreclosure and thevdr of cost or mark
thereafter. We used Level 3 inputs to determinesitamated fair value of our REO. The carrying eabd our REO is establishec
the time of foreclosure based upon managermeaasessment of its fair value based on numercotar$ancluding operating statist
to the extent available, the appraised value ottilateral, tax assessed value and market envigEahm

The following is activity for our REO:

Years Ende:
December 31
2010 2009

(In thousands
Value as of beginning of peric $ 5,47¢ $ —
Foreclosure: 4,04C 5,47¢
Sales (5,71%) —
Impairment losse (325) —
Value as of end of peric $ 3,47 $ 5,47¢

Included within our REO is a full service hospitglproperty with a carrying value and estimated failue of $1,046,000 which
owned by the 2003 Joint Venture.

The estimated fair values of our financial and fiaancial instruments were as follows:

December 31

2010 2009
Estimatec Estimatec
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In thousands
Assets:
Loans receivable, ni $ 233,21 $ 228,82 $ 196,64. $ 189,41¢
Retained Interest 1,01 1,01 12,527 12,527
Cash and cash equivalel 2,642 2,642 7,83¢ 7,83¢
Restricted cash and cash equivalt 5,78¢ 5,78¢ 1,365 1,36
Liabilities:
Structured notes and SBIC debentures pay 30,33« 30,78: 16,46 16,23¢
Secured borrowing— government guaranteed loe 21,76: 21,76: — —
Redeemable preferred stock of subsid — — 1,97t 2,00(
Revolving credit facility 13,80( 13,80¢( 23,00( 23,00(
Junior Subordinated Not: 27,07( 22,31( 27,07( 14,62¢

In general, estimates of fair value may differ frtme carrying amounts of the financial assets atillities primarily as a result
the effects of discounting future cash flows. Cdasible judgment is required to interpret markéd dend develop estimates of
value. Accordingly, the estimates presented mayaadhdicative of the amounts we could realize auaent market exchange.
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Loans receivable, neOur loans receivable are recorded at cost and tadjus/ net loan origination fees and discountsorirer tc
determine the estimated fair value of our loangika&ble, we use a present value technique forrkieipated future cash flows usi
certain assumptions including a current discoume, rarepayment tendencies and potential loan lodsesn loss reserves i
established based on the credggrayment history, collateral value, guarantor supand other factors. In the absence of a re
ascertainable market value, the estimated valueuofloans receivable may differ from the valuest tvauld be placed on t
portfolio if a ready market for the loans receivabkisted.

Retained Interest: In order to determine the estimated fair valu@wf Retained Interests, we use a present vallmitpee for th
anticipated future cash flows using certain assionptincluding a current discount rate and prepayrtendencies.

Cash and cash equivalenfBhe carrying amount is a reasonable estimatiomiof/glue due to the short maturity of these imateats

Restricted cash and cash equivalerRestricted cash and cash equivalents representalgction and reserve accounts of
securitizations. The carrying amount is considdcelle a reasonable estimate of their fair valuetdug) the short maturity of tl
collection account, (2) the majority of our reseagezounts can be used at any time in conjunctiah thie exercise of our “clean-up”
call options and (3) the reserve accounts providoltateral value at their current carrying amountthe structured noteholders.

Structured notes and SBIC debentures payable anmbdSubordinated Notesthe estimated fair value is based on a present
calculation based on prices of the same or sinilsiruments after considering market risks, curiatérest rates and remain
maturities.

Secured borrowings — government guaranteed lo@hs: estimated fair value approximates cost asdhrsl were sold in curre
third-party transactions.

Redeemable preferred stock of subsidicThe face amount was a reasonable estimation ofvédire due to the short duratior
maturity.

Revolving credit facilityThe carrying amount is a reasonable estimatiomiofvlue as the interest rate on this instrumgrariabli
and the short duration to maturity.

Note 17. Commitments and Contingencies:
Loan Commitment

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lenal customer provided the terms established éncttntract are met. C
outstanding loan commitments and approvals to fuewl loans were approximately $16.5 million at DebenB1, 2010, all of whic
were for primebased loans to be originated under the SBA 7(ajrBno, the government guaranteed portion of whi&¥{To 90%
of each individual loan) may be sold pursuant toddeary Market Loan Sales. Commitments generalye Hxed expiration date
Since some commitments are expected to expire utitheing drawn upon, total commitment amounts donegessarily represe
future cash requirements.

Operating Lease

We lease office space in Dallas, Texas under @& ledwich expires in October 2011. Future minimunséepayments under this le
are $187,000.

Rent expense amounted to approximately $168,0@%,$00 and $175,000 during 2010, 2009 and 200Beontisely.

Employment Agreemer

We have employment agreements with our executiiicen$ for threeyear terms expiring June 30, 2013. Under ce
circumstances, as defined within the agreemenésatreements provide for severance compensatitimetexecutive officer in

lump sum payment in an amount equal to 2.99 tirhesawverage of the last three years annual compemngadid to the executi
officer.
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Structured Loan Sale Transactions

The transaction documents of the structured lodm tsansactions contain provisions (the “Credit &mtement Provisions’thal
govern the assets and the inflow and outflow ofifuaf the entities formed as part of the structloed sale transactions. The Cr.
Enhancement Provisions include specified limitsdetinquencies, defaults and losses on the loarsded in each structured Ic
sale transaction. If, at any measurement dateygletincies, defaults or losses with respect to tingtared loan sale transaction w
to exceed the specified limits, the Credit EnharmemnProvisions would require an increase in thell@f credit enhanceme
During the period in which specified delinquencigsfaults or losses were exceeded, excess casHrilowthe entity, if any, whic
would otherwise be distributable to us, would beduto fund the increased credit enhancement lexek® the principal amount
such loans and would delay or reduce our distriloutin general, there can be no assurance thaibdigbn amounts deferred uni
Credit Enhancement Provisions would be receivefiitinre periods or that future deferrals or lossédsmoat occur. As a result of
delinquent and impaired loan in the 2003 Joint ent Credit Enhancement Provisions were triggenaihg the first quarter
2009. As a consequence, cash flows related tdrdmsaction otherwise distributable to us are beigigrred and utilized to fund 1
increased credit enhancement requirements. Basedroent cash flow assumptions, management antesphat the funds will |
received in future periods.

Litigation

We had significant outstanding claims against Aytam Hospitality, Inc.’s and its subsidiary Arligt Inns, Inc$ (togethe
“Arlington”) bankruptcy estates. Arlington objected to our ckmnd initiated a complaint in the bankruptcy segkamong othi
things, the return of certain payments Arlingtord@g@ursuant to the property leases and the mastee hgreement.

While confident that a substantial portion of olaims would have been allowed and the claims agaiaswould have be:
disallowed, due to the exorbitant cost of defermgted with the likelihood of reduced availableedssn the debtor®states to p¢
claims, we executed an agreement with Arlingtorséttle our claims against Arlington and Arlingterélaims against us. T
settlement provides that Arlington will dismiss daims seeking the return of certain payments npagtsuant to the property lea
and the master lease agreement, and substangdliges our claims against the Arlington estates. sEttlement further provides
mutual releases among the parties. The BankruptayrtGpproved the settlement. Accordingly, there o remaining assets
liabilities recorded in the accompanying consobkdafinancial statements related to this matter. élaw, the settlement will or
become final upon the Bankruptcy Court’s approfadington’s liquidation plan which was filed during the thijdarter of 200°
Due to the complexity of the bankruptcy, we carggitmate when, or if, the liquidation plan will Bpproved.

In the normal course of business we are periodigallty to certain legal actions and proceedingslinng matters that are gener:
incidental to our businessi.g., collection of loans receivable). In managememtpinion, the resolution of these legal actiond
proceedings will not have a material adverse effecbur consolidated financial statements.

Other

If the SBA establishes that a loss on an SBA guasghloan is attributable to significant technideficiencies in the manner in wh
the loan was originated, funded or serviced by ®BLC, the SBA may seek recovery of the principakloelated to the deficier
from us. With respect to the guaranteed portioBBA loans that have been sold, the SBA will firshbr its guarantee and then s
compensation from us in the event that a lossésmel to be attributable to technical deficiendBzsed on historical experience,
do not expect that this contingency would be makéoi the financial statements if asserted.

Pursuant to SBA rules and regulations, distribiimom our SBLC and SBICs are limited. In ordemferate as a small busin
lending company, a licensee is required to mairdaimnimum net worth (as defined by SBA regulat)asfsthe greater of (1) 10%
the outstanding loans receivable of our SBLC or&2)0 million, as well as certain other regulatoggtrictions such as change
control provisions. At December 31, 2010, dividentiapproximately $1.1 million were available fastibution.
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Schedule Il
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged to
beginning costs and
Description of period expenses Acquired
Year ended December 31, 2008:
Loan Loss Reserve $ 42 $ A8¢ $ —
Year ended December 31, 200!
Loan Loss Reserve $ 48C $ 1,07¢ $ —
Year ended December 31, 2010:
Loan Loss Reserve $ 1,257 % 1,01¢ % 184(3)

(1) Principal writter-off.

Deductions
$ 14 (1)
(36) (2)

$ (50
$ (212) (1)
(87 (2)

$ (299
$ (473 (1)
(379) (2)

$ (851

Balance at
end

of period

$ 48C

$ 1,25

$ 1,60¢

(2) Represents previously recorded loan loss reseriiehwere reversed due to reductions in expecteskebon loan:
(3) Represents reserves of our special purposes sntitich were consolidated beginning January 1, 2
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SCHEDULE IV
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

Conventional Loans — States 2% or greate(1)(2):

Principal amount

Geographic Number Final Carrying of loan subject to
Dispersion of of Size of Loans Interest Rate Maturity Amount of delinquent principal
Collateral Loans From To Variable Fixed Date Mortgage or “interest”
Texas 29 $ 0 $1,00C 3.79% to 6.00¢ 7.00% to 10.78¢ 6/12/11-2/25/24 $ 12,53: $ —
Texas(3) 11 $1,00C $2,00C 3.04% to 5.25¢6.50% to 10.25¢ 5/01/21-11/18/30 13,60" 2,75¢
Texas 3 $2,00C $3,00¢ 3.54% 8.35% 11/29/2-12/4/26 7,02¢ —
Texas 3 $3,00C $4,00¢ 2.79% 8.25% to 8.35% 11/29/2+-12/13/2" 9,431 —
Virginia (4) 4 $1,00C $2,00C 4.29% 8.90% to 10.25¢ 11/30/1¢2/28/23 6,062 —
Virginia (5) 2 $2,00(C $3,00C 4.29% to 5.75¢ NA 1/30/2:-6/29/24 5,28¢ —
Virginia (6) 1 $3,00( $4,00C 3.42% NA 3/27/27 3,07¢ —
Virginia 1 $5,00C $6,00C 3.29% NA 1/31/28 5,94¢ —
Arizona 6% 0 $1,000 4.25% to 4.54¢ 9.25% to 9.31% 7/16/1%-7/29/25 4,031 —
Arizona 4 $1,00C $2,00C 4.79% 9.25% to 10.00¢ 7/8/1¢-9/29/24 5,73¢ —
Arizona 2 $2,00C $3,00¢ 4.29% NA 10/13/2'-12/21/2¢ 4,88¢ —
Arizona 1 $4,00( $5,00(C 3.29% NA 1/30/28 4,82¢ —
Ohio 1$ 0 $1,00C 5.29% NA 11/8/12 72 —
Ohio 4 $1,00C $2,00C 3.29% to 4.29¢ NA 10/27/2'-5/4/27 5,951 —
Ohio 2 $2,00C $3,00¢ 3.29% 8.28% 10/30/2¢-4/21/28 5,09( —
Ohio 1 $3,00( $4,00C 3.29% NA 4/21/28 3,02 —
Alabama(7) 4% 0 $1,000 3.75% 5.25% to 9.50% 11/21/1°-11/21/2( 2,12¢ —
Alabama 1 $1,00C $2,00C 4.54% NA 3/1/22 1,76¢ —
Alabama 2 $2,00C $3,00¢ 4.29% NA 3/1/2€-10/1/26 5,33¢ —
Florida 1$ 0 $1,00C 3.42% NA 11/1/25 19C —
Florida 2 $1,00C $2,00¢ 4.04% 9.40% 9/2/1¢-10/1/26 2,94¢ —
Florida 2 $2,00C $3,00¢ 3.42% 8.24% 1/1/24-11/1/25 5,18¢ —
Michigan 3% 0 $1,00C 3.17% to 4.25¢ NA 12/1/12-4/30/27 1,922 —
Michigan 4 $1,00C $2,00C 3.17% to 7.25¢ NA 2/10/2¢-8/23/30 6,17 —
Oregon 3% 0 $1,00C NA 9.00% to 9.90% 2/2/1¢-6/13/21 1,96t —
Oregon 2 $2,00( $3,00C 4.54% to 7.25¢ NA 9/8/25-5/13/30 4,65¢ —
North Caroling 5% 0 $1,00C 3.79% to 4.54¢ 9.50% to 9.85% 12/20/1¢1/23/23 3,61¢€ 82:
North Caroling 2 $1,00C $2,00C 4.29% to 4.79¢ NA 6/11/23-5/5/23 2,69¢ —
California 4% 0 $1,000 4.29% to 4.54¢ 8.90% to 9.00% 7/10/1¢-12/28/24 2,33( —
California 1 $1,00C $2,00C 4.04% NA 12/13/26 1,63: —
California 1 $2,00( $3,00C 4.75% NA 12/12/26 2,04¢ —
4/25% to

Georgia 4% 0 $1,00C 4.54% 9.25% to 10.25¢12/26/1°-10/19/2: 2,32i —
Georgia 2 $1,00C $2,00¢ 3.79% 8.75% 12/14/2°-12/1/29 3,02¢ —
lowa 1 $1,00C $2,00C 4.04% NA 5/30/26 1,69¢ —
lowa 1 $2,00( $3,00C 4.29% NA 5/12/23 2,38( —
Pennsylvanii(8) 1$ 0 $1,00C 5.29% NA 12/29/15 394 394
Pennsylvani: 1 $1,00C $2,00C 4.29% NA 9/29/25 1,057 —
Pennsylvani: 1 $2,00( $3,00C NA 10.25% 6/22/20 2,601 —
Other 23$ 0 $1,00C 4.29% to 7.00¢ 7.25% to 10.25¢ 8/20/1+-8/30/35 14,59( 22¢
Other(9) 12 $1,000 $2,00C 2.79% to 4.79¢ 8.88% to 9.78% 8/18/1¢-11/24/27 17,14 3,04
Other(10) 4 $2,00C $3,00C 3.79% to 7.00¢ NA 2/7/2:-8/30/35 8,70( —
General Reserv (1,000

162 $ 194,11(11) $ 7,24:




Footnotes:
(1) Approximately 93.8% of our loans are collateralizgdhotels

(2) There are four loans which are secured by secatslon properties which are subordinated to owstfiiens on the respecti
properties.

(3) Includes two loans with a face value of $2,834,800 valuation reserves of $67,0(
(4) Includes two loans with a face value of $3,802,800 valuation reserves of $33,0(
(5) Includes a loan with a face value of $2,706,000 anéluation reserve of $22,0C
(6) Includes a loan with a face value of $3,160,000 anéluation reserve of $69,0C
(7) Includes a loan with a face value of $363,000 anélaation reserve of $60,00

(8) Includes a loan with a face value of $419,000 anélaation reserve of $25,00

(9) Includes a loan with a face value of $1,407,000 am@luation reserve of $6,0C
(10) Includes a loan with a face value of $2,131,000 an@luation reserve of $21,0C

(11) For Federal income tax purposes, the cost basi®wf mortgage loans on real estate was approxima$l95,970,00
(unaudited).
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SCHEDULE IV
PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except footnotes)

SBA 7(a) Loans — States 2% or greatefl) (2):

Principal amount

Number Final Carrying of loans subject ta
of Size of Loans Maturity Amount of  delinquent principal
Loans From To Interest Rate(2) Date Mortgages or “interest”
Texas(3) 3% 0 $ 50C 4.13%to06.00¥ 9/29/1--8/27/34 $ 2,981 $ 43
Ohio 13$ 0 $ 50C 4.25% to 6.00% 5/11/1:-9/15/35 1,31¢ —
Georgia(4) 10$ 0 $ 50C 4.25% to 6.00% 3/16/1:-6/25/35 1,24z 1
Mississippi 2% 0 $ 50C 5.75% to 6.00% 5/18/3%-12/8/35 82¢ —
Indiana 5% 0 $ 50C 4.75% to 6.00% 11/19/1-5/14/36 78¢ —
Michigan (5) 11$ 0 $ 50C 5.25% to 6.00% 9/15/1:-12/16/35 782 —
Wisconsin 5% 0 $ 50C 5.00% to 6.00% 4/23/2(-3/2/35 757 —
Oklahoma 6$ 0 $ 50C 4.75% to 6.00% 9/9/24-11/10/35 674 —
Arizona 4% 0 $ 50C 5.75% to 6.00 10/28/1-8/12/35 59C —
California 7% 0 $ 50C 4.50% to 6.00y 3/27/1+-5/5/35 404 —
Alabama 3% 0 $ 50C 5.00% 7127/25-1/22/29 38t —
lowa 2% 0 $ 50C 5.75% to 6.00% 11/26/3:-12/17/3¢ 34C —
Kentucky 3% 0 $ 50C 5.00% to 6.00% 7/21/2(-9/24/35 34C —
Missouri 4% 0 $ 50C 5.25% to 6.00¢ 2/20/11-12/14/29 33¢ —
New Mexico 2% 0 $ 50C 5.75% to 6.00% 8/30/2+-11/17/34 31€ —
Florida 5% 0 $ 50C 5.75% to 6.00% 6/12/1¢-11/10/35 30C —
Arkansas 3% 0 $ 50C 5.25% to 6.00¥ 10/25/1:-7/30/26 28t —
Other(6) 314 0 $ 50C 5.00% to 6.00¢ 12/5/1+-12/22/35 1,59¢ 22
Government guaranteed
portions(7) 4,39¢ —
Secured borrowing(8) 20,53 —
General Reserv (100
15E $ 39,10Y9) $ 66

Footnotes:

(1)

positions.

()

Interest rates are variable at spreads over thengrirate unless otherwise not

Includes approximately $1,336,000 of loans not sstipy real estate. Also includes $418,000 of loaith subordinate lie

(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(7)
(8)

(9)

Includes five loans with a face value of $903,0@0uation reserves of $91,000, and one loan haseal finterest rate of 5.509
Includes a loan with a face value of $94,000 andlaation reserve of $13,00
Includes a loan with a face value of $52,000 andlaation reserve of $1,00

Includes five loans with a face value of $1,182,Q@0uation reserves of $101,000, and two loans ¥iked rates of 5.50% a
5.75%.

Represents the government guaranteed portionsrdbBA 7(a) loans detailed above. As there is n oisloss to us related
these portions of the guaranteed loans, the geddcapformation is not presented as it is not meaiil.

Represents the guaranteed portion of loans whictewseld with the proceeds received from the safeected as securt
borrowings.

For Federal income tax purposes, the cost basmiofoans was approximately $18,763,000 (unaudit
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SCHEDULE IV

PMC COMMERCIAL TRUST AND SUBSIDIARIES
MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010
(In thousands, except footnotes)

Balance at December 31, 2C
Additions during period

New mortgage loan(1)
Other— deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts
Other— accretion of loan fees and discou

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa
Cost of mortgages sold, r
Other— bad debt expense, net of recove

Balance at December 31, 2C
Additions during period

New mortgage loan(2)

Other— non cash change in loi

Other— deferral for collection of commitment fees, netobts
Other— accretion of loan fees and discou

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa

Foreclosure:

Cost of mortgages sold, r

Other— bad debt expense, net of recove

Balance at December 31, 2C
Additions during period

New mortgage loan(3)
Other— deferral for collection of commitment fees, netofbts
Other— accretion of loan fees and discou

Deductions during periot

Collections of principa

Foreclosure:

Cost of mortgages sold, r(4)

Other— consolidation of loan loss resen
Other— bad debt expense, net of recove

Balance at December 31, 2C

Footnotes:
Includes $21,363,000 from the exercise of “clean-up call” provisions related to the 2001 Joint Venture and fl99¢

(1)
()
(3)

(4)

Partnership.

55,95(
48
44§

165,96

56,44¢

(37,96))

(4,189
(452)

(42,609)

62,99¢
10C
304
21%

179,80°

63,61¢

(14,649
(4,949

(26,207
(989

(46,780

69,70
324
317

196,64

70,34

(20,99
(4,040
(7,909

(184)
(641)

(33,76

233,21t

Includes $12,570,000 from the exercise of“clean-up call” provision related to the 2002 Joint Venture and,$93,000 fror

the attainment of th* clear-up cal” provision related to the 2003 Joint Ventu

Includes $22,912,000 and $5,024,000 from consatidatf the 2000 Joint Venture and the 1998 Parthigrsrespectively, du
to a change in accounting rules effective Januar@10 and two loans totaling $3,325,000 which werginated ir

connection with sales of real estate owned whidmdit require cash expenditure

Includes $7,692,000 representing reclassificatimducing secured borrowings and loans receiva

F-34






Table of Contents

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger by and between PMCr@arial Trust and PMC Capital, Inc. dated March 27,
2003 (incorporated by reference to Annex A to tlegiBtrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4diate
November 10, 2003

2.2 Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Mergewbeh PMC Commercial Trust and PMC Capital, Inc.
dated August 1, 2003 (incorporated by referendextubit 2.5 to the Registrant’s Quarterly ReportFmrm 10-Q
filed on August 12, 2003

3.1 Declaration of Trust (incorporated by referencéht exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Steget on
Form $-11 filed with the Commission on June 25, 1993,rasraded (Registration No. -65910)).

3.1(a) Amendment No. 1 to Declaration of Trust (incorpedaby reference to the exhibits to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-11 filed with@wnmission on June 25, 1993, as amended (Registrati
No. 3:-65910)).

3.1(b) Amendment No. 2 to Declaration of Trust (incorpethby reference to the Registrant’s Annual Report o
Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 19!

3.1(c) Amendment No. 3 to Declaration of Trust dated Fakyd 0, 2004 (incorporated by reference to the Kemit's
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

3.2 Bylaws (incorporated by reference to the exhilitthe Registrant’s Registration Statement on Forbi 8led
with the Commission on June 25, 1993, as amendegdigRation No. 3-65910)).

3.2(a) Amendment No. 1 to Bylaws (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report
Form &K filed on April 16, 2009)

4.1 Instruments defining the rights of security holddise instruments filed in response to items 3d &2 are
incorporated in this item by referen:

4.2 Debenture dated March 4, 2005 for $4,000,000 loiim 8BA (incorporated by reference to the Regigtsan
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

4.3 Debenture dated September 9, 2003 for $2,190,@00udgth SBA (incorporated by reference to the Reagig’s
Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

4.4 Debenture dated September 9, 2003 for $2,000,G00udath SBA (incorporated by reference to the Reaig’s

Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(
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Exhibit
Number

Description

+10.1

10.2

10.c

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

+10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

2005 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s QuarterlypB on
Form 1(-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 20

Trust Indenture between PMC Joint Venture, L.P.280d BNY Midwest Trust Company, dated as of
December 15, 2000 (incorporated by reference taldixh 1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on F@&ik filed
on March 13, 2001

Servicing Agreement by and among BNY Midwest T@smpany, PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 2000 and PMC
Capital, Inc. and PMC Commercial Trust, dated aBexdember 15, 2000 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.2 to the Registra’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on March 13, 2001

Servicing Agreement by and among Harris Trust Sgs/iBank, as Trustee and Supervisory Servicer, PMC
Capital L.P. 1998-1, as Issuer, and PMC Capital, &3 Servicer (incorporated by reference to ExAibi12 to
PMC Capital, Inc’'s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 19

Trust Indenture between PMC Joint Venture, L.P.220@nd The Bank of New York, as Trustee, dated
September 16, 2003 (incorporated by referenceadigistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed dber 10,
2003).

Servicing Agreement by and among The Bank of Newk¥as Trustee and Supervisory Servicer, PMC Joint
Venture, L.P. 2003-1 as Issuer and PMC Capital,and PMC Commercial Trust as Servicers, dated
September 16, 2003 (incorporated by referenceet®égistrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed @b 10,
2003).

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement between PMang&rcial Trust and First Western SBLC, Inc. and
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, as Ahtnative Agent, dated December 28, 2010 (incorgata
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Regist’s Current Report on Forn-K filed January 3, 2011

Form of Executive Employment Contract (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrantisa@erly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 20

Purchase Agreement among PMC Commercial Trust, Pk&terred Capital Trust-A and Taberna Preferred
Funding I, Ltd. dated March 15, 2005 (incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’sa@erly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

Junior Subordinated Indenture between PMC CommieFaist and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Assagii

as Trustee dated March 15, 2005 (incorporated fieyenece to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s QudytBeport
on Form 1-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20
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Exhibit
Number Description

10.1¢€ Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among PMC @ooiah Trust, JPMorgan Chase Bank, National
Association, Chase Bank USA, National Associatind @he Administrative Trustees Named Herein dated
March 15, 2005 (incorporated by reference to ExHibi3 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on FAG¥Q for
the quarterly period ended March 31, 20(

10.1% Preferred Securities Certificate (incorporateddfgmrence to Exhibit 10.4 to the Registrant’s Qurteeport on
Form 1(-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

10.1¢ Floating Rate Junior Subordinated Note due 203®o(porated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Riegnt's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 20

10.1¢ Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporatedrbference to the Registrant’'s Annual Report on Fb@aiK
for the year ended December 31, 20!

10.2( Security Agreement between PMC Commercial Trust#idorgan Chase Bank, National Association dated
December 29, 2009 (incorporated by reference toliixt0.2 to the Registrant’s Current Report onrfr@-K
filed December 31, 2009

*21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registre

*23.1 Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |

*31.1 Section 302 Officer Certificatio— Chief Executive Office

*31.2 Section 302 Officer Certificatio— Chief Financial Office

**32.1 Section 906 Officer Certificatio— Chief Executive Office
**32.2 Section 906 Officer Certificatio— Chief Financial Officel

* Filed herewith
**  Furnished herewitt
+  Management contract or compensatory |
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Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of Registrant

State
of
Incorporation

PMC Investment Corporatic
Western Financial Capital Corporati
First Western SBLC, Inc

PMC Funding Corp

PMCT AH, Inc.

PMCT Plainfield, L.P

PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 20(
PMC Joint Venture LLC 200
PMC Joint Venture, L.P. 20-1
PMC Joint Venture LLC 20(-1
PMC Capital, L.P. 19¢-1
PMC Capital Corp. 19¢-1
PMC Asset Holding, LLC
PMCT Asset Holding, LLC
PMC Preferred Capital Tri-A
PMC Properties, Inc

Florida

Florida

Florida

Florida

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referdnche Registration Statement on Form S-3D (N&3-38767) and Form 8-
(No. 333-127531) of PMC Commercial Trust of our aepdated March 16, 201delating to the financial statements, finan
statement schedules and the effectiveness of alteamtrol over financial reporting, which appegrshis Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 16, 2011



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Lance B. Rosemore, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which such statements weade, nc
misleading with respect to the period covered liy itbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present i
all material respects the financial condition, tesaf operations and cash flows of the registenbf, and for, the perio
presented in this repol

4. The registrard’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contres
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18e}Xnd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repagtias
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresaused such disclosure controls and procedurds
designed under our supervision, to ensure that riabt@formation relating to the registrant, inclod its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to usthgre within those entities, particularly during theriod i
which this report is being prepare

designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finaheporting tc
be designed under our supervision, to provide regide assurance regarding the reliability of final
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaaktepte
accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsatisclosure controls and procedures and preséantéds report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovere:
by this report based on such evaluation;

disclosed in this report any change in thgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatcomrec
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quaftbe registrans fourth fiscal quarter in the case of ani
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnéikely to materially affect, the registrastinternal contre
over financial reporting; an

5. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internal cbrdve!
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditoredahe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or perst
performing the equivalent function:

a)

b)

Date: 03/16/11

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesisethe design or operation of internal controtofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffiect the registrang’ ability to record, process, summa
and report financial information; at

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesniagement or other employees who have a significéatir
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Lance B. Rosemore
Lance B. Rosemor:
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Barry N. Berlin, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of PMC Commercial Trus

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtade a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in lighhefcircumstances under which such statements weade, nc
misleading with respect to the period covered ligy tbport;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementd,adiher financial information included in this repdairly present i
all material respects the financial condition, fesaf operations and cash flows of the registeenbf, and for, the perio
presented in this repol

4. The registrard’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contres
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}ihd 15dt5(e)) and internal control over financial repogti¢as
defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a)

b)

c)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawused such disclosure controls and procedurds
designed under our supervision, to ensure that riabt@formation relating to the registrant, inclod its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod i
which this report is being prepare

designed such internal control over financial répgy or caused such internal control over finaheporting tc
be designed under our supervision, to provide mede assurance regarding the reliability of final
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyeaaktepte
accounting principles

evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaisclosure controls and procedures and presantéds report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovere:
by this report based on such evaluation;

disclosed in this report any change in thgistrants internal control over financial reporting thatcomrec
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quaftiee registrans fourth quarter in the case of an annual re
that has materially affected, or is reasonablylyike materially affect, the registrastinternal control ow
financial reporting; an

5. The registrarg’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdx on our most recent evaluation of internal cbrdve!
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditoredahe audit committee of the registranboard of directors (or perst
performing the equivalent function:

a)

b)

Date: 03/16/11

all significant deficiencies and material weaknesigethe design or operation of internal controgiofinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffect the registrans’ ability to record, process, summa
and report financial information; at

any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a significéatir
the registrar' s internal control over financial reportir

/s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin
Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PMC ComnigrcTrust (the “Company”) on Form 1KR-for the period ende
December 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities Brchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pdrtLance B. Rosemor
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuadto@s of the Sarbané3xley
Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenfssection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Excleadgt of 1934, ¢
amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairlyegents, in all material respects, the financiatdition and results
operations of the Company.

/sl Lance B. Rosemore
Lance B. Rosemor
Chief Executive Office
March 16, 201




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of PMC ComnigrcTrust (the “Company”) on Form 1KR-for the period ende
December 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities Bxthange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pdrBarry N. Berlin, Chie
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamtl8 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §o8@®e Sarbane®xley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenfssection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Excleadgt of 1934, ¢
amended; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairlyegents, in all material respects, the financiatdition and results
operations of the Company.

/s/ Barry N. Berlin
Barry N. Berlin

Chief Financial Office
March 16, 201:




